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NOTICE OF 13th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 
NOTICE is hereby given that 13th Annual General Meeting of Tata Value Homes Limited will be 
held on Friday, September 23, 2022 at 11:30 a.m. at Registered office of the Company i.e. “E 
Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai 400033 to transact the following 
business at a shorter notice: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 
 
1. To receive, consider and adopt: 

 
a. the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year 

ended March 31, 2022 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the 
Auditors thereon; and 

 
b. the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year 

ended March 31, 2022 together with the Report of Auditors thereon. 
 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sanjay Dutt (DIN: 05251670), who retires by rotation 
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS 

 
3. Appointment of Mr. Sandeep Chhabda as Director of the Company 
 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following resolution as 
an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of the Section 152 and all other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), Mr. Sandeep Chhabda 
(DIN: 08331848) who was appointed by the Board of Directors pursuant to the provision of 
Section 161 of the Act as an Additional Director w.e.f April 29, 2022 and who holds office upto 
the date of this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has received a 
notice in writing from a member under Section 160 of the Act proposing his candidature for the 
office of a Director of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as a Non-Executive  
Non-Independent Director of the Company, who shall be liable to retire by rotation.” 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to do all acts 
and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 
resolution.” 
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4. Appointment of Mrs. Reshma Chheda as Director of the Company 
 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following resolution as 
an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of the Section 152 and all other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), Mrs. Reshma Chheda (DIN: 
08364424) who was appointed by the Board of Directors pursuant to the provision of  
Section 161 of the Act as an Additional Director w.e.f June 13, 2022 and who holds office upto 
the date of this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has received a 
notice in writing from a member under Section 160 of the Act proposing her candidature for the 
office of a Director of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as a Non-Executive  
Non-Independent Director of the Company, who shall be liable to retire by rotation.” 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to do all acts 
and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 
resolution.” 

 
5. Ratification of Cost Auditor’s Remuneration: 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force) and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, as amended from time to time, the Company hereby ratifies the remuneration of 
₹1,50,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Fifty Thousand Only) plus applicable taxes, travel and actual 
out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with the audit, payable to M/s. Vinod C. 
Subramaniam & Co, Cost Accountants (Firm registration No.: 102395), who are appointed by 
the Board of Directors as the Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct the audit of cost records 
maintained by the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23.” 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (including any Committee thereof) be and 
is hereby authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or 
expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 
 
6. Approve the issue of Non-Convertible Debentures on Private Placement Basis: 

 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution 
as Special Resolution: 
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"RESOLVED THAT in supersession of earlier Resolution passed at the 12th Annual General 
Meeting of the Members of the Company held on September 27, 2021 and pursuant to the 
provisions of Sections 23, 42 and 71 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 
force) (hereinafter to be referred as the “Act”) and the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment 
of Securities) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, both 
as amended from time to time, and subject to all other applicable Regulations, Rules, 
Notifications, Circulars and Guidelines prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(“SEBI”), as amended, including the SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 
Regulations, 2021, as amended, the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, as amended, SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018, as amended if applicable and the enabling provisions of the listing 
agreements entered / to be entered into with the Stock Exchanges where the securities of the 
Company be listed (the “Stock Exchanges”), and subject to the applicable Regulations, Rules, 
Notifications, Circulars and Guidelines prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”), the 
Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association of the Company, and subject to such 
approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions as may be required from the Government of 
India, SEBI, RBI, the Stock Exchanges or any regulatory or statutory authority as may be 
required (the “Appropriate Authority”) and subject to such conditions and/or modifications as 
may be prescribed or imposed by the Appropriate Authority while granting such approvals, 
consents, permissions and sanctions, which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the 
Company (hereinafter referred to as the 'Board' which term shall be deemed to include any 
Committee(s) constituted/to be constituted by the Board to exercise its powers including the 
powers conferred by this Resolution), subject to the total borrowings of the Company not 
exceeding the borrowing powers approved by the Members from time to time under Section 
180(1)(c) of the Act, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the 
Board of Directors for making offer(s) or invitations to subscribe to rated, redeemable, 
cumulative/non-cumulative, listed/unlisted Non-Convertible Debentures/Bonds (hereinafter 
collectively referred as “NCDs”) up to an amount of Rs.500 Crore (Rupees Five Hundred Crore 
only) on private placement basis to eligible entities, bodies corporate, companies, banks, 
financial institutions and any other categories of investors (eligible investors) permitted to invest 
in the NCDs under applicable laws, in one or more series/tranches, during a period of one year 
from the date of passing of this Resolution on such terms and conditions as the Board or any 
Committee authorized by the Board or any person(s) authorized by the Board, may, from time 
to time, determine and consider proper and most beneficial to the Company including as to 
when the said NCDs be issued, the consideration for the issue, utilization of issue proceeds and 
all matters connected with or incidental thereto and that the said borrowing is within the overall 
borrowing limits of the Company. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution, the Board be 
and is hereby authorized, on behalf of the Company, to determine the terms of issue including 
the class of investors to whom the NCDs are to be issued, time, the number of NCDs, tranches, 
issue price, tenor, interest rate, premium/discount, listing (in India or overseas) and do all such 
acts, deeds, matters and things as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary, proper, or 
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desirable and to settle any question, doubt that may arise in respect of the borrowings aforesaid 
and to execute all documents and writing as may be necessary, proper, desirable or expedient."  

 
By order of the Board 

For Tata Value Homes Limited 
 
 
 

Mrunal Shukla 
Company Secretary 

ACS: 31734 
Registered Office: E Block, Voltas Premises, 
T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, 
Mumbai: 400033 
 

  
 Date: September 21, 2022 

Place: Mumbai 
CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605 
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Notes:  

1. The relative Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 
('the Act') in respect of the business under item nos. 3, 4, 5 and 6 set out above and 
the relevant details of the Director seeking appointment/re-appointment in respect of 
business under items 2, 3 and 4 at this Annual General Meeting ('AGM'/ 'the meeting') 
as required under the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by The Institute 
of Company Secretaries of India ('Secretarial Standard') are annexed hereto. 

 
2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO 

APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON HIS/HER BEHALF AND THE 
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. The duly completed and signed instrument 
appointing proxy as per the format included in the Annual Report should be 
returned to the Registered Office of the Company not less than forty-eight 
(48) hours before the time for holding the AGM. Proxies submitted on behalf 
of limited companies must be supported by appropriate resolution/authority, 
as applicable. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding 50 and 
holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company 
carrying voting rights. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a member holding 
more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, then 
such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or Member. 
 

3. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the 
AGM are requested to send to the Company, a certified copy of the Board Resolution 
authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the AGM. Members, 
Proxies and Authorized Representatives are requested to bring the duly completed 
Attendance Slip enclosed herewith to attend the AGM. 
 

4. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding as 
maintained under Section 170 of the Act, the Register of Contracts or Arrangement in 
which the Directors are interested as maintained under Section 189 of the Act and 
relevant documents referred to in the Notice and the Explanatory Statement are open 
for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working 
days between Monday to Friday except public holidays, between 10:00 a.m. (IST) to 
1:00 p.m. (IST) up to the date of the meeting and also at the AGM venue during the 
meeting. 
 

5. The Members may avail the facility of nomination in terms of Section 72 pf the Act read 
with Rule 19 (1) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014, by 
nominating in the Form SH 13, any person to whom his/ their shares in the Company 
shall vest in the event of death of shareholder(s). SH-13 to be submitted in the duplicate 
with the Company.  
 
The format of the Register of Members prescribed by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
(“MCA”) under the Act requires the Company/Registrars and Share Transfer Agents 
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(“RTA”) to record additional details of Members, including their PAN details, e-mail 
address, bank details for payment of dividend etc. Members holding shares in the 
Company are requested to submit the details to their respective Depository Participant. 
 

6. Members desiring any information as regards the Accounts are requested to write to the 
Company at an early date so as to enable the management to keep the information 
ready at the meeting. Further, the Members who would like to express their views or 
ask questions during the AGM may raise the same at the meeting or send them in 
advance (mentioning their name and folio no. /DP ID - Client ID), at least 3 working 
days prior to the date of AGM at mrunalshukla@tatarealty.in. 
 

7. To support the ‘Green Initiative’, the Members who have not yet registered their email 
addresses or updated their email addresses, are requested to register the same with 
their Depository Participants (“DPs”). The members who are desirous of receiving the 
Annual Report may write to the Company’s RTA for a copy of the same. 
 
Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2021–22 is being sent by electronic 
mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company, unless 
any Member has requested for a physical copy of the same.  
 

8. Attendance Slip, Proxy Form and the Route Map showing directions to reach the venue 
of the AGM are annexed hereto. 
 

9. The Members may note that the Annual Report for FY 2021-22 would be made available 
on the Company’s website viz. www.tatarealty.in and on the website of BSE Limited at 
www.bseindia.com. 
 

By order of the Board 
For Tata Value Homes Limited 

 
 

 
Mrunal Shukla 

Company Secretary 
ACS: 31734 

Registered Office: E Block, Voltas Premises, 
T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, 
Mumbai: 400033 
CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605 
   

 Date: September 21, 2022 
Place: Mumbai 
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INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON GENERAL MEETINGS: 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 
Item No. 2: 
 
The brief profile of Mr. Sanjay Dutt (DIN: 05251670) in terms of Secretarial Standard- 2 on 
General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, is provided in 
Annexure A.  
 
STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE 
ACT”)  
 
Item No. 3 & 4 
 
Mr. Sandeep Chhabda and Mrs. Reshma Chheda were appointed as an Additional Director of 

the Company with effect from April 29, 2022 and June 13, 2022 respectively and they hold 

office till the ensuing Annual General Meeting pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 

2013. Notice under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been received from a 

shareholder, proposing to appoint Mr. Chhabda and Mrs. Chheda as Director of the Company 

at this Annual General Meeting whose office shall be liable to retire by rotation. A brief profile 

of the Director to be appointed in terms of Secretarial Standard- 2 on General Meetings (SS-2) 

issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, is provided in Annexure A.  

Given their experience, the Board considers it desirable and in the interest of the Company to 
have Mr. Chhabda and Mrs. Chheda on the Board of the Company and accordingly the Board 
recommends their appointment as Directors as proposed in the Resolution no.3 and 4 for 
approval by the Members as an Ordinary Resolution. 
 
Except for Mr. Chhabda and Mrs. Chheda and/or their relatives, no other Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel, or their respective relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the said resolutions. 
 

Item No. 5 

 

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 27, 2022, considered the reappointment of 
M/s. Vinod C. Subramaniam & Co, Cost Accountants (Firm registration No.: 102395), as Cost 
Auditors for auditing the cost records of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23 at a 
remuneration not exceeding ₹1,50,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Fifty Thousand Only) plus applicable 
taxes and out-of-pocket expenses. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the ratification for the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the 
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Financial Year 2022–23 by way of an Ordinary Resolution is being sought from the members as 
set out at Item No.5 of the Notice. 
 
The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No.5 of the Notice for approval 
of the Members. None of the Director, Key Managerial Personnel, or their respective relatives 
are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.   
 
Item No. 6: 
 
To meet the funding requirements of the Company, the Company has from time to time issued 
Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs), in one or more series / tranches on private placement 
basis in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 
 
In order to augment long term resources for financing, inter alia, refinancing of the existing 
debt, ongoing working capital requirement and for general corporate purposes, the Company 
may require further offering or inviting subscription, from time to time, in one or more tranches 
and/or series, whether secured or unsecured, cumulative or non-cumulative, listed or unlisted, 
redeemable NCDs including but not limited to bonds and/or other debt securities, denominated 
in Indian rupees on private placement basis. The pricing for any instrument which may be issued 
by the Company on the basis of the Resolution set out at the Notice will be done by the Board 
(which term includes a duly constituted Committee of the Board of Directors) in accordance 
with applicable laws including the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of 
Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 and other applicable statutory requirements, if any. 
 
The provisions of Sections 23, 42 and 71 of the Act, read with Rule 14 of the Companies 
(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 (the 'PAS Rules'), provide that a company 
shall not make a private placement of its securities unless the proposed offer of securities or 
invitation to subscribe to the securities has been previously approved by the Members of the 
company by a Special Resolution. The third proviso to Rule 14(1) of the PAS Rules provides that 
in case of an offer or invitation to subscribe to NCDs on private placement basis, the company 
can obtain prior approval by means of a Special Resolution once in a year for all offers or 
invitations for such NCDs during the year, subject to certain conditions. Further, fourth proviso 
to Rule 14(1) of PAS Rules provides that in case of offer or invitation of any securities to qualified 
institutional buyers, it shall be sufficient if the company passes a previous special resolution 
only in a year for all the allotments to such buyers during the year. 
 
In terms of the provisions of Rule 14(1) of the PAS rules, disclosures pertaining to NCDs are as 

follows: 

 

a) Particulars of the offer including the date of passing of the Board Resolution: 

The Board resolution passed on August 8, 2022, which inter-alia provides for issuance 

of NCDs on a private placement basis. 
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b) Kinds of Securities offered and the price at which security is being offered: 

Non-Convertible Debentures at such price as may be determined by the Board from time 

to time. 
 

c) Basis of justification for the price (including premium, if any) at which the 

offer or invitation is being made: 

The NCDs would be issued at price as may be determined by the Board from time to 

time. 

 

d) Name and address of valuer who performed valuation: 

Not Applicable 

 

e) Amount which the company intends to raise by way of such securities: 

Up to ₹ 500 Crore. 

 

f) Material terms of raising such securities, proposed time schedule, purposes 

or objects of offer, contribution being made by the promoters or directors 

either as part of the offer or separately in furtherance of objects; principal 

terms of assets charged as securities: 

As may be determined by the Board, from time to time 
 

The Shareholders had approved the issuance of NCDs amounting to ₹ 500 Crore vide its 
resolution passed at the AGM held on September 27, 2021. The said approval shall expire on 
September 26, 2022. The limit which was proposed herein is within the overall borrowing limit 
of ₹ 1000 Crore, approved by the Shareholders, pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) 
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, at their AGM held on July 15, 2014. 
 

The approval of the Members is being sought for issue of NCDs up to an amount of ₹ 500 Crore 
by way of a Special Resolution in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act, read with 
the Rules made thereunder, from time to time, in the manner as set in this Notice.  
 

As on March 31, 2022, the net worth of the Company was Rs. 18,599.69 (Lakhs) (standalone) 
and the total long term debt, including current maturities of long term debt of the Company 
was Rs. 19,500 (lakhs) (standalone) including outstanding NCDs of ₹ 19,500 Lakhs. 
  
The approval of the Members is being sought for issue of NCDs up to an amount of  
Rs. 500 Crore by way of a Special Resolution in compliance with the applicable provisions of the 
Act, read with the Rules made thereunder, from time to time, in the manner as set in this Notice.  
 

The Directors recommend the Resolution of the accompanying Notice, for the approval of the 
Members of the Company by way of a Special Resolution. 
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None of the Directors or Key Managerial Persons of the Company or their respective relatives is 
in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution set out in this 
Notice. 
 

 

By order of the Board 
For Tata Value Homes Limited 

 
 

 
Mrunal Shukla 

Company Secretary 
ACS: 31734 

Registered Office: E Block, Voltas Premises, 
T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, 
Mumbai: 400033 
CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605 
 

 Date: September 21, 2022 
Place: Mumbai 
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Annexure A 
 

Information pursuant to the Secretarial Standards/Schedule V in respect of 
Appointment/ Re-appointment of Directors: 
 
Agenda Item no. 2 -  
 

Name : Mr. Sanjay Dutt (DIN- 05251670) 

Age : 56 years 

DIN : 05251670 

Qualification  : Post graduate in marketing and HR from IMI, New Delhi 

Experience  More than 28 years 

Terms of Appointment : To be re-appointed as Director, liable to retire by rotation 

Remuneration sought to be 

paid 

 Nil 

Remuneration last drawn : NIL 

Date of first appointment 

on Board 

: May 4, 2018 

Shareholding in the 

Company  

: Nil 

Relationship with other 

Directors 

: Nil 

Number of Board Meetings 
attended during the year  

: 6 out of 6 

Other Directorship, 
membership/chairmanship 
of committees of the other 
Boards 

: Directorship: 
 
1. TRIL Infopark Limited 
2. Promont Hilltop Private Limited 
3. Tata Housing Development Company Limited 
4. Tata Value Homes Limited 
5. Smart Value Homes (Peenya Project)Private Limited 
6. Tata Realty And Infrastructure Limited. 
7. Infopark Properties Limited 
8. Apex Realty Private Limited; 
9. World-One Development Company Pte. Ltd.; 
10. World-One (Sri Lanka) Projects Pte. Ltd. 
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Chairmanship/Membership of Committees of the Board: 
 

Name of the 
Company 

Name of the 
Committee 

Chairman/Member 

Tata Housing 
Development 
Company 
Limited 

Risk Management 
Committee 

Chairman 

Tata Housing 
Development 
Company 
Limited 

Stakeholder 
Relationship 
Committee 

Member 

Tata Housing 
Development 
Company 
Limited 

Audit Committee Member 

Tata Realty and 
Infrastructure 
Limited 

Stakeholder 
Relationship 
Committee 

Member 

Tata Realty and 
Infrastructure 
Limited 

Risk Management 
Committee 

Member 

 

 
Agenda Item no. 3 –  

Name Mr. Sandeep Chhabda (DIN: 08331848) 

Age 39 

Qualification Law from ILS Law College and holds an LLM from the National 

University of Singapore 

Experience more than 15 years 

Terms and Conditions 

of Re-Appointment 

To be appointed as Director, liable to retire by rotation. 

Remuneration 

(Proposed) 

Nil 

Remuneration 

(Drawn) 

Nil 

Date of First 

Appointment 

April 29, 2022 

Shareholding in the 

Company 

Nil 

Relationship with 

other Directors 

None 
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Number of Meetings of 

the Board Attended 

during the year 

Not Applicable 

Other Directorship/ 

Chairman/Membership 

in other committees of 

the Board 

Directorship/Chairmanship/Membership of Committees of the 
Board: 
 

Name of the 
Company 

Directorship Chairman/Member Name of the 
 Committee 

HV Farms 
Private 
Limited 

Additional 
Director 

- - 

TRIL IT4 
Private 
Limited 

Additional 
Director 

- - 

Synergizers 
Sustainable 
Foundation 

Additional 
Director 

- - 

Promont 
Hilltop 
Private 
Limited 

Additional 
Director 

- - 

HLT 
Residency 
Private 
Limited 

Additional 
Director 

- - 

Smart 
Value 
Homes 
(Peenya 
Project) 
Private 
Limited 

Additional 
Director 

- - 

 

 

Agenda Item no. 4 –  

Name Mrs. Reshma Chheda ( DIN: 08364424) 

Age 43 

Qualification Chartered Accountant and CPA (USA) 

Experience Over 18 years of experience comprising of Corporate/ project Finance, 

Debt raising, Ratings and Treasury 

To be appointed 

as Director, liable 

To be appointed as Director, liable to retire by rotation. 
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to retire by 

rotation. 

Nil Nil 

Remuneration 

(Drawn) 

Nil 

Date of First 

Appointment 

June 13, 2022 

Shareholding in 

the Company 

Nil 

Relationship with 

other Directors 

None 

Number of 

Meetings of the 

Board Attended 

during the year 

NA 

Other Directorship 

Chairman/Membe

rship in other 

committees of the 

Board 

Directorship/Chairmanship/Membership of Committees of the 
Board: 
 

Name of the 
Company 

Directorship Chairman 
/Member 

Name of the 
 Committee 

Ardent Properties 
Private Limited 

Additional 
Director 

- - 

TRIL Infopark 
Limited 

Director - - 

Princeton 
Infrastructure 
Private Limited 

Additional 
Director 

- - 

Smart Value 
Homes (Boisar) 
Private Limited 

Additional 
Director 

- - 

Promont Hillside 
Private Limited 

Additional 
Director 

- - 

TRIL Bengaluru 
Real Estate Three 
Private Limited 

Director - - 

TRIL Bengaluru 
Real Estate One 
Private Limited 

Director - - 

TRIL Bengaluru 
Consultants 
Private Limited 

Director - - 
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TRIL It4 Private 
Limited 

Additional 
Director 

- - 

Pune Solapur 
Expressways 
Private Limited 

Director - - 

 

 
 

By order of the Board 
For Tata Value Homes Limited 

 
 

 
Mrunal Shukla 

Company Secretary 
ACS: 31734 

Registered Office: E Block, Voltas Premises, 
T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, 
Mumbai: 400033 
CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605 
 

 Date: September 21, 2022 
Place: Mumbai 
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        ATTENDANCE SLIP 

 

PLEASE FILL THE ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF 

THE MEETING VENUE 

 

Joint Shareholders may obtain additional Attendance Slip in request 

 

Regd. Folio No./ DP ID-Client ID    

 

NAME AND ADDRESS OF SHAREHOLDER:  ___________________________ 

      ___________________________ 

      ___________________________  

      ___________________________ 

 

 

NO. OF SHARES HELD: ________________________ 

 

I/We hereby record my presence at the 13th Annual General Meeting of Tata Value Homes 

Limited held on Friday, September 23, 2022 at 11:30 a.m. at Registered office of the Company 

i.e. “E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai 400033. 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

Signature of the Shareholder or Proxy 
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Form No. MGT-11 

 

Proxy form 

 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 

CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605 

 

Name of the company: TATA Value Homes Limited 

 

Registered office: E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai 400 033  

 

Name of the member (s):  

Registered address:  

E-mail Id:  

Folio No/ Client Id:  

DP ID:  

  

 

I/We, being the member (s) of …………. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint  

 

1. Name: 

Address: 

E-mail id: 

Signature:     or failing him 

2. Name: 

Address: 

E-mail id: 

Signature:     or failing him 

3. Name: 

Address: 

E-mail id: 

Signature:      

 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the  

13th Annual General Meeting of Tata Value Homes Limited to be held on Friday, September 23, 

2022 at 11:30 a.m. at Registered office of the Company i.e. “E Block, Voltas Premises, T B 

Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai 400033 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such 

resolutions as are indicated below:  
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Resolution No. 

 

1. To receive, consider and adopt: 
 

a. the Audited Standalone Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2022 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors 
thereon; and 

b. the Audited Consolidated Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2022 together with the Report of the Auditors thereon. 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sanjay Dutt (DIN: 05251670), who retires by 
rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

3. Appointment of Mr. Sandeep Chhabda as Director of the Company 
4. Appointment of Mrs. Reshma Chheda as Director of the Company 
5. Ratification of Cost Auditor’s Remuneration. 
6. To approve the issue of Non-Convertible Debentures on Private Placement Basis. 

 
 

 

Signed this ……………..day of ……………….2022 

 

Signature of the shareholder  

 

 

 

Signature of the proxy holder(s) 

 

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and 
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before 
the commencement of the Meeting. 

  

Affix 

Revenue 

Stamp 
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ROUTE MAP FOR REACHING AT THE AGM VENUE FROM CHURCHGATE 
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS,

The Directors present the Annual Report of Tata Value Homes Limited (th e "Company" or
'T VHL") along with the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2022. The consolidated performance of the Company and its subsidiaries has been
referred to wherever required .

1. Financial Results
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Sta ndalone Consolidated

2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21

Revenue 7,219.18 7,095.49 13,971.35 14,331.22

Other income 1,565.25 1,993.30 4,907.50 1,698.63

Total income 8,784.43 9,088.79 18,878.85 16,029.85

Expenses

Operating expenditure 9688.70 16,064.31 20736.56 27,820.14

Depreciation and 13.27 16.09 16.63 17.87
amortization expenses

Total Expenses 9701.97 16,080.40 20753.19 27,838.0 1

Loss before finance cost (917.54) (6,991.61) (1,874.34) (11,808.16)
and tax

Finance cost 3,378.05 7,181.80 6,924.40 8,726.59

Loss before Impairment of (4,295.59) (14,173.41) (8,798.74) (20,534.75)
equity investment in and
loans given to subsidiaries
and joint ventures

TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED
CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605

Regd. Office: - E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in
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Impairment of equity 2,860.45 - 2,485.00 5,820.31
investment in and loans
given to subsidiaries and
joint ventures

(7,156.04) (14,173.41) (11,283.74) (26,355.06)
Loss before tax (PBT)

Tax expense 1,328.24 32.3 (1492.03) 232

Loss after tax (8,484.28) (14,205.71) (12,775.77) (26,587.06)

Share of loss of joint - - (801.83) (4,519.10)

ventures

(8,484.28) (14,205.71) (13,577.60) (31,106.16)
Loss for the year

Attributable to:

Shareholders of the (8,484. 28) (14,205.71) (13,577 .60) (31,106.16
company

Non-Controll ing Interest - - - -

Opening Balance of (52,895.68) (39,845.46) (81,549.10) (51,593.47)
retained earning

On adoption of IND AS 115 - - - -
(net of taxes)

(8,484.28) (14,205.71) (13,577.60) (31,106.16)
Loss for the Year

Other comprehensive (20.35) 43.53 (20.56) 38.57

income I (losses)

Tota l comprehen sive (8,504.63) -54,007.64 (95,147.26 -82,661.06

income

Dividend (including tax on - - - -
diVidend)

TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED
CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605
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- - - -
Buy-back of equity shares

Expenses for buy-back of - - - -
equity shares

- - - -
Issue of Bonus shares

Realized loss on equity - - - -
shares carried at fair value
through OCI

Transfer to Special - - - -/

Economic Zone re-
investment reserve

Transfer from Special - - - -
Economic Zone re-
investment reserve

Transferred from 0 1,11 1.96 0 1,111.96
Debenture Redemption
reserve

Transfer to reserve - - - -

Closing balance of (61,400.31) (52,895.68) (95,147.26) (81,549.10)
retained earnings

2. Dividend

I n view of the loss incurred during the year under review, the Directors do not recommend

any dividend for the year 2021-22.

3. Transfer to Reserves

Your Directors do not recommend transferring any funds to reserves of the Company.

4. Company's Performance I Financial Summary or highlights

On a standalone basis, the revenue for FY 2021-22 was Rs. 7219.18 lakhs, increase by 1.75

% over the previous year's revenue of RS.7095.49 lakhs in FY 2020-21. The loss after tax

TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED
CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605

Regd. Office: - E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033
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attributable to shareholders for FY 2021-22 was Rs. 8484.28 lakhs, lower by 40.25 % over
the loss of Rs. 14205.71lakhs for FY 2021-22.

Consolidated revenue for FY 2021-22 was Rs. 13971.35 lakhs, lower by 2.51% over the
previous year's revenue of Rs. 14331.22 lakhs in FY 2020-21. The loss after tax attributable

to shareholders for FY 2021-22 was Rs. 13577.06 lakhs, lower by 56.35 % over the loss of
Rs. 31067.59 lakhs for FY 2020-21.

State of the Company's Affairs:

Your Company is in the business of residential property development with 12 projects spread
across major cities. It has delivered 7.39 million sq. ft. or 8,844 units since inception and has
another 7.32 million sq. ft. area, which is under various stages of development and planning.
As a comprehensive real estate developer of choice, lVHL straddles value housing.

5. Subsidiary Companies

The Company has 7 Subsidiaries/ 2 LLP. There has been no material change in the nature of
the business of the Subsidiaries/LLPs/Associates.

During the year under review, the Company had acquired 49% equity stake in Smart Value

Homes (Peenya Project) Private Limited and as a result, it became wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company with effect from May 21, 2021. Further, the Company acquired 48%
partnership stake of Smart Value Homes (New Project) LLP on September 15, 2021, as a

result, the Company now holds 99% partnership stake of Smart Value Homes (New Project)
LLP.

Except as stated above, there has been no change in the companies, which became or ceased
to be the Subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies of the Company during the year
under review.

The summary of the performance of subsidiaries, associates and joint venture companies and
their contribution to the overall performance of the Company during the financial year has
been provided in AOC-1 and attach ed to the Financial Statements of the Company.

6. Covid 19

While the second wave of Covid-19 during Q1 FY22 and subsequent spikes in cases posed
challenges to different aspects of the business, the overall impact was limited and short- lived
when compared to the first wave in 2020. As the situation eased during Q2, sales recovered
strongly with offices gradually reopened and construction activity ramped back up. Your
company has incorporated various learnings into regular operations, be it strictly implementing
SOPs to ensure safety and health or shifting to digital ways of working. Contingency measures
are in place, multiple vaccinatio n drives have been facilitated, and precautionary work-from-

TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED
CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605
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•

home implemented judiciously. Your company continues to manage the business risks in the
still dynamic environment.

7. Share Capital and other Securities:

A. Share Capital

During the year under review, the re has been no change in the Share Capital of the Company.
The Authorised Share Capital of the Company stands at Rs. 1000 Crore and the paid up equity
capital of the Company stands at Rs. 800 Crore.

B. Debt Management

As on March 31, 2022, the Company had outstanding external debt of RS.305 Crore, decrease
of Rs.230 Crore over the outstanding debt as at March 31, 2021. The reduction was achieved
through raising of addition al equity during the Financial Year 2020-21 and Inter Corporate
Deposits from Parent Company.

The Company raises debt through various sources such as Non-Convertib le Debentures,
Commercial Papers, Short term loans, Working capital, Cash Credit, Overdraft facilities and
Inter-Corporate Deposits.

B. Credit Rati ngs

f IIdbIf bffh bCYour ompanv as een 0 ermq ttse to e rate JY rati nq acencres as per 0 owino:
Instrument Rating Agency Rating Rated Remarks

Amount

Commercial Paper Credit Analysis & CARE Al+ 'l: 200 Crore
Re-affi rmed

(Short term) Research Limited with stable
outlook

Non-Convertib le Credit Analysis &
'l: 195 Crore

CARE AA with stable Re-affi rmed
Debenture Research Limited

out look

Short Term / Long
'l: 382.63

Term Bank
Credit Analysis & Crore

Facilit ies (Fund
Research Limited

CARE AA /
with stable

Re-affirmed
and Non Fund CARE Al+

outlook
Based)

TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED
CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605
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8. Depository System

Your Company's Equity Shares are available for dematerialization (Demat) through National
Securities Depository Limited. The ISIN as allotted to the Company by NSDL is INE069P01015.
In case of any query, you may please get in touch with the Company or the Registrar &
Transfer Agent i.e. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. Add: C-101, 247 Park, L. B. S. Marg, Vikhroli
(W), Mumbai 400 083 Phone: +91 2249186270. As on March 31, 2022, 100% of the Equity
Shares of your Company were held in dematerialized form.

9. Directors' Responsibility Statement

Based on the framework of internal financial cont rols and compliance systems established and

maintained by the Company, the work performed by the Internal, Statutory and Secretarial
auditors and external consultants, including the audit of internal financial controls over

financial reporting by the Statutory auditors and the reviews performed by management and
the relevant Board Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion

that the Company's internal financial cont rols were adequate and effective during
FY 2021-22.

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of its knowledge and
ability, confirm that:

(i) I n the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have
been followed and there are no material departures;

(ii) They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair

view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the

loss of the Company for that period;

(iii) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(v) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and

such internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; and

(vi) they have devised proper sys

TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED
CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605
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tems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems
are adequate and operat ing effect ively.

10. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Directors:

The Company's composition of Board is an adequate blend of Non-executive Directors
including a Woman Director. In addition to provisions of the Act, the Board governance

quldelines adopted by the Board, set out the role and responsibility of the Board, composition
of the Board and code of conduct.

As on the date of the Boards' report, the Board of your Company consists of following
Members:

• Mr. Sanjay Dutt (DIN: 05251670)
• Mrs. Renu Basu (DIN: 03550920)
• Mrs. Reshma Chheda (DIN: 08364424)
• Mr. Sandeep Chhabda (DIN: 08331848)

- Director
- Director
- Director
- Director

During the year under review, Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar and Mr. Kamlesh Parekh, Ind ependent
Directors of the Company have resigned as Ind ependent Directors of the Company, with effect
from December 21, 2021, due to their other professional engagements. Further, due to
amended provision in the definiti on of "Listed Company" of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Company is no longer required to appoint any Ind ependent Directors on the Board.

After the Financial Year under review, Mr. Nipun Aggarwal have ceased to be the Director of
the Company w.e.f April 18, 2022 due to his personal pre-occupation and
Mr. Sandeep Chhabda and Mrs. Reshma Chheda have been appointed as an Additional
Director (Non Executive Non Independent ) on the Board of the Company w.e.f April 29, 2022
and June 13, 2022 respectively.

In accordance with the provisions of the Act and Articles of Association of the Company,
Mrs. Renu Basu, Director of the Company retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting (AGM) of the Company and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. A
resolution seeking her reappointment forms part of the Notice of the ensuing AGM.

During the year under review, the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary
relationship or transactions with the Company, other than sitting fees and reimbursement of
expenses incurred by them for the purpose of attending meetings of the Board/Committees
of the Company.

Key Managerial personnel:

TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED
CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605
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Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company are Mr. Khiroda Jena, Chief Financial Officer of the Company (appointed with effect
from August 07,2019) and Ms. Mrunal Shukla, Company Secretary of the Company (appointed
with effect from November 10, 2017).

Further, after the Financial Year under review, Mr. Bhavesh Madeka, has resigned as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company with effect from May 2, 2022 due to other
professional/pe rsonal engagements.

11. Number of Meetings of the Board

There were six meetings of the Board, held during the year under review. The said meetings

were held on June 28, 2021, August 31, 2021, November 12, 2021, December 10, 2021,
February 14, 2022 and March 22, 2022. The details of the presence of Directors are given

herein below:

Name of the Board Member Board Meeting Attendance

Mr. Sanjay Dutt 6 out of 6

Mr. Nipun Aggarwal 5 0ut of 6

Mrs. Renu Basu 6out of 6

Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar* 4 out of 4

Mr. Kamlesh Parekh* 4 out of 4

*Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar and Mr. Kamlesh Parekh, have resigned w.e.t December 21, 2021.

12. Board Evaluation

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance and
individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act.

The performance of the board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the
directors on the basis of criteria such as the board composition and st ructure, effectiveness
of board processes, information and function ing, etc.

The above criteria are broadly based on the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by the
Securities and Exchange Board of Ind ia on January 5, 2017.

The Board reviewed the performance of individual directors on the basis of criteria such as

the contribution of the individual director to the board and committee meetings like
preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution and

inputs in meetings, etc. and the same was discussed at the Board Meeting.
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13. Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)

During the year under review, the NRC Committee met once. The said meeting was held

on June 18, 2021. The details of the presence of Members are given herein below:

Name ofthe Member NRC Meeting Attendance

Mr. Kamlesh Parekh l out of 1
Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar lout of 1
Mr. Sanjay Dutt l out of 1

The Company's policy on directors' appointment and remuneration and other matters provided
in Section 178(3) of the Act is available at www.tatarea lty .in.

However, pursuant to the amended provision in the definition of " Listed Company" of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company is no longer required to constitute the NRC. Hence during
the year under review the NRC was dissolved.

14. I nternal Financial Control Systems and their Adequacy

Based on the framework of internal financial cont rols and compliance systems established and
maintained by the Company, work performed by the Internal, Statutory and Secretarial
auditors and external consultants and the reviews performed by management and the relevant
Board Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the
Company's interna l financial controls were adequate and effective.

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness
in the design or operation was observed. In the opinio n of the Auditors of the Company, there
exists an adequate internal contro l procedure commensurate with the size of the Company.

15. Audit Committee

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met Four time s. The said meetings
were held on June 28, 2021, August 31, 2021, November 12, 2021 and December 10,

2021. The details of the presence of Members are given herein below:

Name of the Member Audit Committee Meeting
Attendance

Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar 4 out of 4
Mr. Kamlesh Parekh 4outof4
Mr. Sanjay Dutt 4 out of 4
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However, pursuant to the amended provision in the definiti on of "Listed Company" of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company is no longer required to constitute the Audit Committee.
Hence during the year under review the Audit Committee was dissolved.

16. Auditors

The Shareholders of the Company at their Annual General Meeting held on September 23,
2019 appointed MIs. B S R & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No:
101248W/W-100022) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 years
commencing from FY 2019-20.

17. Statutory Auditor's Report and Secretarial Audit Report

The Statutory Auditor's report do not contain any qualifications, reservations, or adverse
remarks or disclaimer. Further, the Secretarial Audit Report do not contain any qualifications,
reservations, or adverse remarks or disclaimer. Secretarial audit report is attached to this
report as "Annexure A".

18. Risk Management

The Company is governed by the Risk Management Charter and Policy Documents. An
integrated Enterprise Risk Management (" ERM") Charter & Policy has been developed with
the objective of establishing a common understanding & methodology for ident ifying,
assessing, responding, monitoring & reporting to provlde management, the board of directors
with the assurance that key risks are being effectively managed. As per the said Policy, a Risk
Management Steering Committee ('RMSC') comprising of Mr. Sanjay Dutt, Director of the
Company and Functional Heads has been formed. The charter and policies provide the overall
framework for Risk Management process which includes risk identification, assessment,
evolution, treatment and other related process. The RMSC is the Apex Committee in the RM
Organization structure comprising of key decision makers within the Organization. It is
responsible for adopting and implementing the ERM Framework across the Organization. They
are charged with the responsibility of taking decisions to manage the risks and also report
about various initiatives to the Board and other stakeholders on a regular basis.

Based on said ERM framework, the risks identified by the Company are reviewed by the
executive team comprising of employees of the Company including the top management. Risk
identification is a continual process and appropriate mitigation plans are deployed as required.
All the risks are evaluated on the count of occurrence and impact. Based on the risk ranking,
high risk areas are identified and presented to the Board.

19. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

Your Company falls within the scope of the definition "infrastructure company" as provlded by
the Act. Accordingly, the Company is exempt from the provisions of Section 186 of the Act
(except Section 186(1) of the Act) with regards to Loans, Guarantees and Investments.
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20. Related Party Transactions

All contracts / arrangements / transactio ns entered into by the Company during the financial
year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's length basis
and did not attractthe provisions of Section 188 (1) of the Act. These contracts / arrangements
/ t ransactions were reviewed/approved by the Audit Committee (in its absence by the Board)
from time to time.

The Company has approved the policy on Related Party Transactions CPolicy") at its Board
Meeting held on May 18, 2015, to ensure due and proper compliance with the applicable
provisions of the Act. The said Policy also provides quidance for enteri ng into transactions
with related parties to ensure that a proper procedure is defined and followed for approval /
rati fication and reporti ng of transactions as applicable, between the Company and its Related
Parties.

During the year under review, all contracts / arrangements / transactions entered into by the
Company during the financial year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business
and on an arm's length basis and did not attract the provisions of Section 188 (1) of the Act.
Given that all the transactions entered by the Company during the year under review were at
arm's length the Company and in the ordinary course of business and that none of the
transactions were material in nature, the disclosure of related party transactions as required
under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act in Form No. AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company for
financial year 2021-22 and hence does not form part of this report.

Nevertheless, the Company has made disclosures of all related party transactions as per notes
to the standalone audited financial statements for the FY 2021 - 22.

21. Corporate Social Responsibility

During the year under review, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR) was
dissolved, since the Company was not meeting the requirements of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

22. Annual Return

As per the requirements of Section 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Act and Rules framed
thereunder, the annual return for FY 2021-22 in the prescribed Form No. MGT-7 shall be
placed on the website of the Company at www.tatarealty. in.
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23. Particulars of Employees

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs on February 19, 2021, had notified the amendments to the
Companies (Specification of definitions details) Rules, 2014, pursuant to the which the
Company will not be considered as Listed Company as per the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 read along with Rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, the disclosure pertaining to
remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is
not be applicable to the Company.

24. Disclosure Requirements

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable Secretarial Standards Issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and
that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

25. Deposits from Public

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public and as such, no amount on account

of principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on the date of the balance
sheet.

26. Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The particulars relating to the Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Outgo as per Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with

the Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in the "Annexure B" to this
report.

27. Cost Auditors

During the year under review, your Board had appointed Mis. Vinod C. Subramaniam & Co.,

Practicing Cost Accountant having their address at B-504, Mauli Chhaya CHS, Kurar Village,
Kokni Pada, Malad (East), Mumbai 400 097 as Cost Auditors of the Company for conducting

cost audit for the FY 2021-22. Further, during the Financial Year 2022-23, your Board had
reappointed the said Cost Auditor for conducting the cost audit of the Company for the

FY 2022-23 and accordingly, a resolution seeking approval of the members for ratifying the

remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for FY 2022-23 is provided in the Notice to the
ensuing Annual General Meeting.
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As required under Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company confirms
that it has prepared and maintained cost records as specified by the Central Government
under sub-section (1) of sect ion 148 of the Act for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.

28. Details of significant and material orders passed by the Regulator or Courts
or Tribunals impacting the Going Concern Status and Company's Operations
in Future

During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by any
regulators or courts or tribu nals impacting the going concern status and Company's operation
in future.

29. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position
of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year
of the Company and to which the financial statements relate and the date
of the report

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which

the financial statements relates and the date of this report .

30. Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy
on prevention, prohibit ion and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the
provisions of the Sexuai Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal ) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder for prevention and redressal of complaints of
sexual harassment at workplace.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment Committee (POSH) ("I nternal Complaints Committee") is in
place as per the policy and provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressa l) Act, 2013. There were no complaints relating to sexual
harassment, pending at the beginning of financial year, received during the year and pending
as on the end of the Financial Year 2021-22.

31. Vigil Mechanism

The Company has formulated a Vigil Mechanism Policy (" the Policy"), as per the Act, with a
view to provide a mechanism for employees and Directors of the Company to approach the
Ethics Counsellor to ensure adequate safeguards against victimisation. This policy is also
placed on the website of the Company at www .tatarealty .in and would help to create an
environment where individuals feel free and secure to raise an alarm where they see a
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problem. It will also ensure that complainant (s) are protected from retribu tion, whether within
or outside the organization and makes provision for di rect access to the chairperson of the
Audit Committee or person nominated in this regard as the case may be, in appropriate or
exceptional cases. Further, Whistle-blower complaints are dealt with by a due process of fully
investigating the issues and appropriate action being taken based on the enquiry. The Board
believes that there is no material impact of any such open matter on March 31, 2022, in the
financial statements of the company.

32. General

During the year under review, no fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Board. There
has been no change in the nature of business of the Company. There has been no application
made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. Further,
th ere has been no details, which shall be required to be given as regard to difference between
amount of the valuation done at the tim e of one-time settlement and the valuation done while
taking loan from th e Banks or Financial In stitutions along with the reasons thereof, as no such
events have been occurred.
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On Behalf of the Board of Directors
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BHATT & ASS elATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES LLP

Form No. MR·3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR E;NOE;O 31sT MARCH. 2022

(Pursuant to section 204(1) ofthe Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 ofthe Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personn el) Rules, 2014J

To,

The Members,

Tata Value Homes Limited.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of appl icable statutory provisions

and the adherence to good corporate governance practice by Tata Value Homes Limited

(hereinafter called "the Company") . Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that

provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts I statutory

compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books , papers, minutes books, forms and returns

filed and other records mainta ined by the Company and also the information provided by the

Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of

secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit

period covering the financia l year ended on 31s1 March, 2022, complied with the statutory

provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and

compliance mechanism in place to the extent. in the manner and subject to the reporting

made hereinafter:

We have examined the books . papers . minute books . forms and returns filed and other

records maintained by the Company, for the financial year ended on 31st March , 2022 ,

according to the prov isions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii.

D /101, Lata Annexe, Above Axis Bank, W. E. Highway, Boriva li (East ), M umbai - 400 066.
M ob. : 98671 51081, 8097985754 • Telefax : 022 2846 1715
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iii. The Depositories Act. 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed

thereunder - Not Applicable;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations

made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment; Overseas Direct

Investment and External Commercial Borrowings - ot Applicable;

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') :-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of

Shares and Takeovers) Requlations, 2011 - Not applicable;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)

Regulations, 2015;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2018 - Not Applicable ;

d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits

and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 and erstwhile the SEBI (Share Based

Employee Benefits) Regulations 2014 - Not Applicab le;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non­

Convertible Securities) RegUlations, 2021 and erstwhile the SEBI (Issue and

Listing of Debt Securities) RegUlations 2008;

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an issue and

Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993, regarding the Companies Act and

dealing with client - Not applicable;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of EqUity Shares)

Regulations, 2021 - Not applicable; and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of Securities)

Regulations, 1998 - Not applicable.
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vi. Further we report that , having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the

Company and on examination of the relevant documents, records in pursuance

thereof, on test-check basis and on declaration by the officer in charge , the

Company has complied with The Real Estate (Regulati on and Development) Act,

2016 and its Rules , regulation, notifications, Orders and Circulars etc ., pertain ing

to infrastructural Development Companies.

Further , as a precautionary measure against "COVID 2019", the audit process has been

modified , wherein documents /records etc. were verified in electronic mode . and have relied

on the representations received from the Company for its accuracy and authenticity.

We have examined compliances with applicable clauses of:

i. Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of the Company Secretaries of India for

General Meetings and Board Meetings.

ii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 wherein Notice of Annual General Meeting ('AGM ')

along with Annual Report was submitted to Stock Exchang e on September 27, 2021

as the AGM was held at a shorter notice.

During the financial year under review. the Company has complied with the provisions of the

Act , Rules , Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. The changes in the composition

of the Board of Directors that took place during the year under review were carried out in

compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice , agenda and detailed notes were given to all Directors to schedule the

Board Meetings at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and

obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and

for meaningful participation at the meeting .

We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for adequate

systems and processes in the company commensurate with its size & operation to monitor

and ensure compliance with applicable laws .
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We further report that during the year under report, the Compa ny has undertaken event /

action having a major bearing on the Company 's affairs in pursuance of the above referred

laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards , etc. referred to above viz.

(i) Dissolut ion of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee;

(ii) Resignation of Independent Directors ;

(iii) Dissolution of Aud it and Nomination and remuneration Committee;

(iv) Approval from members for Issuance of Non-Convertible Debentures on private

placemen t basis.

For Bhatt & Associates Company Secretaries LLP

Place: Mumbai

Date: 09/05/2022 Oesig

ACS No. : 36181, COP No. : 13376
UDI : A036181 0000264453

This Report is to be read with our letter annexed as Append ix A, which forms integral part of

this report.
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APPENDIX A

To,

The Members

Tata Value Homes Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the

company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based

on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.

The verificat ion was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in

secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a

reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books

of Accounts of the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,

requlaticns , standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited

to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted

the affairs of the company.

For Bhatt & Associates Co pany Secretaries LLP

Place: Mumbai

Date: 09/05/2022 Design

ACS No.: 36181, COP No.: 13376
UDIN: A036181 D000264453
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Annex- B

THE CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION. FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
The particulars relating to the Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Outgo as per Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as under:

A. Conservation of Energy

Considering the nature of activities undertaken by the Company, the Company has taken
certain feasible initiatives/steps towards sustainability, which include init iatives which has
impact on energy conservation.

Steps taken or Impact on Conservation of Energy

Sustainability is an integral part of the Company's business philosophy. The Board of Directors
of the Company has urged its stakeholders for undertaking appropriate steps for conservation
of energy. The Company has always endeavor to undertake appropriate steps for conservation
of energy. In th is regard, the Company has taken the following steps in the project:

a. Energy metering: Energy meters for external lighting, municipal water pumping,

grey water pumping (for flushing) and water pumping for landscaping;
b. Installation of energy efficient equipment: Minimum 60% efficiency for pumps

greater than 3HP and l SI rated pumps for others, minimum 75% efficiency for motors
greater than 3HP and lSI rated motors for others, elevators operating with intelligent

group controls and water level controllers;
c. Electric Charging Facility for Vehicles: Electric Charging Facility shall be provided

for 5 % of total parking;
d. Use of maximum daylight: Use of maximum Day light in Apartments and common

areas by providing glazed windows facing South /North Direction;
e. Use of natural ventilation: Use of natural ventilation in Apartments and common

areas by providing big size windows facing South /North Direction;
f . Energy efficient light fixtures: Use of Energy efficient fixtures like LED, T5 having

low power consumptions;

g. Low losstransformers: Use of Level 2 Transformers which have low / no load and

full load losses;
h. Energy efficient air conditioning: Use of 5 star rated AC having low power

consumption;

TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED
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i. Lighting Automation: Use of t imers and other energy saving devices for common
area lights, in case of day time it will switch off through automation; and

j . Home automation: Home Automation is done to reduce ideal mode power
consumptions of lights, fans, AC and other elect rical devices.

Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of Energy

a. Employee awareness: The Company has in its day to day working environment have

urged its employees for usage of electronic gadgets which saves energy, encouraging

carpooling, make them aware about water conservat ion, climate change, waste
management and energy conservation with a view to encourage water and energy

conservation.
b. Use of Solar Powered Lights in common areas and landscape to reduce power demand

of project.
c. At Corporate Office, Company switches off SO% AC plant during the day with 50%

running @ 24 degrees celsius. The Company has also kept water taps on low force

setting to save water and used signage's to minimize use of paper and water in
washrooms. Further, Lights are switched off in pockets beyond 6.30 pm as staff
leaves. Waste bottled water is being used for cleaning and plants.

Capita l investment on energy conservation equipment's;

During the year under review, the Company has not undertaken any capital investment on
energy conservation equipment.

B. Technology Absorption

(i) Efforts made towards technology absorption:

The Company endeavors to undertake alternatives for technology absorption. However, during
the FY 2021-22, the Company has not undertaken activit ies relat ing to technology absorption.

(Ii) Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitution:
The Company has not undertaken new technology implementation during the FY 2021-22.

(iii ) Imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning
of the financial year)-
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The Company has not imported any technology during the last three years immediately
preceding the FY 2021-22.

(Iv) Expendit ure incurred on Research and Development.

The Company has not incurred any expense on Research and Development during the
FY 2021-22.

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:
(Rs in Lakhs)

Total Foreign Exchange earnings and For the Financial For the Financial
outgo: Year Ended 31 st Year ended 31 st

March,2022 March,2021
Total Foreign Exchange Earned NIL NIL

Total Foreign Exchange Outgo NIL NIL

On Behalf of the Board of Directors
For Tata Value Homes Limited

•

Sanjay Dutt
Director
DIN: 05251670

Date: August 8, 2022
Place: Mumbai

Sandeep Chhabda
Director
DIN: 08331848
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B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

tath Floor, Central B Wing and North eWing,
Nesoo IT Park 4, Nesco Center,
Western Express Highway,
Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400 063

Independent Anditor's Report

To the Members ofTata Value Homes Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Telephone: +912262571000
Fax: +912262571010

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements ofTata Value Homes Limited (the" Company"), which
comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the standalone statement ofprofit and loss
(including other comprehensive income), standalone statement ofchanges in equity and standalone statement
ofcashflows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a snmmary
ofsignificant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its loss and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
ofthe Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's Responsibiiities for the
Audit ofthe Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by
us, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

1
B S R & Co, {a partnership firm with Registration No, BA61223)converted into B S R & Co. LLP
(a Limited LiabihtvPartnership with LLP Registration No. MB-B1Bll with ettecr from October 14, 2013

Registered Ollice

14th Floor, CentralB Wing and North eWing, Nesco IT P8rk4, Neece
Cantor,weetem Express Highway, Goregaon(East!,Mumbai - 400063



In view of the significance of the matter we have identified the
assessment of the going concern assumption as a key audit matter.

The Company's ability to continue as a going concern is dependent
upon its ability to negotiate/ renegotiate its financing arrangements
with existing/prospective lenders.

BSR&Co.LLP

Independent Anditor's Report (Continued)

Tata Valne Homes Limited

Key audit matter (contiuned)

Descrintiou of Kev Audit Matter
Gotnz Concern assessment ~ See note 1 b. to the standalone financial statements
The lcevaudit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
As at 31 March 2022, the Company's debts payable within one- In assessing the going concern assumption used in
year comprises amounts payable on Non-convertible debentures preparing the financial statements, our procedures
aggregate Rs. 19,500 lakhs and Commercial paper Rs. 10,000 included the following
Lakhs. The Company has projected cash outflows from operations - Evaluated the Company's assessment of the cash flow
in the aforesaid period. requirements of the Company based on budgets and

forecasts of future cash flows which were provided to us.
- Compared the cash flow forecast prepared in the prior
year including the underlying data and assumptions used
therein with the actual amounts in the current year.
-Read the credit ratings of the Company's instruments and
ascertained the maximum borrowing amount available to
the Company based on the said ratings.
- Examined the past history ofthe Company in refinancing
its borrowings and term sheets from prospective lenders,
raising funds to ascertain the availability of financing to
the Company.
~ Assessing the adequacy of disclosures in the financial
statements relating to uncertainties and mitigation thereof.

Revenue Recosnition - See note 22 to the standalone financial statements
The kev audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
Revenues from sale of residential units represents the largest Our audit procedures on Revenue recognition included the
portion of the total revenues of the Company. following:

- Evaluate the Company's revenue recognition accounting
In accordance with Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with policies, their application to the customer contracts vis a
Customers, the analysis of whether these contracts comprise of vis the requirements of the applicable accounting
one or more performance obligations, and wbether the standards;
performance obligations are satisfied over time or at a point in - Identification and evaluation of the design and
time, are areas requiring critical judgement by the Company. implementation of key controls over existence and
Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of residential and recording of revenue recognised for the projects along
commercial units to customers for an amount that reflects the with the testing of operating effectiveness thereof;
consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange - Evaluating the criteria applied by the Company for
for those units and the customer has the significant risks and determining the point in time at which revenue is
rewards of ownership ofthe asset. recognised;

- Conducting site visits during the year for selected projects
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration to understand the scope, nature and progress of the
received! accrued. Revenue is adjusted for estimated cost pending projects.
to be incurred by the Company for the completion ofthe project. - Considering the adequacy ofthe disclosures in the
The risk for revenue being overstated in an incorrect period standalone financial statements in respect of the
presents a key audit matter due to the financial significance and judgments taken in recognising revenue for residential
geographical spread of the Company's projects across different and commercial property units in accordance with Ind
regions in India. AS 115.
Considering the significance of revenue to the financial
statements the same has been considered as a key audit matter



Inventory may be held for long periods of time before sale
making it vulnerable to reduction in net realisable value
(NRV). This conld result in an overstatement of the value of
inventory when the carrying value is higher than the NRV.

Assessing NRV
NRV is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs necessary to make the sale and
estimated costs of completion (in case of construction work­
in- progress). The inventory of finished goods and
construction work-in- progress is not written down below cost
when completed flats/ under-construction flats / properties are
expected to be sold at or above cost.

BSR& Co.LLP

Independent Anditor's Report (Continued)

Tata Value Homes Limited

Key audit matter (coutinued)
NRV of Inventories - See note 8 to the standalone financial statements
The kev audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
The Company's inventory comprise of ongoing and Our audit procedures included the following:
completed real estate projects, inventory of the projects which - Evaluate the Company's accounting policies for
have not yet commenced. As at 31 March 2022, the carrying inventory vis a vis the requirements of the applicable
values of inventories amounts to Rs. 38,856.351akhs. accounting standards;

- We evaluated the design and implementation of
controls over determination of NRV of inventories
including the process, methodology and key
assumptions on selling price, estimated cost to
complete the project and tested the operating
effectiveness thereof;
- Evaluate the Company's judgement with regards to
application of write-down of inventory units by
auditing the key estimates, data inputs and assumptions
adopted in the valuations.
- Comparing the estimated construction costs to
complete each project with the Company's updated
budgets.
- We have tested the NRV of the inventories to its
carrying value in books on sample basis.

For NRV assessment, the estimated selling price is
determined for a phase, sometimes comprising multiple units.
The assessment and application of write-down of inventory to
NRV are subject to significant judgement by the Company.

As such inappropriate assumptions in these judgements can
impact the assessment of the carrying value of inventories.

Considering significance of the amount of carrying value of
inventories in the financial statements and the involvement of
significant estimation and judgement In such assessment of
NRV the same has been considered as kev audit matter.
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Key audit matter (continued)

Investment in Subsidiaries and loans to I!roun coronanies - See note 4 and 5 to the standalone financial statements
The kev audit matter How the matter was addressed in OUf audit

Recoverability of loans to subsidiaries and joint ventures

Recoverability of investments in subsidiaries and joint
ventures

In view of the significance of these investments and above,
we consider valuation / impairment of investments in
subsidiaries and joint ventures to be a key audit matter.

We have identified measurement of loans to subsidiaries and
joint ventures as key audit matter because recoverability
assessment involves Company's significant judgement and
estimate.

The Company has significant investments in and loan to its OUf procedures in assessing the management's
subsidiaries and joint ventures. As at 31 March 2022, the judgement for the impairment assessment included,
carrying values of Company's investment in its subsidiaries inter alia, the following:
andjoint ventures and loans given to its subsidiaries and joint - We assessed the Company's valuation methodology
ventures amounts to Rs. 7,302.91 lakhs and Rs. 16,172.52 applied in determining the impairment if any of the
lakhs, respectively. investments and loans;

-Evaluate the design and implementation and tested the
operating effectiveness ofcontrols over the Company's
process of assessment of impairment and approval of
forecasts.
- We obtained and read the valuations used by the
management (including by external valuer where
available) for determining the fair value (trecoverable
amount') of its investments and loans;
- We tested the fair value of the investment and loans
given as mentioned in the valuation report to the
carrying value in books;
- Made inquiries with management to understand key
drivers of the cash flow forecasts, discount rates etc
- Involved our valuation specialist to evaluate the
assumptions used by the management specialists. We
read the disclosures made in the financial statements
regarding such investments.
- Testing the assumptions and understanding the
forecasted cash flows of subsidiaries and joint ventures
based on our knowledge of the Company and the
markets in which they operate.
~ Assessing the comparabiity of the forecasts with
historical information.
- Assessing the net worth of subsidiaries and joint
ventures on the basis of latest available financial
statements.
- Assessing the controls for grant of new
loans/financial instruments and sighting the Board
approvals obtained. We have tested Company's
assessment of the recoverability of the loans/financial
instruments, which includes cash flow projections over
the duration of the loans. These projections are based
on underlying property development appraisals.
- Analysing the possible indications of impairment and
understanding Company's assessment of those
indications.
- Tracing loans advanced / repaid during the year to
bank statement.
- Obtaining independent confirmations to assess
completeness and existence of loans and advances
given to subsidiaries and joint ventures as on 31 March
2022.
- We read the disclosures made in the financial
statements regarding such investments and loans given.

The Company's investments in subsidiaries andjoint ventures
are carried at cost less any diminution in value. The
investments are assessed for impairment at each reporting
date. The impairment assessment involves the use of estimates
and judgements. The identification of impairment event and
the determination of an impairment charge also require the
application of significant judgement by the Company. The
judgement, in particular, is with respect to the timing, quantity
and estimation of projected cash flows of the real estate
projects in these underlying entities.

Due to the nature of the business in the real estate industry,
the Company is exposed to heightened risk in respect of the
recoverability of the loans granted to the aforementioned
parties. In addition to nature of business, there is also
significant judgment involved as to the recoverability of the
working capital. This depends on property developments
projects being completed over the time period specified in
agreements.
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Key audit matter (continued)

Other Information

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information, The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, but does not include the
standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The other information is expected to be made
available to us after the date of our auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusionthereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

When we read the Company's Directors' report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the martel' to those charged with governance and take necessary actions, as
applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Mauagement's and Board of Directors Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board ofDirectors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fail'
view of the state ofaffairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance ofadequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions ofthe Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board ofDirectors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis ofaccounting unless the Board ofDirectors either intends to
liquidate the Company 01' to cease operations, 01' has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Tata Value Homes Limited

Management's and Board of Directors Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements
(continued)

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or iu the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement ofthe staudalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to fmancial statements in place and the operating effectiveness ofsuch controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness ofaccounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Management and Board ofDirectors.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of standalone financial statements and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Ifwe conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of om auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a goingconcern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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Tata Value Homes Limited

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Andit of the Standalone Financial Statements (continned)
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit ofthe standalone financial statements ofthe current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences ofdoing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regnlatory Reqnirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Rep011) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central
Govermnent of India in terms of Section 143 (II) ofthe Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe Order, to the extent applicable.

2. (A) As required by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, we report that:

a) We have songht and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of oW' audit.

b) In our opinion, propel' books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone

statement ofcash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 ofthe Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received fromthe directors as on_31 March 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none ofthe directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2022Jrom being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

1) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to fmaneial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in"Annexure B" .

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule II
of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given tous:

cP The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 40 to the standalone
financial statements.

Ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d) (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in note 41 to standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced 01'

loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds 01' share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Company to 01' in any other persons or entities, including foreign
entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

• directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons 01' entities identified in any manner
whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of the Company or

• provide any guarantee, security 01' the like to 01' on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in note 41 to standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by
the Company from any persons 01' entities, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 01' otherwise, that the Company shall:

• directly orindirectly, lend orinvest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") by 01' on behalf of the Funding Party or

• provide any guarantee, security 01' the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

e) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f



BSR&Co.LLP

Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

Tata Valne Homes Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (contiuued)

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section i 97(i6) ofthe Act:

In our opinion aod according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Compaoy to its directors during the current year is in accordaoce with the provisions of
Section 197 ofthe Act. The remuneration paid to aoy director is not in excess ofthe limit laid down
under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details
under Section 197(i 6) ofthe Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. 101248W/WI00022

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 May 2022

Farhad Bamji
Partner

Membership No.1 05234
UDIN: 22105234AJTNPRJ522
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Annexure A to the Independent Anditors' Report on the standalone financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Referred to in paragraph I under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report of
even date)

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation ofProperty, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly clause (i)(a)(B) ofthe Order is not
applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records ofthe Company, the Company has a regular programme ofphysical verification of its Property,
Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased manner over
a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment
were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No discrepancies were noticed
on such verification..

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c)
ofthe Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the
year.

(e) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records ofthe Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Prohibition ofBenami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

(ii) (a) The Company's inventory comprises construction materials, construction work-in-progress and
fmished goods. The requirements ofparagraph 3(ii) ofthe Order are not applicable to construction work
in progress. The inventory of construction materials and finished goods has been physically verified by
management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and
procedures and coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed
on verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the
aggregate of each class of inventory.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis ofour examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five
crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis ofsecurity ofcurrent
assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks or
financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the Company.

l
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Annexure A to the Iudepeudeut Auditors' Report on the standalone financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

(iii) According to the information and explanation given to us and the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has made investments in companies and limited liability partnership and
has not made any investments in firms or any other parties. The Company has granted loans to companies
during the year, in respect of which the requisite information is as below. The Company has not provided
any guarantee or security and advances in the nature of loans to companies during the year. Further, the
Company has not provided any guarantee or security, granted any loans or advances in the nature ofloans,
secured or unsecured, to firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during the year.

(a) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has provided loans and guarantees to companies as below:

IRs. in Iakhs)

Advances in
Particulars Guarantees Security Loans nature of

loans

Aggregate amount during the year

- Subsidiaries' Nil Nil Nil Nil

- Joint ventures' Nil Nil 18,980.03 Nil

- Others Nil Nil Nil Nil

Balance outstanding as at balance
sheet date

- Subsidiaries' Nil Nil 16,716.68 Nil

- Jointventures* Nil Nil 612.85 Nil

- Others Nil Nil Nil Nil

•As per Companies Act, 2013

1
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report on the standalone financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures conducted
by us, in our opinion the investments made during the year and the terms and conditions of the grant
ofloans during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in am opinion, the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest have not been stipulated and accordingly we are unable to comment
on whether the repayments or receipts are regular. Further, the Company has not given any advance in
the nature ofloan to any party during the year.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of am examination of the
records of the Company, in case of loans given, the schedule for repayment of principal and payment
of interest have not been stipulated and accordingly we are unable to comment on the amount overdue
for more than ninety days.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of am examination of the
records of the Company, in case of loans given, the schedule for repayment of principal and payment
of interest have not been stipulated and accordingly we are unable to comment whether the loan or
advance in the nature ofloan granted falling due during the year has been renewed or extended or fresh
loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to same parties.

(I) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of am examination of the
records of the Company, in our opinion the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment
except for the following loans or advances in the nature of loans to its Promoters and related parties as
defined in Clause (76) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"):

(Rs. in lakhs)

All Parties Promoters Related Parties

Aggregate of loans/advances in
nature of loan -- -- --
- Repayable on demand CA)

~ Agreement does not specify any
18,980.03 -- 18,980.03

terms or period of repayment (B)

Total (A+B) 18,980.03 -- 18,980.03

Percentage of loans/advances in 100% -- 100%
nature of loan to the total loans
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for the year ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of Section 185 ofthe Act in respect ofloans covered by the said section. According
to the information and explanation given to us, the provisions of section 186 ofthe Act in respect ofthe
loan given, guarantee given 01' securities provided are not applicable to the Company, since it is covered
as a Company engaged in business of providing infrastructural facilities. According to the information
and explanation given to us, the Company has complied with the provision of Section 186 of the in
respect of the investment made during the year.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits 01' amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public.
Accordingly, clause 3(v) ofthe Order is not applicable.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148 (I) ofthe Act
in respect of construction industry and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and
records have been made and maintained. However, we have not carried out a detailed examination of
the records with a view to determine whether these are accurate or complete.

(vii) (a) The Company does not have liability in respect ofDuty ofcustoms, Service tax, Duty ofexcise, Sales
tax and Value added tax during the year since effective I July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into Goods and Services Tax GST. According to the information and explanations given to
us and on the basis of our examination of records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted
I accrued in the books ofaccount in respect ofundisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services
Tax ('GST'), Provident fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess and other statutory dues
have generally been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of GST, Provident fund,
Employees' State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess and other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March
2022 for a period ofmore than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Goods and services
tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess 01' other statutory dues as on 31
March 2022, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered 01' disclosed any transactions, previously
unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as
income during the year.
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(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment ofloans and borrowing or in the
payment of interest thereon to banks or financial institutions. In case of commercial papers and debentures
received from other lenders, the Company has not defaulted in its repayment. For Inter Corporate deposits
received from related parties, the schedule for repayment of principal and payment of interest have not
been stipulated and accordingly we are unable to comment on whether the Company has defaulted in
repayment of loans and borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to related parties.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bani, or financial
institution or goverument or goverument authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the management, term
loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination ofthe balance
sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term
purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements ofthe Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account ofor to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or joint ventures as defined
under the Act.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries,
joint ventures or associate companies (as defined under the Act).

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is
not applicable.

(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and
explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we
report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of
the audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) ofSection
143 ofthe Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Govermnent.
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(c) As represented to us by the management, lbere are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during tile year.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) ofthe Order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with related
parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the details of the
related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, the
Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered tile internal audit reports ofthe Company issued till date for tile period under audit.

(xv) In our opinion and according to tile information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions withits directors or persons connectedto its directors andhence, provisions
of Section 192 of tile Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank ofIndia Act,
1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank ofIndia Act,
1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank ofIndia. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to tile information and explanations provided to us, the Group (as per the provisions oftile
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) has more than one CIC as part ofthe Group.
The Group has five CICs which are registered with the Reserve Bank of India and one CIC which is not
required to be registered with the Reserve Bank of India.

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses ofRs. 4,274.34 lakbs in tile current financial year and Rs. 7,472.80
lakhs in tile immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation ofthe statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the
Order is not applicable.

(xix) We draw attention to Note I(b) to the standalone financial statements which explains that the Company
has incurred losses in current year and previous year and has accumulated losses as at 31 March 2022.
Further, the Company's current liabilities exceed its current assets as at 31 March 2022 by Rs. 6,037.21
lakhs.
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On the basis of the above and according to the information and explanations given to us, on the basis of
the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date ofthe audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period ofone year from the balance sheet date.
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period ofone year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the Company.
Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For B S R & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. 101248W/WI00022

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 May 2022

Farhad Bamji
Partner

Membership No. 105234
UDIN: 22105234AJTNPRI522
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Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(1) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of
our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Tata Value
Homes Limited ("the Company") as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit ofInternal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute ofChartered Accountants ofIndia(the "Guidance Note").

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management and the Board ofDirectors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
aud completeness ofthe accounting records, and the timely preparation ofreliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as "the Act").

Anditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on
Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal fmancial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements were established and
maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding of such
internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone fmancial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements (continued)

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reportiog and the preparation of standalone financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements include those policies and procedures
that (I) pertain to the maintenance ofrecords that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could
have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal fmancial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree ofcompliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For B S R & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. 101248WIWl00022

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 May 2022

Farhad Bamji
Partner

Membership No. 105234
UDIN: 22105234AJTNPRl522



Tata Value Homes Limited

Standalone Balance Sheet
as at 31 March2022

Particulars

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property,plant and equipment
Financialassets

i.Investments
ii.Loans
iii.Other financial assets

Income tax assets (net)
Deferred taxassets (net)
Total Non-Current Assets

2 Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets

i. Trade receivables
ii. Cash and cash equivalents
iii. Bank balances other than (ii) above
iv. Other financial assets

Other current assets
Total Current Assets

Total Assets

II EQUITY AND LIABll.ITillS

Equity
Equity share capital

Other equity
Total Equity

LIABILITIES

(~ in Lakhs)
Note As at As at

No. 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

3(a).(b) 33.10 28.31

4 7,302.91 11,021.87

5 16,172.52 19,057.76

6 171.53 113.16

7 1,034,80 884.53
7 21,31 1,342.39

24,736,17 32,448.02

8 38,856.35 42,898.58

9 8,012.14 8,062.76

IO 625.18 1,135.90

II 8,51

12 7.69 7.86
13 989.27 1,234.72

48,499.14 53,339.82

73,235.31 85,787.84

14 80,000.00 80,000.00

15 (61,400.31) (52,895.68)

18,599.69 27,104.32

2

3

Non-current liabilities
Financialliabilities
i. Borrowings
ii. Trade payables

A. Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
B. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

iii. Other financial liabilities

Total Non-Current Liabilities

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities

L Borrowings
ii. Trade payables

A. Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
B. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

iii. Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities

Provisions

Total current Ilabllltles

Total lIabilities

Total Equity and Liabillties

The accompanying notes 1 to 43 are integral part of the standalone financial statements

16

19(0)

17
18 (a),18 (b)

19(b)
20
21

19,996.21

99.27 147.11
22.30

99.27 20,165.62

47,759.50 33,435.41

3,333.25 2,762.93

250.26 236.72

2,826.92 1,715.85

366.42 366.99

54,536.35 38,517.90

54,635.62 58,683.52

73.235.31 85,787.84

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered accountants

Finn's Registration No: 101248WIW-I00022

For and on behalf oftbe Board of Directors of

Tuta Value Homes Limited

eIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605

Farhad Bamji
Partner
Membership No: 105234

Mumbai
Date 27 May 2022

Sanjay Dutt
Director

DJN: 05251670

Mrunal Shukla
Company Secretary
Membership No: A31734

Mumbai
Date 27 May 2022

j A T{~"o~t­c" 0: r---
Sandeep Chhabda

Director

DJN: 08331848

Khl'~
ChiefFinancial Officer

DIN: 06928529



Tata Value Homes Limited

Standalone Statement of profit and loss
for theyear ended31 March 2022

(~in Lalms)
Particulars Note For the year Forthe year

ended ended

N,. 31 March 2022 31 March2021

INCOME
I. Revenue from Operations 22 7,219.18 7,095.49
n. OtherIncome 23 1,565.25 1,993.30

m. Total Income 8,784.43 9,088.79

IV. EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 10,480.57 10,937.98
Changes in inventories of finished goods and project work-in-progress 24 (4,036.85) (4,488.16)
Employee Benefits Expenses 25 1,252.50 1,226.19
FinanceCosts 26 3,378.05 7,181.80
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 3(,),(6) 13.27 16.09
OtherExpenses 27 1,992.48 8,388.30

Total Expenses 13.080.02 23,262.20

V Loss before Impairment of loans given and investment in subsidiaries and joint (4,295.59) (14,173.41)
ventures

VI Impairment of loans given and investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures 28 2,860.45

V Loss before tax (IIIRIV) (7,156.04) (14,173.41)

Tax expense:
Current tax 13.60
Deferred tax charge 1,328.24 18.70

VI Total tax expenses 7 1,328.24 32.30

vn Loss for the year (V-VI) (8,484.28) (14,205.71)

vm Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurementsofpost-employment benefit obligations (27.50) 43.53
Income tax on the above 7.15

Other Comprehensive (Loss)llncomc for the year, net oftax (20.35) 43.53

IX Total Comprehensive Loss for the year (8,504.63) (14,162.18)

X Earnings per Equity share: 36
Basic and diluted earnings per share (face value on 101- each) (In t) (1.06) (3.48)

The accompanying notes 1 to 43 are integral part of the standalone financial statements

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered accountants
Finn's Registration No: 101248W/W·I00022

,

,~

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tata Value Homes Limited

CIN : U45400MH2009PLC195605

Farhad Bamji
Partner
Membership No: 105234

Mumbai
Date 27 May2022

Sanjay Dutt
Director
DIN: 05251670

Mrunal Shukla
Company Secretary
Membership No: A31734

Mumbai
Date 27 May 2022

Sandeep Chhabda
Director

DIN:08331848

Khl"~ \1"\';­
Chief~~

DIN: 06928529



Tata Value Homes Limited

Standalone Cash Flow Statement
for theyear ended31 March2022

Particulars

A. Cash flow from Operating activities
Net (Loss)before tax
Adjustmentsfor:
Depreciation and AmortisationExpense
Loss/(Profit) on sale of Property,Plant and equipment (Net)
Interest on income tax refund
Interest on financial assets at amortised cost
Interest on deposits with bank
Financecost
Impairment of leans givenand investmentsin subsidiariesand joint ventures
Impact ofNRV on inventory
Provisionfor Customer Compensation
Operating Loss before Working Capital Changes

Changes in working capital :
Decrease in trade receivables
Decrease in inventories
Decrease in other financialassets, other assets (current and non-current)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade peyables, other financial liabilities, other liabilities and
provisions(current and non-current)

Cash generated from Operating activities
Income Taxes paid (net)
Net Cash flows generated from Operating activities

B. Cash flow from Investing activities
(Purchase)of properly,plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property,plant and equipment
Loans granted
Repaymentof loans granted
Sale!(Purchase) of investments
Current Capital Contributionreceived back
Depositswith Bank
Interest received
Net Cash flows generated from Investing activities

C. Cash flow from Financing activities
Sharecapital issued
Proceeds fromborrowings
Repaymentof borrowings
Interestpaid
Net Cash flows generated from Financing activities

Net (decrease)! increase in Cash and Cash equivalents (A) + (ll) + (C)

Cash and cash equivalentsat the beginningof the year
Cash and cash equivalentsat the end of the year (refer note 10)

(~in Laldis)
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

(7,156.04) (14,173,41)

13.27 16.09
0.87 (0.86)

(17.93)
(1,535.93) (1,625,44)

(3.67) (0.08)
3,378.05 7,181.80
2,860.45

5.38 6,672.56
2.60 11.96

(2,435.02) (1,935.31)

50.62 95.18
4,197.61 4,795.65

245.63 191.44
1,594.10 (203.34)

3,652.94 2,943.62
(150.27) (54.02)

A 3,502.67 2,889.60

(20.13) (10.32)
1.20 2,42

(105.00) (1lJ.94)
2,899.75 30.00

(1,600.00) (27.00)
2,458.51

(63.21) (8,43)
1,626.42 127.99

B 5,197.54 0.72

40,000.00
54,125.00 29,995.00

(58.944.52) (62,086.04)
(4,391.41) (10,192.94)

C (9,210.93) (2,283.98)

(510.72) 606.34

1,135.90 529,56
625.18 1,135.90
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Tata Value Homes Limited

Standalone Cash Flow Statement (Continued)
for theyear ended31 March 2022

Notes:

i. The accompanyingnotes 1 to 43 are integralpart of the standalone financial statements

ii. The above Cash Flow Statement has been preparedunder the 'IndirectMethod' as set out in the AccountingStandard(IndAS) 7 - "CashFlow Statements".

Debt reconciliationstatement in accordance with INDAS 7

OpeningBalances
Long-termborrowings
Short-term borrowings

Changesas per Statementof Cash Flow
Long-termborrowings
Short-term borrowings

Non cash changes
AccruedInterest

ClosingBalances
Long-termborrowings
Short-termborrowings

31 March 2022

19,996.21
33,435.41

(496.21)
(5,175.91)

852.60

19,500.00
28,259.50

~ in Lakhs)
31 March 2021

52,710.63
35,515.68

(32,714.42)
(2,080.27)

2,703.65

19,996.21
33,435.41

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered accountants
Firm's Registration No: IOI248W/W-I00022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tata Value Homes Limited

elN : U45400MH2009PLC195605

Farhad Bamji
Partner
Membership No: 105234

Mumbai
Date 27 May 2022

Sanjay Dutt
Director
DIN: 05251670

Mrunal Shukla
Company Secretary
Membership No: A31734

Mumbai
Date 27 May2022

Sandecp Chhabda
Director

DIN: 08331848

Kh;,"d~)~
Chief~~

DIN: 06928529



Tata Value Homes Limited

Standalone statement of changes in equity
for theyearended 31 March 2022

A) Equity Share Capital

Partlculnrs

Opening balance

Changes in equityshareCIIp!!.l dueto priorperioderrors

Restated openingbalance

Changesin equitY shorecapitalduringtheyear

Clnslngbalunun

B) Other equity

Pnrtlculars

Balance as at 1 April H20

4>s. fur the year

(Less)IAdd: Transfer(to)lfrom Retainedearnings

Other comprehensivefuoome I (loss) for theyear(net of taxes)

Asat 31 Marcil, 2021

Balanceas at 1 April 2021
Loss fur theyellr

Othercomprehensive IncomeI (Io.s) for theyear(netoflMes)

Asat 31 March2022

Nutes

14

Note

('l'inLnkhs)

Asal Au'
31 March 2022 31 March2021

80,000,00 40,000,00

80,000,00 40,000.00

40,000.00

80,000,00 80,000,00

('l' in Lul<h.)

Reservesand Surplus

Debentureredemption
TotalComprehensive rncome Total

reserve Retained earnings Other comprehensive Total
incomeI (loss)

1,111.96 (39,847.61) 2.15 (39,845.46) (38,733.50)

(14,205.71) (14,205.71) (14,205.71)

(1,111.%) 1,111.96 1,1l1.96

43.53 43.53 43.53

(52,941.36) 45.68 (52,895.68) (52,895.68)

(52,94£.36) 45.68 (52,895.68) (52,895.68)
(8,484,28) (8,484,28) (8,484.28)

(20.35) (20.35) (20.35)

(61,425.64) 25.33 (61,400.31) (61,400.31)

The accompanying notes I to 43 are integral part ofthe standalone financial statements

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered accountants
Finn's RegistrationNo: iOi248Wrw-t00022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tata Value Homes Limited

CIN: U45400MH2009PLC19560S

Farhad Bamji
Partner
Membership No: 105234

Sanjay Dutt
Director
DIN: 05251670

Mrunal Shukla
Company Secretary
Membership No: A31734

Sandeep Chhabda
Director

DIN: 08331848

Mumbai
Date 27 May 2022

Mumbai
Date 27 May 2022



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

('~ in lakhs)

Background

Tata Value Homes Limited (CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605) is a Company limited by shares was
incorporated on 8 September 2009 and is a 100% subsidiary of Tata Housing Development Company
Limited. The company is into real estate development and its key activities include project
conceptualizing and designing, development, management and marketing.

1. Basis of Preparation

a. Statement of Compliance with Ind AS

The standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), [Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time)] and presentation
requirements of division II of schedule III to the Companies Act,2013 and other relevant provisions of
the Act. The accounting policies followed in the preparation of these fmancials statements are the same
as those ofthe previous year except for the adoption ofInd AS 116 Leases, which replaces the existing
lease standard, Ind AS 17 leases, and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. It
introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees.

All of the Company leases at I April 2019 were either cancellable or short term or had a remaining
period ofless than one year from that date. Accordingly, the transition to Ind AS 116 did not have any
impact on the financial statements of the Company as at that date.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board ofDirectors of the Company on
27"' May 2022.

b. Going Concern

As at 31 March 2022, the Company's short-term borrowings comprising commercial paper and non­
convertible debentures ('NCD") (including current maturities of long-term borrowings) aggregate Rs
29500.00 lakhs. In addition, the Company has working capital loans ofRs 36.32Iakhs. The Company's net
current liabilities aggregate Rs 54,536.35 Lakhs. The current assets of the Company aggregate to Rs
48,499.14 Lakhs and include inventories ofRs 38,856.35 Lakhs which due to their nature may be realizable
in periods beyond I year. Management has forecasted the future cash flows on the basis of significant
assumptions as per the available information. These forecasted future cash flows indicate that the cash flows
from its operations may not be adequate for meeting its funding requirements including repayment of
borrowings due in the next one year from the date of approval of the financial statements. Thus, the
Company's ability to meet its obligations depends on generation of adequate funds from operations,
continued and additional funding from the lenders! markets including the possibility of refinancing of
borrowing facilities. The Management is confident, based on discussions with prospective lenders, past
history of the ability to refinance borrowings and strong credit rating enjoyed by Company's existing
facilities, that its plans for generation of funds (including borrowings) are feasible and will be adequate for
the Company to meet its obligations as and when they fall due. Accordingly, the financial statements.of the

/'



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(~ in Iakhs)

Company for the year ended 31 March 2022 have been prepared on the basis that the Company is a going
concern.

c. Historical cost convention

The standalone financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except
for certain items that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies.

d. Functional and presentation currency

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Company. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless
otherwise indicated.

2. Significant accounting policies

a. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and are net of
cancellations, value added taxes, service tax, GST, other applicable taxes and amount collected on
behalf of third parties.

i, Revenue from real estate development projects

The Company enters into contracts with customers to sell property that are either completed or
under development.
The sale of completed property constitutes a single performance obligation and the Company
recognizes revenue when the same has been satisfied.

Company recognise revenue when the below mentioned conditions get satisfied;

occupancy certificate for the project is received by the Company
possession is either taken by the customer or offer letter for possession along with the
invoice for the full amount of consideration is issued to the customer
substantial consideration has been received and the Company is reasonably certain that
the remaining consideration will flow to the entity.
there are no legal claims/ complains been made by the customer

The Company considers whether there are promises in the contract that are separate performance
obligations or are to be delivered even after completing the aforesaid conditions and to which a
portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated and if so the Company allocates the
attributable transaction price and as control is deemed to have passed to the customer recognizes
revenue over time as the related obligations are satisfied.

For contracts relating to the sale of property under development, the Company is responsible for
the overall management of the project and identifies various goods and services to be provided.
The Company accounts for these items as a single performance obligation because it provides a
significant service of integrating the goods and services (the inputs) into the completed property,
(the combined output) which the customer has contracted to buy. ,:/~- "
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Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(~ in lakhs)

ii. Project ManagementlMarketing fees
Revenue from proj ect management/marketing services is recognised in the accounting period in
which services are rendered in accordance with the substance of the agreement.

iii. Other Income from Customers

Other income from customers are accounted on accrual basis in accordance with the terms of
agreement/allotment letters.

b. Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has
been established (if it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount
of income can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on
a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

c. Construction Costs

Construction costs comprise project costs incurred to enable the Company to complete its performance
obligations. These include cost of land and cost of development rights, construction and development
costs, borrowings costs incurred and include cost of development of common facilities and amenities.

These costs are allocated to each unit of sale (residential or commercial) on a systematic basis as
construction progress and are expensed when the related revenue in respect of the unit is recognised.

Pending recognition of revenue, the costs are accumulated and disclosed as construction work in
progress/Finished goods within inventory.

d. Income tax

Current tax:
Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable profit for the year.

Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the standalone statement of profit and loss
because of items of income or expenses that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax:
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of the assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profits. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available, against
which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit
may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred
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tax asset only to the extent that is has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing
other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can
be realized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in standalone Statement ofProfit and Loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
current tax and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic
benefits in the form of adjustment to the future current tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is
reasonable certainty of it being set off against regular tax payable within the stipulated statutory period.
MAT credit is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of MAT credit is written
down to the extent there is no longer reasonable certainty to the effect that the Company will pay regular
tax during such specified period.

e. Leases - as a lessee

Policy applicable before I April 2019

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company, as lessee, has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease's
inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or
other fmancial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the
Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases. -
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Policy applicable after I April 2019

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 effective from April I 2019 using modified retrospective
approach. For the purpose of preparation of Financial Information, management has evaluated the
impact of change in accounting policies required due to adoption of Ind AS 116 for year ended March
312020.

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified assets, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contact involves the use ofan identified asset
(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period
of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use ofthe asset.

As a lessee, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier ofthe end of the useful life of the right-of- use asset or the end of the
lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those
of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the fixed payments,
including in substance fixed payments; The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The Company has used number of practical expedients when applying Ind
AS 116: - Short-term leases, leases of low-value assets and single discount rate.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases oflow-value assets. The Company recognises the
lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term.
The Company applied a single discount rate to a portfolio ofleases ofsimilar assets in similar economic
enviromnent with a similar end date

f. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, Cash comprises cash on hand and
demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of
three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdraft and cash credit are disclosed under current borrowings in financial liability
in the balance sheet. •/.
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g, fuventories

Construction costs comprise project costs incurred to enable the Company to complete its performance
obligations, These include cost of land and cost of development rights, construction and development
costs, borrowings costs incurred and also include cost of development of common facilities and
amenities,

Inventories comprises of cost of construction material, finished residential or commercial properties
and costs ofprojects under construction/development (construction work-in-progress), Inventories are
valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, The cost of construction material is determined on
a weighted average basis,

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course ofbusiness less estimated costs
of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

h, Financial Assets

Classification
The Company classifies fmancial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of its business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Initial recognition and measurement
The Company recognises fmancial assets when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the financial assets are classified in three categories:

• Debt instruments at amortised cost
• Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss
• Equity investments

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a, The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b. Contractual terms ofthe asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
ofprincipal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such fmancial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method, Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is included in
finance income in the Standalone statement ofprofit and loss, The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the Standalone statement ofprofit and loss,

Debt instruments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Debt instruments included in the fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) category are measured at
fair value with all changes recognised in the Standalone statement of profit and loss,
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Equity investments
All equity investments other than investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate are measured
at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other
equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by­
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to the Standalone statement of profit and loss, even on sale of such
investments.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Standalone statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognised when:

a. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
b. the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
c. the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the

asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets
The Company applies 'simplified approach' measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the
following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, and bank balance.

b. Trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime expected credit loss at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification
The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case ofloans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Standalone
statement ofprofit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
transactions costs. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Standalone statement of
profit and loss.



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(~ in lakhs)

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition ofthe original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Standalone
statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Equity Instruments
Equity instruments are recognised at the value of the proceeds, net of direct costs of the capital issue.

i. Property, plant and equipment

Recognition & Measnrement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises:

its purchase price, includes non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and
rebates.
any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located.

If significant parts ofan item ofproperty, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) ofproperty, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss
on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Capital work-in-progress in respect of assets which are not ready for their intended use are carried at
costs, comprising of direct costs, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

Subseqnent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefit associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Disposals or retirement
Any gains or losses arising on the disposals or retirement of an item ofproperty, plant and equipment is
deterruined as difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in standalone Statement ofProfit and Loss.

j. Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is provided using the written down value method using the useful life as follows:
Assets Usefullife
Buildings 60 years
Office Equipment 5 years
Computers 3 years \
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Furniture and Fixtures
Electrical Fittings
Motor Vehicles
Cellular Phones

10 years
10 years
8 years

2.5 years

Leasehold improvements are amortised over lease ofthe estimated useful life ofthe asset or the lease period.
The Lease period where the Company is lessee includes the periods where the Company has the unilateral
right to renew the lease and intends to do.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

k. Capital Work-in Progress

Capital expenditure on assets not owned by the Company is reflected as a distinct item in Capital Work­
in Progress till the period of completion and thereafter in the Property, plant and equipment.

I. Intangible assets

Intangible assets purchased is stated at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Amortisation methods andperiods
The Company amortises cost of software over a period of 3 years on a straight-line basis.

m. Impairment ofproperty, plant & equipment and intangible assets

The carrying amounts of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets are reviewed at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indications exist, the recover able amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

An impairment loss is recognised in the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss wherever the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of the asset's fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using appropriate discount factor. When there is an indication that an
impairment loss recognised for the asset in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have
decreased such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the standalone Statement ofProfit and Loss.

n. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest, other costs incurred and exchange differences arising from foreign
currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Borrowing costs,
allocated to and utilised for qualifying construction project I assets, pertaining to the period from
commencement of activities relating to construction I development of the qualifying construction project I
assets up to the date of substantial completion of project I capitalisation of such asset are added to the cost
of construction project I assets. Capitalisation ofborrowing costs is suspended and charged to theStatement
ofProfit and Loss during extended periods when active development activity on the qualifying construction
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project / assets is interrupted. A qualifying construction project / asset is an asset that necessarily takes
substantial time or more to get ready for its intended use or sale and includes the real estate properties
developed by the Company.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowing pending their expenditure on
qualifying construction project / assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

o. Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made ofthe amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end ofthe reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not require an outflow ofresources embodying economic benefits or the amount
of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
in respect ofwhich likelihood ofoutflow ofresources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision
or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are not disclosed in the financial statements unless an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

p. Employee benefits

i. Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

(a) Defined benefit plan

The Company's obligation towards gratuity to employees, post-retirement medical benefits and
ex-directors pension obligations is determined using the Projected Unit Credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Re-measurement, comprising
actuarial gains and losses, the effect ofthe changes to the asset ceiling and the return on plan asset,
is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in the retained earnings and not reclassified to
profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in the standalone Statement of Profit or Loss in the
period of a plan amendment. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to
the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets./;:rhj~ cost is
recognised as employee benefit expense in the standalone statement ofprofit and Ioss.:": . ,
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(b) Defined contribution plan

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is
provided. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in future payments is available.

ii. Other Long-term employee benefit obligations
The Company's obligation towards other long-term employee benefits in the form of compensated
absences and long service awards are based on actuary valuation. The valuation is carried out using the
Proj ect Unit Credit Method as per Ind AS 19 to determine the Present Value ofBenefit Obligations and
the related Current Service Cost and, where applicable, Past Service Cost.

iii. Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service
are recognized in respect ofemployees' services up to the end ofthe reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

q. Dividends to equity shareholders
Dividend to equity shareholders is recognised as a liability and deducted from shareholders' equity, in the
period in which the shareholders have the right to receive the dividend which in the case of interim
dividends are when these are declared by the Board of Directors of the Company and when these are
approved in the Annual General Meeting of the Company in any other case.

r. Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") of the Company. The CODM, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Managing
Director & CEO of the Company.

s. Foreign Currency Transactions
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation ofmonetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year-end exchange rates are generally recognised in standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

1. Operating cycle
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current based on operating cycle
determined in accordance with the guidance as set out in the Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013.
The operating cycle of the Company is deterruined to be 12 months.

u. Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of the standalone financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures as at date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts ofthe revenues and expenses for the years presented. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions andconditions..
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The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

a) Critical Judgements

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

i. Discount rate used to determine the carrying amount of the Company's defmed benefit
obligation:
In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management
considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of
the post-employment benefit obligation.

ii. Contingences and commitments:
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigations and other
claims against the Company. Where the potential liabilities have a low probability of
crystallising or are very difficult to quantify reliably, the Company treats them as contingent
liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the fmancial
statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the outcome of the legal proceedings,
the Company does not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on fmancial position or
profitability.

iii. Classification of entities as joint ventures:

The below entities are limited liability entities whose legal form confers separation between the
parties to the joint arrangement and the Company itself. Furthermore, there is no contractual
arrangement or any other facts and circumstances that indicate that the parties to the joint
arrangement have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of the joint arrangement.
Accordingly, these entities are classified as joint ventures of the Company.
1. Smart Value Homes (Peenya project) Private Limited (Upto 20"' May 2021)
2. Smart Value Homes (New Project) LLP
3. Arvind and Smart Value Homes LLP
4. Land Kart Builders Private Limited

The assessment of control is made since the remaining share in the respective entities is held by
one unrelated partner. Also, that in case of these entities, neither ofthe parties have the practical
ability to direct the relevant activities unilaterally as relevant activities require consent of both
parties. I-Iencethe management has concluded that the Company does not have unilateral control
over these entities.

b) Key sources of estimatiou uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:
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I. Impairment for doubtful recoverable, advances and financial assets (Refer note 4, 5, 12 and
13):
The Company makes impairment for doubtful recoverable, advances and financial assets based
on an assessment of the recoverability. The identification of doubtful debts requires use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the other receivables and advances and impairment
expenses in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

ii, Valuation of deferred tax assets (refer note 7)
The Company review the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting
period.

iii. Provision for customer compensation (refer note 21)
Provision is made for estimated compensation claims to be paid to customers in respect ofdelay
in handing over possession offlats. These claims are expected to be settled in the next financial
year. Management makes an estimate of the provision based on expected time of delivery and
taking into consideration past experiences.

iv. Net realisable value of inventory (refer note 8)
Management makes an estimate of the net realisable value of inventory based on expected
realisation from inventory taking into consideration past experiences/valuation reports.
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Property, plant and equipmeut

(f in Lakhs)

Particulars Office Equipments Furniture & Computers Electrical Fittings Total
Fittings

Year ended 31 March 2022

Gross carrying amount

Balanceas at 1 Apri12021 37.88 16.22 55.00 0.68 109.78

Additions 2.93 - 17.20 - 20.13

Disposals (7.75) (0.18) (20.39) (0.63) (28.95)

Balance as at 31 Marcil 2022 ICJ 33.06 16.04 51.81 0.05 100.96

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April 2021 29.68 12.98 38.23 0.58 81.47

Depreciationcharge during the year 1.53 0.54 11.18 0.02 13.27

Disposals (6.49) (0.16) (19.67) (0.56) (26.88)

Balance as at 31 March 2022 [DI 24.72 13.36 29.74 0.04 67.86

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2022 [e-D] 8.34 2.68 22.07 0.01 33.10

Year ended 31 Marclt 2021

Gross carrying amount

Balance as at I Apri12020 51.45 21.76 58.89 0.68 132.78

Additions 10.32 - 10.32

Disposals (13.57) (5.54) (14.21) (33.32)

Balance as at 31 March 2021 [AJ 37.88 16.22 55.00 0.68 109.78

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Balance as at 1 Apl"il 2020 40.20 17.07 39.54 0.54 97.35

Depreciation charge during the year 2.32 LtD 12.42 0.04 15.88

Disposals (12.84) (5.19) (13.73) (31.76)

Balance as at 31 March 2021 [B] 29.68 12.98 38.23 0.58 81.47

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2021 [A-B] 8.20 3.24 16.77 0.10 28.31

3 (a) Tangible assets

3 (b) Intangible assets
(~ in Lakhs)

Particulars Computer software Total

Year ended 31 March 2022

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 0.21 0.21

Closing gross carrying amount 0.21 0.21

Accumulated amortisation

Opening accumulated amortisation 0.21 0.21

Amortisation during the year

Closing accumulated amortisation 0.21 0.21

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2022 - -

Year ended 31 March 2021

Gross carrying amount

Balance as at I Apri12020 0.21 0.21

Closing gross carrying amount 0.21 0.21

Accumulated amortisation

Amortisation during the year 0.21

Closing accumulated amortisation 0.21 0.21

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2021 -
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Particulars

Investments" Non-current

(A) FuJlypaid-up unquoted cquity Instmmcnls

(I) In subsidiary companlcs mcasured at cost less Impnirmcut

SmartValne Homes(Boisar)PrivateLimited
10,000(As at31 March202l: 10,000)equitysharesoft 10 each

HLT Re.<;idency PrivateUnited
10,000fAB at H March2021: 10,000)equitysbaresoft 10 each
Les,: Provisionfor impainnent

NortbBombayRc.11 EstatePrivateLimited
10,000 (As at 31 March2021 : 10,000)equitysharesoft 10 each
Less:Provisionfor impainnent

SmartValueHomes (Pecnya Project)PrivateLimited(w,ef 10thJune 2021)

25,00,000 (AB at31 March2021: Nil) equitysharesof~ 10 each

fll) In Joint venturcs measured at cost Jess impnlnncut

SmartValueHomes(PeenyaProject)PrivateLimited(upto 10thJuoe2021)
Nil (AB at 31 March2021: 1,275,000)equity,hares oft 10each

(fin Lal.hs)
Al at As at

31 Marcil 2022 31 March2021

1,800,08

LaadK"rt BnildersPrivateLimited
10,410(As at 31 March2021: 10,410)equityshareseH 10each

(JU) In Asmclntc

S)'1lergiZllJ1l SustamableFoundation
150(A, at 31 March2021: 150)cquityshnresoft 10 each

(B) tnveseueneIn Parfncr;sbip firml

1,04

0.02

1,04

0.02

Fixed Capital In Joint Ventures measured at cost Icss impairment
Arvindand SmartValneHome.'l LLP
SmmtValuesHomes(New Project)LLP

Cnrrcnt cnpUn!in Jnlnt vemares measurcd at eost tessImpairment

Arvindand SrunrtVn!ueHomesLLP
LessProvisionfor impainnent

SmartValnesHomes(New Project)LLP
LessProvisionfor impainncnt

Aggregate amount ofunlluoted tuvcsnuenrs
Aggregate amouot of impairment

5 Loans -Non-eurrent

0.50 0.50
0.51 0.51

6,384.07 6,384.07
(2,485.00)

375.94 2,834.45
1375.45)

7,302.91 II 021.87

10,164.36 11,023.87
2,86t.45 2.!IO

UllSeC"rOO, consideredgood
-IntercorporatedepositswIthrelatedparties (refernote 29.2)

Unsecured, creditimpaired
-Intercorporatedepositswithrelatedparties
Less: Pmvisicn for ;lllpairrmmt oflullllS

5.1 Luan, Receivables breakup fol' seenrity details
wans Receivablesconsidered good- Secnred
Lo""" Receivablesconsidered guod - Unsecured
LollllS Receivables whichhave,ignificantincreascin cnxlitrisk
LoansReceivables<:redit impaired

t6,t72.52

1,157.00°1157.00)

16 t72.52

15,015.52

1,157.00
1(l,ln.52

19,057.76

1,157.00
(1,157,00)

19057.76

17,900,76

1,157,(I1l
19057,76

5.2 Loanl Reeelvabics

Sr. Particularl
N,.

Asar
atMarcll20n

Amount of loans % to tbe total
IAdvoutstandlng Loans and

Advances

hoC
31 March2021

Amonnlofloans % to thetutal
IAdv uut5tnnding LoansEII1d

Advances
(a) Promotel1l
(b) DireclOI1l
(0) KMPs
(d) RelatedPmies
(0) Others

Total

6 Other financilll assets -Non-current

Unsecured, consideredgood
Securitydeposit,

• from relllledparties (refernote 29.2)
-OthCf:3

Balancewith bank in fixeddeposits,withmaturitybeyond12 month, (refer
note 6.1 & 6.2 below)

16,172.52

16,1n.52

100%

tOO%

19,057.76

19057,76

104.65

66.88

100%

100%

0.04
104.61

8.51

t71.5J 113.16

Noie
6.1 FixeddepositsofRs 8,51 Lakh£ placedwith lOBI Baok arounder lioniu fuvonrof AssislantCommissioner ofCoUllllereial T~xes, Bangalorefurthe<iisputed

amountrelatedto assessmentolrlerforVAT (AY2017-18) on behnlfofoneoflbegroup company_

6.2 FixeddepositsofRs 63.21 LnkhsplacedwllhlOBI Bank are under lie" in f.vo\lf of AssiSlElllt Cemmi'sioneIofCommercialTa~cs, fl1tng.loreforthedisputed
amountrehltedto asses,memorderforVAT(AY 2016-17) on bellalfef oneoftllc groupcompany.



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

7 Income Tax
(fin Lnkhi)

Particulars Asal
31 March 2022

Aso!

31March202]

(oj Income1Mexpense

Currentta"

Adjustments fur CtuTeal til:<ofprjo. periods 13.60

Tntnlcurrent tax expense 13,60

Deferred Tax

MATcrcdil 1,319.26

DocreEl.Se in deferredtax assets 2.83 13.70

Income til:<expcn,e 1,321.09 32.30

(b) The r"Conclllatlon of estimatedIncometax "xpense at slatutory incometax rille to incomelax expensercpol1C<lln stalement "fpraflt alld 10.'1 Is 08follows:

Loss t>efore tax (7,156.04) (14,173.41)

SlnMoryinCOllleIIlXrare 26.00% 26.00%

Expe:;ted incomelax expense (1,860.57) (3,685,09)

Differences due to'

NotionalIncomefrOID Ho"sePropertynotprovidedIIIbooks 4,~ 4.89
ReveriwofDTAcreatedem-li..-

DTA nol creEl100 on current year loss carried furward 3,176.77 3,32754

DTA not "r""ted on current y= Impairment pruvisiull.'l

Permanent (Iift\.'Hilce

Interest cost capitalised to project, included ill Cost of sales 384.96

Others

Tot"llneOllle tax e.pense 1,321.09 32.30

Parlkulars Aut As"t

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

(e) Income tR' a"ot.

OpeningbaJuncc 884.53 826,18

Add: Adv""oeTElX,net of provision 150.27 229.47

Les' : Refiulll received (17l.12)

Total 1,034.80 884.53

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS /ILiABIUTIESI (NET!:

(e) Deferred Tax ~sset(net)

'the balnllccC(JlIIpri"",tClIlpormydifferenccs nttributablo to

Dercrl'ed inc<>me t~x ~8"ets

MAT credit ClItitlement 1,318.26

Difference bc1weenbook balauce mId lax balallcc ofPrup<rrty, plMt aud equipment 12.90 14.75

Provisions

Other ItClIlS (on ",Joplion OfllldAS 115) BAI 9.38

Total deferred lax assets 21.31 1,342.39

Deferred income tax liabilitIes

Provision for employee benefit expenses

Total dcforr<d tax tlahllll!e.'

Net deferred tax assets I (Iluhllltie,) (net) 21Jl 1,342.39

7 Income Tax (Continue,l)
(t' I I h)111 .a, s

(e) MovemUl1ls ill deferred rnx lIHblllti.. Dlffel'cl1eCin Intere,t Included I" Total
metluKlof Illvel1torie~

computation of
profit hetweon
hocks and tax

At 31 Marcil 2020

Charged I{creditcd)

- to profit or lo.'s

At 31 March 2021

Charged I (credited)

- to profil or 10"'

At31 M"rell20n

(f) Movements ill deferred ta~ assets 1\1ATeredlt PropcrlY,llla"t 'rae tosses Defined benefll Impairment Other ToM
el1lltlemcnt al1d equlpmcl1t ohllgatlon P,·ovl.,lol1' items

At31March2020 1,318.26 15.93 26.90 I,~6L09

(Clta"gedjl rrelBtcd

. 10 proflt or to," (1.18) (17.52) (18,.70)

- to other 00lllprdl~'",ive income ;'
,
/' C'

At 31 March 2021 1,~18.26 14.75 9.38 /1,342.~:9

(Ch"rged) I crcdltrd
"

,

- to profil or less (1.3I~.26) (1.85) (8.12) (1;32li.21)

- to other CllllllJrchc"sivcincome 7.15 : ,:,: \" j.r\~~
"Co'

c,1
At 31 Marcl,2022 12.90 8.41 \\.c_' .,i'113(

" • 1'~



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

Particulars Asat
31 March 2022

(f in Lakhs)
As at

31 March2021

8 Inventories

Constructionmaterial
Constructionwork-in-progress
Finished goods

67.10
30,218.17
8,571.08

121.22
34,249.17

8,528.19

38,856.35 42.898.58

Notes:

8.1 Disclosure with respect to inventories which are expected to be recovered after more than twelve months are 110t provided as it is practically not feasible to disclose the same
considering the nature of the industry in which the Companyoperates.

8.2 The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year in respect of continuing operations was ~ 6,443.72 lakhs (for the year ended 31 March 2021 : ~ 6,449.82
lakhs).

8.3 Outing the year, company has written down inventories to the extent of~ 5.38 Lakhs(for the year ended 31 March 2021: ~ 6,672.56 Lakhs).

9 Trade receivables

Breakup for security details
Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good 8,012.14 8,062.76
Significant increase in credit risk

Credit impaired

Total receivables* 8,012.14 8,062.76

Unsecured, considered good

- [TOm related parties 7,919.33 7,920.43

- Others 92.81 142.33

Total receivables* 8,012.14 8,062.76
'" Refer Trade receivable ageing in Note 9.1

9,1 Trade receivables ageing analysis

outstandlns as on March 31 2022
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of transaction as on 31-03-2022 Total

Less than 6 6 months- 1 l-2Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years
months Years

(a) Trade Receivables considered good - Secured; -
(b) Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured; 4.22 458.68 378.07 4,674.68 2,496.49 8012.14

(c) Trade Receivables which have significant Increase in Credit -
Risk; and

(d) Trade Receivables - credit impaired. - - -

(e) Trade Receivables considered Doubtful - Usecured; - -

autstandtns as on March 31 2021
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of transaction as on 31-03-2021 Tolal

Less than 6 6 months - 1 1-2Years 2·3 Years More than 3 Years
months Years

(a) Trade Receivables considered good - Secured; -
(b) Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured; 2.30 853.83 313.64 4,484.30 2,408.70 8062.76
(c) Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit - -
Risk; and

(d) Trade Receivables- credit impaired. -

(e) Trade Receivables considered Doubtful- Usecured;

.. .,



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

10 Cash and cash equivalents- current

Balances with banks- in current accounts #
Deposit with maturity ofless than 3 months

625.18

625.18

1,135.90

1,135.90

11 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Fixed deposit with maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months

# Includes balances with banks - in RERA specified accounts, which shall be used only for specified purposes as defined under Real
Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016.

8.51

8.51

113.32 597.22

12 Other financial assets -Current

Unsecured, considered good

Deposits with others 7.69 7.86

Unsecured, Credit impaired

Interest Accrued (refer note 29.2) 1,005.27
Less: Provision for impairment (1,005.27)

7.69 7.86

13 Other current assets

Unsecured, considered good

Deposit with Government Authorities 0.45 0.45
Balances with government authorities 106.34 158.24
Prepaid expenses 585.76 36.53
Advances to vendors

• related parties (refer note 29.2) 12.30 20.60

- Others 284.42 1,018.90

Unsecured, Credit impaired

Advances to vendors

~ Others 2,615.18 2,615.19
Less: Provision for impairment ofadvances (2,615.18) (2,615.19)

989.27 1,234.72



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

14 Equity Share Capital

Particulars

Authorised

EquityShareson' 10each

Issued, Subscribed and fully Paid-up

EquitySharesofiC 10 each fullypaid-up

Total

'As at 31 March 2022

Naof Shares

1,00,00,00,000

80,00,00,000

80,00,00,000

1,00,000.00

80,000.00

80,000,00

As at 31 March2021

No. of Shares

1,00,00,00,000

80,00,00,000

80,00,00,000

~ in Lakhs

1,00,000,00

80,000.00

80,000.00

14.1 Reconciliationof number of Equity Shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Year

Particulars 'As at 31 Murch 2022 As at 31 March2021

No.of Shares '{in Lakhs No. of Shares '{ in Lekhs

At the Beginningof the Year 80,00,00,000 80,000.00 40,00,00,000 40,000.00

Issuedduringthe year on a rightsbasis 40,00,00,000 40,000.00

Outstanding at the End of the year 80,00,00,000 80,000.00 80,00,00,000 80,000.00

The Ordinary Shares rank pari-passu, having voting rights and are subject to preferences and restrictions as per Companies Act, 2013. The shareholders of
Ordinary shares are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholdings, in
the event of liquidation. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share held.

14.2 Shares held by holding company

'Asat31 March 2022

'As at 31 March 2022

Nameof shareholder

Tata HousingDevelopment Company Limited(Jointly with its nominees)

14.3 Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% Shares in the Company

Nameof shareholder

Tata HousingDevelopment CompanyLimited(Jointlywith its nominees)

No. of shares held

80,00,00,000

No. ofshares held

80,00,00,000

% Holding

100

% Holding

100

Asa!31 March2021

No. of sharesheld

80,00,00,000

As at 31 March 2021

No. of sharesheld

80,00,00,000

% Holding

100

% Holding

100

14.4 Details of shares issued otherwise than for cash, issues as bonus shares and / or shares bought back during the immediately preceding 5 years ~ None.

14.5 Details of Shares held by promoters

Shares held by promoters as at 31.03,2022 Shares held by promoters as at
31.03.2021

% Change durIng
Promoter uatne No. of Shares % of total shares No. of Shares %oftotal the year

shares

Tata Housing DevelopmentCompanyLimited (Jointlywith itsnominees) 80,00,00,000 100% 80,00,00,000 100%

Total 80,00,00,000 100% 80,00,00,000 100%

Shares held by promoters as at 31.03.2021 Shares held by promoters as at
31.03,2020

Promoter name No. of Shares % or torat shares No.of Shares % oftotal
% Change during

shares
the year

Tata Housing Development CompanyLimited(Joint!ywithits nominees) 80,00,00,000 100% 40,00,00,000 100%

Tordl 80,00,00,000 100% 80,00,00,000 100%



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the standalone fmancial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

Particulars

15 Other Equity

i Retained Earnings

ii Other comprehensive income

i RetainedEarnings
Opening balance

Transfer from Debenture redemption reserve

loss for the year
Closing balance

ii Other comprehensive income
Employee benefit obligations
Openingbalance
Add / (Less):
Other comprehensive income/doss) arising from remeasurements of'post­
employment benefit obligations, net of tax

Closingbalance

iii DebentureRedemption Reserve
As per last BalanceSheet
{Less)/Add: Transfer (to)/from Retained earnings (net)

Closing balance

Closing balance (i+ii+iii)

As at
31 March 2022

(61,425.64)

25.33

(61,400.31)

(52,941.36)

(8,484.28)

(61,425.64)

45.68

(20.35)

25.33

(61,400.31)

(f in Lakhs)
As at

31 March 2021

(52,941.36)

45.68
(52,895.68)

(39,847.61)

1,1I 1.96

(14,205.71)
(52,941.36)

2.15
43.53

45.68

I,ll 1.96
(I,ll 1.96)

(52,895.68)

Nature and Purposeof reserves

i Retainedearnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to debenture redemption reserve, dividends or other distributions paid
to shareholders.
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Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

Particulars

16 Borrowings -Non -Current

As at
31 March 2022

Long-term Currentmaturities
of long-termdebts

({ in Lallls)
Asat

31 March 2021
Long-term Current maturities

of long-term debts

Secured- at amortisedcost
From Banks
Working capital term loan from bank

Unsecured:
Nil (31 March 2021 : 1,000),8.40% Debentures on' 1,000,000 each
(Due for redemption on 30 April 2021)

1,950,7.20% Debentures on' 1,000,000 each
(Due for redemption on 23 September 2022)
(refernote 16.1)

Note

19,500.00

19,500.00

496.21

19,500.00

19.996.21

1,294.60

10,000.00

11.294.60

16.1 Original rate ofinterest upto 25 March 2021 was 9.35 % p.a.. It was reset w.e.f 26 March 2021 to 7.20% p.a., as per the terms of issue.



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March2022

Particulars

17 Borrowings -Current

Secured - at amortised cost
From Banks
Loan repayable on demand from banks (includingcash credit and working capital demand loan)
{refernote 17.1 below}

Unsecured - at amortised cost
Loans repayable on demand
Inter Corporate Deposit fromrelated party "Payableon demand
Commercialpapers {refernote 17.2 below}
Current maturities of long-term debts
Interest accrued

As at
31 March 2022

36.32

17,300.00
10,000.00
19,500.00

923.18

(f in Lakhs)
As at

31 March 2021

20,365.03

11,294.60
1,775.78

47,759.50 33,435.41
Note:

17.1 1'\ pari passu charge under multiple banking arrangement by way ofhypothecation of entire current assets of the company hoth present and future. The interest
rate is ranging from 6,85% p.a. to 9.00% p.a. (for the year ended 31 March 2021: 8.08% p.a. to 8.36% p.a.)

17.2 Company has outstanding Commercial Papers aggregating to ~ 10,000 Lakhs (As at 31st March 2021 face value on NilIakhs)

17.3 Quarterly returns or statements ofcurrent assets filed with banks are in agreement with the books ofnccount ofthe Company.

18 (a) Trade payables -Non Current

Trade payables due to Micro and Small Enterprises
Trade payables other than acceptances due to other than Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer Note 37)

- from related parties
- Others

Retention money payable

18 (b) Trade Payables ~ Current

Trade payablesdue to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Trade payables other than acceptances due to other than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (Refer Note 37)
- from related parties
" Others

Total Trade Payablcs
Retention money payable

(Refer Trade payables ageing in note 18 ( c)

18 (c) Trade Payable ageing analysis
Outstanding as on March 31, 2022

9927
99,27

96,91
2,945.56
3,042.47

290.78

3,333.25

147.11
147.11

105.54
2,248.36
2,353.90

409.03

2,762.93

Particulars Outstanding for the following period from the due date ofpayment Total

Less than I
Not due year 1-2Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years

Undisputed
(i) Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
(ii) Others 143.64 2,643.57 118.98 4.91 13L37 3,042.47

Disputed
(i) Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
(ii) Others

Outstanding as on March 31, 2021

Particulars Outstanding for the following pen.0~ ~o_m the due w:t~ ?f~aytl1e~~ Total

Less than 1
Not due year 1 - 2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years

Undisputed
(i) Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
(ii) Others 757.D7 1,434.59 20.41 10.22 131.61 2,353.90

Disputed
(i) Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
(ii) Others

.,
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Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March2022

Particulars

19 (a) Other financialliabiUties -Non Current
Securityand other deposits

19 (b) Other flnanclal Itabllittes -Current

Employeesrelated payables
Earnest moneydeposits
Security and other deposits

20 Other current liabilities

Revenue received in advance
Advances received pending allotment offlats
Statutory dues payable:

- Provident fund
• Goods and service lax
- TAA deductedat source

21 Provisions -Current

Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity

- Compensated absences

Provision for Customer compensation (refer note 21.1)
Provision for GST liabilities (refer note 21.2)

Note

21.1 Provision for Customer compensation
Opening balance
Add; Additions to provisions

Closing balance

(f in Lakhs]

"'" As a!
31 Mal'ch 2022 JI March 2021

22.30
22.30

23.24 17.29
6.00 6.00

221.02 213.43

250.26 236.72

2,777.29 1,506.87

21.48 27.57

2.52 5.59

73.49
25.63 102.33

2.826.92 1.715.85

36.55 31.04
81.24 89.92

151.06 148.46
97.57 97.57

366.42 366.99

148.46 136.50
2.60 11.96

151.06 148.46

2 L.2 Provision has been made towards contingent liability of service tax as per the demand for the period FY 2010- I I to FY 2014-15 Rs. 47.99 Iakhs and from PY
2015-16 to July-2017, Rs.49.58 lakhs.
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Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Particulars

22 Revenue from Operations

For the year ended
31 March 2022

(~ in Laldls)
For the year ended

31 March2021

Sale of properties

Sale of services
- Project Management Fees and Marketing Charges

Other operating revenues
- Other income from customers

• Sale of materials

23 Other income

Intereston financial assetsat amortised cost
Interest on deposits with bank

Interest on delayed receipts from customers

Interest from others

Scrapsales
Interest on Income-taxrefund
Miscellaneous income

24 changes in inventory of finished goods and Work in progress

Opening balance

Construction material

Work in progress

Finished Goods

Closing balance

Construction material

Work in progress

Finished Goods

Add/(less): Impact ofNRV

25 Employee Benefits Expense

Salaries

Contribution to Gratuity, Provident and Other Funds

Staff Welfare Expenses

Less: Apportionment to projects

6,956.18 6,579.95

152.97

254.20 224.83

8.80 137.74

7,219.18 7,095.49

1,535.93 1,625.44

3.67 0.08

11.96 12.03

309.40

11.96 24.94

17.93

1.73 3.48

1,565.25 1,993.30

121.22 467.84

34,249.17 38,981.40

8,528.19 14,610.06

42,898.58 54,059.30

67.10 121.22

30,218.17 34,249.17

8,571.08 8.528.19

38,856.35 42,898.58

5.38 6,672.56

(4,036.85) (4,488.16)

1,307.43 1,258.50

57.33 54.17

14.55 10.76

1,379.31 1,323.43

126.81 97.24

1,252.50 1,226.19



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continned)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Particulars

26 Finance costs

For the year ended
31 March 2022

(f in Lakhs)
For the yearended

31 March 2021

Interest expenseon financial liabilitiesnot at fair value throughprofit or loss
- Interest on Borrowings
• Interest on Others

Less: Apportionment to construction work in progress

Net finance cost expensed to profit and loss

3,519.53 7,451.61

19.28 37.68

3,538.81 7,489.29

160.76 307.49

3.378.05 7.181.80

Note: The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted average interest rate
applicable to the Company's general borrowings which is 6.81 %, (for the year ended 31 March 2021: 8.12%)

27 Other expenses

Professional tees
Travelling expenses

Electricity expenses

Rent expenses

Repairs and Maintenance -Others
Insurance

Rates and taxes

Directors' Sitting Fees to independent and non-executive Directors

Impact ofNRV on inventory
Provision for Customer Compensation

Registration and filling charges

Input tax credit written off

Other expenses

Selling expenses
- Brokerage

- Advertisement and others

Payable to Statutory Auditors
As auditor:
- Statutory audit fees

In Other Capacity
- Others
• Reimbursement of Expenses

28 Impairment of loans given and investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures

Impairement loss on loans given and investments

Loan given and investment written off
Investement in subsidiary written off

Reversal of Provision ofImpainnent

234.11 153.06

7.48 1.82

7.34 5.53

24.00 24.76

640.45 722.24

57.76 52.04

4.34 0.01

5.80 3.20

5.38 6,672.56

2.60 11.96
0,02 0.09

273.21 5.00

66.50 107.91

139.57 197.58

494.46 412.47

22.50 16.75

6.27 0.76

0.69 0.56

1,992.48 8.388.30

2,860.45

1,005.27

1.00
(1,006.27)

2,860.45
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Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continned)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

29 Related Party Transactions

As per Indian Accounting Standard on "Related Party Disclosures" (Ind AS~24) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 2013 Act") are as follows:

29.1 List of Related Parties and Relationships

Sr. No. Related Party

Ultimate Holding Company

Tata Sons Private Limited

2 Holding Company

Tata HousingDevelopmentCompanyLimited

Subsidiary Companies

Smart Values Homes (Boisar) Private Limited

HLT ResidencyPrivate Limited

Smart Values Homes (New Project) LLP

Smart ValueHomes (Peenyn Project) Private Limited (Ceased to be Joint Venture and became a subsidiary w.e.f 21.05.2021)

4 Fellow Subsidiary companies

Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited

Tats Consultancy Services Limited

Infmiti Retail Limited

BcofirstServicesLimited

THDC ManagementServices Limited

Tata CommunicationsLimited

Tata Teleservlces Limited

Tata Teleservices(Malmmslum) Limited

Associates Company

Trent Limited

SynergizersSustainableFoundation

6 Joint Venture w Companies
HL Promoters Private Limited

Smart ValueHomes (Peenya Project) Private Limited (Ceased to be Joint Venture and became a subsidiary w.c.f 21.05.2021)

LandKart Builders Private Limited

7 Fellow Associates w Companies

Titan CompanyLimited

Indian Hotels

Fellow Joint Venture ~ Companies

Ardent Properties Private Limited

9 Joint Venture - Limited Liability Partnership

Arvind and Smart Value Homes LLP

10 Key Management Personnel

Kamlesh MansukhlalParekh, Director resigned w.e.f December21, 2021

Nipun Aggarwal(Director) -resigned w.e.f April 18, 2022

Renu Basu, Director

Sandhya ShaileshKudtarkar, Director -resigned w.e.fDecember 21, 2021

,I



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continned)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

29.2 Related Party Transactions

For the year For the year
ended ended

Sr. No. Party Name Nature of Transaction 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

INR in lakhs INR in lakhs

1 Tata HousingDevelopment CompanyLimited a) Expenses
(Holding Company) Interest expense on leo 217.98 2,303.22

b) Other Transactions
Loan Taken 28,625.00 22,895.00

Loan Repaid 11,325.00 46,105.63
Expenses incurred by Related Party on our behalf 2.87 67.01

d) Outstanding Balances Payable
Inter Corporate Deposit -Current - Unsecured 17,300.00 -
InterestAccruedbut not Due 196.18 -
OutstandigPayable 96.73 96.05

2 Titan Company Limited a) Expenses
(Fellow Associate Company) Interest expense on ICD 74.79 278.42

Selling Expenses 26.43 39.25

b) Other Transactions
LoanTaken 5,000.00 5,000.00

Loan Repaid 5,000.00 5,000.00

c) Outstanding Balances Receivable

Advances 8.44 2.06

3 Smart Value Homes New Project LLP a) Other Transactions

(Subsidiary company)
Capital Contribution 1.00 27.00

Capital withdrawn 2,458.51 -
Expenses incurred on behalfof Related Party 0.43

b) Outstanding Balances Receivable

Investment 376.42 2,861.94

Advances 3.71 -

4 Tate AlG General Insurance Company Limited a) Expenses
(Fellow subsidiary) Insurance Premium paid 4.49 25.95

b) Other Transactions

Claim Received 20.21 0.78

c) Outstanding Balances Receivable

Advances 0.16 18.54

5 Tata Consultancy Service Limited a) Expenses
(Fellow subsidiary) Repairs and Maintenance ~ Others 33.91 78.98

Professional Fees 142.78

6 Tata Teleservice Limited a) Expenses

(Fellow subsidiary) Administrative and Other Expenses 1.45 9.76

b) Outstanding Balances Payable

Outstanding.Payable 0~18 0,04-

7 Tata Teleservices Maharashtra Ltd a) Expenses

(Fellow subsidiary) Administrative and Other Expenses 0.33

b) Outstanding Balances Payable

Outstanding Payable 0.01 0.72

8 Conneqt Business Solutions Limited a) Expenses

Associate company-Ceased w.e.f. 16.04.2021 Selling Expenses - 32.93

9 Tata Comnnications Limited a) Expenses
(Fellow subsidiary) Receiving of Services 10.63 -: 9. 19 1,(,



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

29.2 Related Party Transactions

For the year For the year

Nature of Transaction
ended ended

Sr. No. Party Name 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

INRin lakhs INRin Iakhs
10 HLT Residency Pvt.Ltd. a) Income

(Subsidiary company) Interest Incomeon Loan and Inter CorporateDeposits 1,014.07 1,014.07

b) Outstanding Balances Receivable

Interest accrued on loan & other corp. deposit 5,449.26

Inter Corporate loan-Non Current - Unsecured 11,267.41 15,804.01

II Lendkart Builders Private Limited a) Income
(Joint Venture) Interest Income on Loan and Inter Corporate Deposits 521.86 608.74

b) Other Transactions
Expenses incurred on behalf of Related Party 875.90
Inter Corporate Deposits Given 18,980.03 113.94
Inter CorporateDeposits repaid 21,774.77

c) Outstanding Balances Receivables

Interest accrued on loan & other corp. deposit 28.52
Inter Corporate loan-Non Current - Unsecured 584.33 4,410.73

Other Receivable 170.96 170.96

12 Infiniti Retail Ltd a) Expense
(Fellow subsidiary) Administrative and Other Expenses 4.45 -

13 The Indian Hotels Co. a) Expense
(Fellow Associates) Administrative and Other Expenses 0.56

14 THDC Management Services Ltd a) Income

(Fellow subsidiary) Interest Income on Loan and Inter Corporate Deposits 2.63

b) Outstanding Balances Receivables

Outstanding receivable 1.95

15 Smart Values Homes (Beiser) Private Limited a) Expense

(Subsidiary company) Purchase of Materials 1.90

b) Other Transactions

Expenses incurred on behalfof Related Party 1.90 -

16 Arvind and Smart Value Homes LLP a) Outstanding Balances Receivables

(Joint Venture) Outstanding receivable 96.35 -

17 HL Promoters Private Limited a) Outstanding Balances Receivables

(Joint Venture) Outstanding receivable 2,971.61 -

18 Smart Values Homes (Peenya Project) Private a) Income
Limited Interest on Project Management Fees - 309.40
(Subsidiary company) Sale of services - 152.97

b) Other Transactions
Expenses incurred by Related Patty on our behalf 0.06 25.35

Expenses incurred on behalf of Related Party 0.91

c) Outstanding Balances Receivables

Outstanding receivable 4,680.42 4,679.56

19 Key Managerial Personnel a) Director sitting fees
Kemlesh Mansukhlal Parekh 1.80 0.80
Nipun Aggarwal 1.00 0.80
Renu Basu 1.20 0.80
Sandhya Shailesh Kudtarkar 1.80 0.80

,



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continned)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

30 Fair value measurements

Financial instruments by category

The following table shows the carryingamountsand fail' values of financialassets and financial liabilities,includingtheir levels in the fairvaluehierarchy.

(~in Llll!hs)

FVTPL

Current Non-current

Carrying amount
as at 31 Mlll'eh 2022

Amortised cost

Current Non-current

Total

Current Non-current

Levell

Fall' Value

Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

Investments

- in Equity instrumentsof subsidiaries,joint 3,402.34 3,402.34
ventures and associates
- in Partnershipfirm 3,900.57 3,900.57

Trade receivables 8,012.14 8,012.14

Cash and bank balances 633.69 633.69

Loans 16,172.52 16,172.52

Other financialassets 7.69 171.53 7.69 171.53

Total financialassets 8,653.52 23,646.96 8,653.52 23,646.96

Flnandalliabilities

Borrowings 47,759.50 47,759.50

Trade Payables 3,333.25 99.27 3,333.25 99.27

Other financialliabilities 250.26 250.26

Total flnanclal Jiablllties 51,343.01 99.27 51,343.01 99.27

1,802.34 1,802.34

9,219.53 9,219.53

8,062.76 8,062.76

1,135.90 1,135.90

[9,057.76 19,057.76

121.02 121.02

30,079.63 9,319.68 39,399.31

3,402.34 3,402.34

3,900.57 3,900.57

8,012.14 8,012.14

633.69 633.69

16,172.52 16,172.52

179.22 179.22

23,475.43 8,825.05 32,300.48

47,759.50 47,759.50

3,432.52 3,432.52

250.26 250.26

51,442.28 51,442.28

(~ in Lakhs)

Fair Value

Level 2 Lcvel J Total

Fiuaucial assets

Investments

- in Equity instnunents of subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates
- in Partnershipfinn

Trade receivables

Cash and bank balances

Leans

Other financialassets

Total fluanclal assets

Fluanelallfnbiflties

Borrowings

Trade Payables

Other financial liabilities

Total flnaucial liablllrles

Carryingamount
as at 31 March 2021

FVTPL Amortisedcost Total Levell

Current Non-current CUITcn! Non-current Current Non-current

1,802.34 1,802.34

9,219.53 9,219.53

8,062.76 8,062.76

1,135.90 l,I35.90

19,057.76 19,057.76

7.86 113.16 7.86 113.16

9,206.52 30,192.79 9,206.52 30,192.79

33,435.41 19,996.21 33,435.41 19,996.21

2,762.93 147.11 2,762.93 147.1 I

236.72 22.30 236.72 22.30

36,435.06 20,165.62 36,435.06 20,165.62

53.431.62

2,910.04

259.02

56,600.68

53,431.62

2,910.04

259.02

56,600.68

-------------------------~t4'--}/
!\,;C:'~\'.'·



30 Fair value measurements (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fail'
value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the
inputs used in determining fair value, the company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An
explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in note above have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation
technique. The hierarachy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active market for identical assets 01' liabilities (level! measurements) and lowest priority
to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). The categories used are as follows:

Levell: Level I hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-thecounter derivatives) is determined
using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. Considering that all
significant inputs required to fair value such instruments are observable, these are included in level 2.

Level 3: Ifone or more ofthe significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, inter corporate deposits, current investments, contractually reimbursable expenses, cash and cash equivalents and
other bank balances, current trade payables and current borrowings are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fail' values.



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)
for theyear ended31 March 2022

31 Financial risk management
The Company's businessactivities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidityrisk, marketrisks and credit risk. The Company'ssenior management
has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Company lias constituted a Risk
ManagementCommittee,which is responsiblefor developingand monitoring the Company'srisk management policies.The Company'srisk management policies
are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.
Risk managementpoliciesand systemsare reviewedregularlyto reflect changes in marketconditionsand the Company'sactivities.

The Risk ManagementCommitteeofthe Companyis supportedby the Finance departmentthat providesassurancethat the Company'sfinancialrisk activitiesare
governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified,measured and managed in accordancewith the Company'spolicies and
risk objectives.The Financedepartmentactivitiesare designedto:
- protect the Company'sfinancial results and position from financial risks
- maintainmarketrisks withinacceptableparameters,while optimisingreturns; and
• protect the Company's financial investments, while maximisingreturns.

A) Management ofllquldity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Companywill face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Company's approach to managing
liquidity is to ensure that it wiIl have sufficientfunds to meet its liabilitieswhen due without incurringunacceptablelosses. In doing this, managementconsiders
both normaland stressedconditions.

Maturitiesoffmancialliabilities

The followingtable shows the maturity analysis ofthe Company's fmancialliabilities based on contractually agreed undiscountedcash flows as at the Balance
sheet date:

(~ia Lakhs)

A,at Carrlng Amount Less than 1·3 Years 3-5 Years Total
31 March 2022 1 year

Borrowings (NCDs)

Borrowings (Tcnn loanfromBank)

leo 17.496.18 17.692.36 17,692.36
Commercial Papers 10,000.00 10,000,00 10,000.00
Borrowings (Loanrep.1yable on demandfromBank) 36.32 36.32 36.32
Otherliabilities(current Jrulturilies of longtennborrowings-NCDs) 20,227,00 20,173,15 20,173.15

Borrowings 41,159.50 47,901.83 47,901.83
Tradepayables 3,432,52 3,333.25 99.27 3,432.52
Other liabilities 250.26 29.24 22l.1l2 250.26

As at CalTing AmOttnl Less than 1-3Years 3-5 Years Total
31 March2021 I ycar

Borrowings 51,655.84 33,217.42 20,677.52 53,894,94

Tradcpayables 2,910.04 2,762.93 147.lJ 2.910.04

Ollierliabilities 259,02 3,240.36 22.30 3,262.66

B) Management of market risk

The Company's size and operationsresult in it being exposed to the following market risks that arise fium its use of financial instruments:
• interestrate risk
The above risks may affect the Company's income and expenses, or the value of its financial instruments. The objective of the Company's managementof
market risk is to maintain this risk within acceptable parameters, while optimising returns. The Company's exposure to, and management of, these risks is
explainedbelow:

rneucutnrs

Fixcd "ate Instruments

Debentures,Non,Convertible Redeemable

InterCorporateDeposits

TerlllLoanfrombank

WorkingCapitalDemandJoanfrOlll Bank.'l

Commercial papers

Total

vartnble-ratc lnstrumcnt,

teens rep.1yable 011 demandfrombanks

Totl11



31 Financial risk management (Continued)

B) Management of mal'ket risk (Continlled)

POTENTIAL IMPACT OF RISK

(i) Interest rate risk

Interestrate risk is the risk that the future
cash flows of a financial insmunent will
fluctuate because of changes in market
interestrates.
The Company ill mainlyexposedto interest
rate risk due to its variable interest rate
borrowings. The interestrarerisk arises due
to uncertainties about the future market
interestrateofthese invesbnents.

The Company's fixed rate borrowings are
carriedat amortised cost.Tbey are therefore
not subjectto interestrate risk as definedin
1ndAS 107,sinceneitherthecanyingamount
nor the future cash flows will fluctuate
becauseofa changein marketinterestrates.

As at 31 March 2022, variable rate
borrowings of <Nil (31 March 2021: <
5,657.99Lakllll) are exposedto interestrate
risk

C) Management of credit rlsk

MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company's strategyis to mitigatemerest rate risk hy ensuring a
propermixof borrowings at
fixedand variableinterestrates.

The Company's interestrate risk is monitored by U,emanagement and
tre:lSUly teamona montl~y basis,Marulgemenlanalyses theCompany's
interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis, Various scenarios are
simulated. taking into consideration refillHIlCing, renewal of existing
positiollS and alternative financing sources. Based Oll these scenarios,
the Company calcl1h1tes the impact on profit and loss of a defined
interestrate shift.Tl,escenarios arenmonlyfor liabilities thatrepresent
ri,e major interest,bearing positions. The simulation is done on a
monthly basis to verifythat the maximum potentialloss is withinthe
limitsset by management

SENSITIVITY TO RISK

As an estimation of the approximate impactof tbe interest rate risk, with
respectto financial instruments. the Company has calculated the imp.1ct of a
0.25%changein interestrates.

0,25%p.a. decreasein interestall aforesaid loanswill reduce interestexpense
by <Nilfor U,e yearended31 March2022.

0.25% p.a. decreasein intereston aforesaid loanswill reduceinterestexpense
by tNil for theyearended31 March2022

0.25%increasein interestrates wouldhaveled toan equalbutopposite effect.

Credit risk is !he risk of flnancial loss to the Company if a customer or counrerparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Company's receivables from customers, investments in debt securities, loans given to related parties and project deposits.
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by requiring customers to pay advances through progress billings before transfer of ownership, therefore substantially
eliminating the Company's credit risk in this respect.
The Company's credit risk with regard to trade receivable has a high degree of risk diversification, due to the large number of projects of varying sizes and types
with numerous different customer categories in a large number of geographical markets.

The ageing analysis of the receivables (gross of provisions)

Period Less than one year More than one year Total
(Rs in Lakhs) (Rs in Lalths)

As at 31st March 2022 462.90 7,549.24 8,012.14

As at 31st March 2021 856.12 7,206.64 8,062.76

The following table summarizes the changes in the provisions made for the receivables;

Particulars As at 31,March 2022 As at 31,March 2021
Opening Balance

Provided during the year

Closing Balance

Investment in Debt Securities, Loans to Related Parties and Project Deposits
The Company has investments in loans 1'0related parties and project deposits. The settlement of such Instruments is linked to the completion of the respective
underlying projects, Such Financial Assets are not impaired, other than provided for in note 5, 12 and 13as on the reporting date.

The following table summarizes the changes in the provisions made for the receivables:

Particulars As at 31,March 2022 As at 31,March 2021
Opening Balance 4,777.46 4,777.46

Provided during the year
Closing Balance 4,777.46 4,777.46

Cash and Bank balances
Credit risk from cash and bank balances is managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance with the Company's policy.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 202 I are the carryingvalue of each class of flnnncial assets as disclosed in
notes 5, 6 and 9 to 12.

31 (a) Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through
optimisation of debt and equity balance.

The Company's risk management committee reviews the capital structure of the Company on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the committee considers
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.

The Company monitors capital using Debt-Equity ratio, which is total debt divided by total equity. For the purposes of the Company's capital management, the
Company considers the following components of its Balance Sheet to be managed capital:
Total Equity includes Debenture redemption reserve, Retained earnings and Share capital.
Total Debt includes Long term Borrowings, Current maturities of long-term borrowings, Current borrowings and interest accrued and due on borrowings.

The gearing ratios were as fellows:
(t in Lnldls)

Long-teun Borrowings

CllITent maturities of long-term debts

Currentborrowillgil

1ntercstAccrued on Borrowings

TOll11 Debt

TotnlEqulty

Net debt to equlty ratlo (No.lIftlmes)

31 Marcb2022

19,500.00

27,336.32

923.18

47,759.50

18,599.69

2.57

3t March2021

t9.996,2t
11,294.60

20.365,03

1,775.78

53,431.62

27,1(14.32

1.97



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

32 Employee benefits

A Defined benefit plans:

Gratuity (funded)

The Company makes annual contributions to the Tata Value Homes Limited Employees Gratuity Scheme of Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance
Company Limited. The scheme provides for lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of
employment as per Company's Gratuity Scheme. Vesting occurs on completion of five years.

Balance sheet amount
(f In Lakhs]

Particulars Gratuity

Present value of obligation Fair value of plan assets Net amount

1 April 2021 107.54 76.51 31.03

Currentservicecost 15.71 15.71

Adjustment to openingbalance 7.93 (7.93)

Interestexpensel(income) 6.34 4.51 1.83

Past ServiceCost

Total amount recognised In profit and loss 22.05 12.44 9.61

Remeasurements

Returnon plan assets, excludingamount includedin interest (1.93) 1.93
expense/(income)
(Gain) I Loss fromchangein demographic assumptions (5.61) (5.61)

(Gain) I Loss from changein financial assumptions 19.76 19.76

Experience(gainsjjlosses 11.43 11.43

Total amount recognised in other comprehensiveincome 25.58 (1.93) 27.51

Employercontributions

Benefitpayments (31.60) (31.60)

31 March 2022 123.57 87.02 36.55

(~in Lakhs)

Particulars Gratuity

Present value of obligation Fair value of plan assets Net amount

1 April 2020 128.75 75.83 52.92

Currentservicecost 18.72 18.72

Interestexpensel(income) 7.14 4.21 2.93

PastServiceCost

'I'omlatnount recognised In protlr and loss 25.86 4.21 21.65

Remeasurements

Returnon plan assets, excludingamountincludedin interest (3.53) 3.53
expense/(income)
(Gain) I Loss from changein demographic assumptions 2.26 2.26

(Gain) I Loss fromchangein financial assumptions (6.40) (6.40)

Experience (gains)!losses (42.93) (42.93)

Total amount reccgnlsed ill other comprehensive income (47.07) (3.53) (43.54)

Employercontributions

Benefitpayments

31 March 2021 107.54 76.51 31.03
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32 Employee Benefits (Continued)

A Defined benefit plans: (Continued)

The net liabilitydisclosedabove relates to funded and unfundedplans are as follows:
(~in LlIkhs)

Particulars

31 Marcll 2022

Presentvalueoffunded obligations

Fairvalueof planassets

Deficit

31 March 2021

Present value of fundedobligations

Fairvalueof planassets

Deficit

Major category of plan assets for Gratuity fund are as follows:

The companyhas investedentire amountof plan assets in insurancefund.

Insurer Managed Fund Detailed Pattern % Invested

Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Gratuity

123.57

87,02

36.55

107.54

76.51

31,03

Fundsmanagedby Insurer 100.00%

100.01}%

100.00%

100.00%

Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Asset volatility

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields; if plan assets underperfonn this yield, this will create a
deficit. Most of the plan asset investments is in fixed income securities with high grades and in government securities. These are subject to interest
rate risk and the fund manages interest rate risk with derivatives to minimise risk to an acceptable level.

Changes in bond yields

A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the plans' bond holdings.

Life expectancy
The pension and medical plan obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so increases in life expectancy will result in an
increase in the plans' liabilities. This is particularly significant where inflationary increases result in higher sensitivity to changes in lite
expectancy.

Saiary Risk
The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in salary
of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability,

The Company ensures that the investment positions are managed within an asset-liability matching (ALM) framework that has been developed to
achieve long-term investments that are in line with the obligations under the employee benefit plans, Within this framework, the Company's ALM
objective is to match assets to the benefit obligations by investing in long-term fixed interest securities with maturities that match the benefit
payments as they fall due and in the appropriate currency.

~r-(
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32 Employee Benefits (Continued)

A Defined benefit plans: (Continued)

Defined benefit Liability and employer contribution

Expected contribution to post employment benefit plans for the year to be ended on 31 March 2023 are t 53.21 Iakhs

The weighted averageduration of the defined benefitobligationis 5 years (2021- 6 years)
('f in Lakhs]

Maturity analysis of Projected benefit obligation: from the fund:

1st followingyear

2nd followingyear

3rd followingyear

4th following year

5th followingyear

Sumofyears6 to 10

Morethan 10 years

B Defined contribution plans:

Benefit (Coutrtbution to)

Provident Fund

Superannuation Fund

Totlll

Gratuity

31 Marcb 2022

22.31

19.85

18.39

16.18

14.14

50.24

33.28

For the Year Ended
31 March 2022

37.70
2.09

39.79

31 March 2021

14.52

14.74

19.13

12.32

[1.13

44.92

42.75

(~ in Lakhs)

For the Year Ended
31 March 2021

30.65
1.86

32.51

(i) Superannuation fund

The company has superannuation scheme administrated by LIC, in which the company contributes 15% on basic salary. The payments to defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme for eligible employees in the fonn of superannuation fund are charged as an expense as they fall due. Such
benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made.

(ii) Provident fund

The Company also has certain defined benefit plans. Contributions arc made at the rate of 12% of bask salary as per regulations. The Company is
liable for contributions and any deficiency compared to interest computed based on the rate ofinterest declared by the Centra] Government under
the Employees' Provident Fund Scheme, 1952 and recognises, if any, as an expense in the year it is determined.

The Company's contributions paid / payable during the year towards Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund are charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss or debited to the project costs every year. These funds and the schemes thereunder are recognised by the Income-tax authorities

(iii) Code on social security,2020
The Indian Parliament has approved the code on social security ,2020 which would impact the contribution by the company towards Provident
fund and Gratuity. The ministry ofLabour and Employment has released draft rules for the code on social security ,2020 on November 13,2020,
and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The comapny will assess the impact and its
valuations once the subject rules are notified and will give appropriate effect in its financial statements in the period in which the code becomes
effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.
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32 EmployeeBenefits (Continued)

C Compensated absences

The leave obligations cover the Company's liability for sick and earned leave. The leave obligation is computed by actuary who gives a bifurcation
forcurrentand non-current.

a) Changes in Present Value of Obligation:

Partlcnlars Compensated absences

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31 MIII'ch2022 31 March 2021

Present Value of Obligation as lit the beginning

InterestCost

ServiceCost

BenefitsPaid

Actuarial(Gain) I Loss on obligations

Past ServiceCost

89.94

5,30

12.88

(23.85)

(3.03)

103.83

5.76

20.23

(5.31)

(34.57)

Present Value of Obligation as at the end 81.24 89.94

b) Bifurcation of Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the year:
(f in Lakhs)

Particulars Compensated absences

For tho Year Ended For the Year Ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

89.94

89.9481.24

--------.S"1.2"4 --------;;;;-;dPresent Vallie of Obligation as at the end

Currentliability

Non-Current liability

c) Expenses Recognised during the year:
(< in Lakhs)

Particulars Compensated absences

110r the Year Ended For theYear Ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

InterestCost

ServiceCost

ActuarialLoss/(Gain)recognised

Past Service Cost

Expenses Recognised during the period I year

5.30 5.76

12,88 20.23

(3.03) (34.57)

15,15 (8.58)
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32 Employee Benefits (Continued)

D Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity

The significantactuarialassumptions forwereas follows:

Particulars

Gratuity

Discountrate

Rate of'return on plan assets

Salarygrowthrate

Retirementage

MortalityRate

Withdrawal Rates

Maximum gratuitypayableper person

Compensated absences

Discounting Rate

RetirementAge

FutureSalaryRise

MortalityTable

Withdrawal Rates

As at
31 March 2022

6.10%

9.00%

60 years

Indian Assured Lives MortaUty (2012-14)

20.00%

No llmlt in case of Employeesjoined
upte 31 March 2019.

Maximum Rs. 20 Lakh in case of Employeesjoined
after 31 March 2019.

6.10%

60 years

9.00%

Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012.14)

20.00%

As at
31 March2021

5.90%

6.00%

60 years

IndianAssured Lives Mortality(2012.14)

15.00%

No limit in case ofEmployeesjoined
upto31 March 2019.

MaximumRs. 20 Lakh in caseof Employees
joined after 31 March2019.

5.90%

60 years

6.00%

Indian AssuredLives Mortality(2012-14)

15.00%

Significant actuarial assumption for the determination of defined benefit obligation are rate of discounting, rate of salary increase and rate of
employee turnover. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

(~in Lllkhs)

Particulars

Projected benefitobligationon currentassumptions

Delta effect of + i% change in rate of discounting

Delta effectof -I % changein rate of discounting

Delta effect of +! % changein rate of salaryincrease

Delta effect of -1% changein rate of salaryincrease

Della effectof +I % change in rate of employeeturnover

Delta effect or-r % change in rate of employeeturnover

Della effectof +10%change in rate ofmotality

Delta effect of··10%change in rate of molality

Gratuity

31 Marcil 2022 31 March 2021

123,57 107.54

(5.84) (5.89)

6.38 6.54

6.14 6.47

(5.75) (5.94)

(0.90) (0.36)

0.95 0.37

(0.03) 0.00

0.01 0.00

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above
sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the Balance Sheet.
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Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continned)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

33 Loans and Investments under Section 186 of the Act

The details of loans, guarantees and investments under Section 186 of the Act read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014 are as foIlows :

Note:
Purpose of utilization ofloan given to the entities - General purpose loan



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
for theyear ended 31 March 2022

Note 34: Ratio Analysis
(f in Lakhs)

Sr. No. Particulars Formula
% change ns

31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021 compared to
preceeding year

(,)

(b)

(e)

(d)

(0)

(g)

(h)

(i)

(k)

Current Ratio

Debt-Equity Ratio

Debt ServiceCoverageRatio

Return on Equity Ratio

Inventory turnover ratio

Trade Receivables turnover ratio

Trade payables turnover ratio

Net capital turnover ratio

Net profit ratio

Return on Capital employed

Return on investment

Current Assets / Current Liabilities
excluding Short Term Borrowings

Non-current borrowings + Current
borrowings I Net Worth

Profitafter lax and before Finance
costs, Depreciation and
Amortisation and loss on sale of
fixed assets! (Gross Finance Cost +
Principal payment of long term
debt during the period)

Profit after tax less pref dividend
if any I Average Net Worth

COGS or Sales I Average
Inventory

Net Credit sales I Average Trade
Receivable

Net Credit purchase or COGS I
Average Trade Payable

Net Sales I Working Capital

Profit after tax / Net Sales

ERIT I Capital Employed

(Market value of current
investment at end ofpetiod­
Market value of current investment
at the beginning of penodj-net
cashflows I Market value of
current investment at the beginning
of neriod

7.16

2.57

(0.25)

(0.37)

0.18

0.90

2.ll

(1.20)

(UB)

(0,20)

10.49

1.97

(0,39)

(1.00)

0,15

0,87

2.36

0,48

(2.00)

(0.26)

-32% Deccrease 111 currentassetana
increase in currentliability due to
increase in short term borrowing
during the year

30% Increaseill debt and decrease in
net worth duringthe year

-37% Reduction in losses are more in
comparision reduction in amount
of debt service during the year

-63% Reduction in losses and increase
in average networth due to issue
of equity shares in last financial
veal'

21%

3%

-10%

-350% Reduction in the workingcapital
during the year due to increase
short term borrowings

-41% Reduction in loss due to reduced
finance cost as compare to last
year and corresponidng marginal
increase in total revenue

-21%

0%

L-_---'--- -"- ----' -'- " --' --'
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Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)
for theyear ended 31 March 2022

35 Segment reporting
The Companyis engagedonly in the businessof development of propertyand related activities ill India.It bas no other reportable segments in termsof IndianAccounting
Standard(Ind AS) 108on Segment ReportingspecifiedunderSection133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevantprovisions or the Companies Act,2013 (vthe 2013
Act'').

36 Earnings per share

Loss after tax - ~ in Lakhs
Numberof equityshares
Weightedaveragenumberof equityshares
Earningsper share(basic& diluted)- in ~ *
Face value per share - in ~

For the year endod
31 March.2022

(8,484.28)
80,00,00,000
80,00,00,000

(1.06)

10

For theyearended
31 March2021

(14,205.71)

80,00,00,000
40,76,71,233

(3.48)

10

*The entire loss for the year, other comprehensive income, total comprehensive income and loss per share is attributable to owners of the parent.

37 Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Based on the information available with the Company, the balance due to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 is 'f Nil (31 March, 2021: ~ Nil) and no interest has been paid or is payable during the year under the tenus of the MSMED Act, 2006.
The information provided by the Company has been relied upon by the auditors.

(~in Lakhs)

Particulars

a. Amouatspayableto suppliersunderMSMED(suppliers)at thebeginningof theyear

Principal

lnterestdue thereon

b. Payments madeto suppliersbeyondthe appointeddayduringtheyear

Pdncipal

Interestduethereon

c.Amountorinterest due andpaysblc fordelayin payment(whichhavebeenpaid hutbeyondthe

d. Amountof interestaccruedand remaining unpaidat theendof year

e.Amountof interestremainingdue andpayableto suppliersdisallowabie as deductible

38 IND AS 115- Revenue from contracts with customers

a) Significant changes in contract liabilities balances are as follows

Asa!

31 March2022 "'"31 Msrch2021

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31, March 2021

Contract Liability

At the beginning of the reporting period 1,506.87 1,997.87

Cumulative catch-up adjustments affecting contract liability 1,270.42 (491.00)

Atthe end of the repcnfug period 2,777.29 1,506.87

b) Reconciliation of revenue recognised in the Statement of profit and Loss

Particulars

Contract Liability

Contract price ofthe revenue recognised

Customer incentiveJbencfilsfdiscounts

Revenue from Sale of Rea! Estate DeveiopmentslLand re
Loss

-
Asat Asat

31 March 2022 31, March 2021

6,959.28 6,585.03

(3.10) (5.08)

cognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and 6,956.18 6,579.95

39 Commitments

Estimated amount of capital commitments as a! 31 March 2022 <Nil lakhs (as at 31 March 2021 ~ Nillakhs).

40 Contingent liabilities, not provided for

I Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of suits filed by vendors and customers of certain properties constructed/developed by the Company
amounting to ~ 125.37 lakhs (As at 31 March 2021 ~ 121.37 lakhs) (inclusive of interest) against which the Company has made counter claims of <Nll lakhs (As at 31
March 2021 ~ Nil lakhs). The Company based legal position, does not anticipate any material liability to devolve on it as a result thereof.

Future ultimate outflow of resources embodying economic benefits in respect of the above matters are uncertain as it depends on the final outcome of the matters involved.

Il Bank guarantee has been issued for an amount of <184.74 laklis in favour of "Chennai Metropolitan Development Authority" , towards Security Deposit for:,~onstiltctio!}of,,>,

Building at one of the project of the Company (As at 31 March 2021 <184.74Iakhs). .:<', '_)/'" .''''':'-,( '~

ill Bank Guarantee has been given as Security deposits for issuance of'Nou-convertihle debentures, in favour of"BSE Limited" for an amount oH..,r·95'--'I(I!<ilS',I,A<s'at 31 Mhl'dl,:<:J \\
2021 ~ 1.95 lakhs). l.I / to' \\ II

" ,,"11 )

II, "/J- I Ii
\',' ;'>':~:<~}';:~:L;~' ute)" ) /,.,,/i

\'\"./""" v, /!i)/I
". ' ..') '~----'''''' .0-< • "

'-::':.'-,;/"tV! A .,ro\);'1/
~"::~~,::-.;_;~_l::.:.'.:;:::::/



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)
for theyear ended31 March 2022

41 Other Statutory Information

t The Companydoes not naveany Benamiproperty,whereanyproceedinghas been initiatedor pendingagainstthe Companyfor holdingany Benamiproperty.

ii The Companydoes no! haveany transactions withcompaniesstruckoff.

ill The Companydoes not haveanychargesor satisfaction whichis yet to be registeredwith ROC beyondthe statutoryperiod

iv The Companyhas not traded or investedin Crypto currency or Virtual Currencyduring the financialyear.

v The Companyhase not advancedor loaned or investedfundsto anyother person(s)or entity(ies), includingforeignentities(Intermediaries) withthe understanding that the
Intermediary shall
(a) directlyor indirectlylend or investin other personsor entitiesidentifiedin any mannerwhatsoeverby or on behalfof the company(UltimateBeneficiaries) or
(b) provideanyguarantee, securityor the like to or on behalfoftlle UltimateBeneficiaries

vi The Companybas not receivedany fund from any person(s)or entity(ies), includingforeignentities (Pundtng Party)with the understanding (whetherrecordedin writingor
otherwise)that the Companyshall:

(a) directlyor indirectlylend or investin other personsor entitiesidentifiedin any mannerwhatsoeverby or on behalfoftbe PundlngParty (UltimateBeneficiaries) or
(b)provide anyguarantee, securityor the likeon behalforthe UltimateBeneficiaries,

vii The Companydoes not have anysuchtransactionwhichis not recorded in the books of accounts thathasbeen surrendered or disclosed as incomeduringthe year in the tax
assessmentsunder the IncomeTax Act, 1961(suchas, searchor surveyor any other relevantprovisionsof the IncomeTax Act, 1961).

42 Subsequent events
Thereare no significantsubsequenteventsthat wouldrequireadjustments or disclosuresin the financialstatementsas on the balancesheetdate.

43 Previousperiod figureshavebeen re-groupedI re-classified wherevernecessary, to conformto currentperiod'sclassification in order to complywith the requirements of the
amendedScheduleIll to the CompaniesAct, 2013

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Charteredaccountants
Firm'sRegistration No: 101248WtW-100022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tnta Value Homes Limited

CIN : U45400MH2009PLC195605

Farhed BamJI
Partner
Membership No: 105234

Mumbai
Date 27May2022

Sanjay Dutt
Director
DIN: 05251670

Mrunal Shukla
CompanySecretary
Membership No: A31734

Date27 May 2022

SlIndeepChhabda
Director

DIN: 08331848



B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

14th Floor, Central B Wing and North eWing,
Nasca IT Park 4, Nesco Canter,
Western Express Highway, Garegaon (East),
Mumbai - 400 063, India

Telephone: +912262571000
Fax: +912262571010

Independent AUditor's Report
To the Members of Tata Value Homes Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tata Value Homes Limited (hereinafter referred
to as the "Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred
to as "the Group"). its associate and its joint ventures, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as
at 31 March 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the consolidated
financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based
on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate audited financial statements of such
subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures as were audited by the other auditors, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its associate and joint ventures as at
31 March 2022, of its consolidated loss and other comprehensive loss, consolidated changes in equity
and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financiat Statements section of our report. We are
independent 01 the Group, its associate and joint ventures in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audjt olthe consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code 01 Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of reports of the other auditors referred to in
paragraph (a) and (b) of the "Other Matters" section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matter(s)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judqrnent, were of most significance in our
audit olthe consolidated financial statements olthe current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit 01 the consolidated financial statements as a Whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Registered Office:

B S R & Co. (a partnership firm with Registration No. BA61223) converted Into B S R & Co. LLP (a 14th Floor, Cenlral B Wing and North eWing, Neece IT Park 4. Neece
Limited liability Partnership with LLP Reglstralion No. AAB-8181) with ettecttrcm October 14, 2013 cereer, Western Express Highway, Goregaon (Easl), Mumbai - 400063
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

lata Value Homes Limited

Description of Key Audit Matter:

Key Audit Matter reported in the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Holding Company

Going Concern assessment - See Note 1(b) of Consolidated Financial Statements

The key audit matter

As at 31 March 2022, the Holding Company's
debts payable within one year comprises
amounts payable on Non-convertible
debentures aggregate Rs. 19,500 lakhs and
Commercial paper Rs. 10,000 lakhs. The
Holding Company has projected cash outflows
from operations in the aforesaid period.

The Holding Company's ability to continue as
a going concern is dependent upon its ability to
negotiate/ renegotiate its flnancing
arrangements with existing/prospective
lenders.

In view of the significance of the matter we
have identified the assessment of the going
concern assumption as a key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

In assessing the going concern assumption
used in preparing the financial statements, our
procedures included the following

o Evaluated the Holding Company's
assessment of the cash flow requirements of
the Holding Company based on budgets and
forecasts of future cash flows which were
provided to us.

o Compared the cash flow forecast prepared in
the prior year including the underlying data
and assumptions used therein with the actual
amounts in the current year.

Read the credit ratings of the Holding
Company's instruments and ascertained the
maximum borrowing arnount available to the
Holding Company based on the said ratings.

Examined the past history of the Holding
Company in refinancing its borrowings and
term sheets from prospective lenders, raising
funds to ascertain the availability of financing
to the Holding Company.

Assessing the adequacy of disclosures in the
financial statements relating to uncertainties
and mitigation thereof.

Revenue Recognition-See Note 16 of Consolidated Financial Statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Revenues from sale of residential units Our audit procedures on Revenue recognition
represents the largest portion of the total included the following:
revenues of the Holding Company.

0 Evaluate the Holding Company's revenue

In accordance with Ind AS 115 Revenue from
recognition accounting policies, their

Contracts with Customers, the analysis of application to the customer contracts vis a vis

whether Ihese contracts comprise of one or
the requirements of the applicable accounting

more performance obligations, and whether standards;

the performance obligations are satisfied over 0 Identificalion and evaluation of the design and
time or at a point in time, are areas requiring implementation of key controls over existence
criticai judgement by the Holding Company. and recording of revenue recognised for the
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

Tata Value Homes Limited

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control
of residential and commercial units to
customers for an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Holding Company
expects to receive in exchange for those units
and the customer has the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received! accrued. Revenue is
adjusted for estimated cost pending to be
incurred by the Holding Company for the
completion of the project.
The risk for revenue being overstated
represents a key audit matter due to the
financial significance and geographical spread
of the Holding Company's projects across
different regions in India.
Considering the significance of revenue to the
financial statements the same has been
considered as a key audit matter.

projects along with the testing of operating
effectiveness thereof;

• Evaluating the criteria applied by the Holding
Company for determining the point in time at
which revenue is recognised;

• Conducting site visits during the year for
selected projects to understand the scope,
nature and progress of the projects.

Considering the adequacy of the disclosures
in the standalone financial statements in
respect of the judgments taken in recognising
revenue for residential and commercial
property units in accordance with Ind AS 115.

NRV of Inventories - See Note 6 of Consolidated Financial Statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Holding Company's inventory comprise of Our audit procedures included the following:
ongoing and completed real estate projects, - Evaluate the Holding Company's accounting
inventory of the projects which have not yet policies for inventory vis a vis the requirements
commenced. As at 31 March 2022, the of the applicable accounting standards;
carrying values of inventories amounts to Rs. - We evaluated the design and implementation
38,856.35 lakhs. of controls over determination of NRV of

inventories including the process,
Inventory may be held for long periods of time methodology and key assumptions on selling
before sale making it vulnerable to reduction in price, estimated cost to complete the project
net realisable value (NRV). This could result in and tested the operating effectiveness thereof;
an overstatement of the value of inventory - Evaluate the Holding Company's judgement
when the carrying value is higher than the with regards to application of write-down of
NRV. inventory units by auditing the key estimates,

data inputs and assumptions adopted in the
Assessing NRV valuations.
NRV is the estimated selling price in the - Comparing the estimated construction costs
ordinary course of business, less estimated to complete each project with the Holding
costs necessary to make the sale and Company's updated budgets.
estimated costs of completion (in case of - We have tested the NRV of the inventories to
construction work-in- progress). The inventory its carrying value in books on sample basis.
of finished goods and construction work-in-
progress is not written down below cost when
completed flats! under-construction flats !
properties are expected to be sold at or above
cost.
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Tata Value Homes Limited

For NRV assessment, the estimated selling
price is determined for a phase, sometimes
comprisingmultiple units. The assessmentand
application of write-down of inventory to NRV
are subject to significant jUdgement by the
Holding Company.

As such inappropriate assumptions in these
judgements can impact the assessment of the
carrying value of inventories.

Considering significance of the amount of
carrying value of inventories in the financial
statements and the involvement of significant
estimation and judgement in such assessment
of NRV, the same has been considered as key
audit matter.

Investment in Subsidiaries and loans to group companlas » See Note 4 and 5 of Standalone
Financial Statements

The key audit matter

The Holding Company has significant
investments in and loan to its subsidiaries and
joint ventures. As at 31 March 2022, the
carrying values of the Holding Company's
investmentin its subsidiaries and joint ventures
and loans given to its subsidiaries and joint
ventures amounts to Rs. 7,302.91 lakhs and
Rs. 16,172.52lakhs, respectively.

Recoverability of investments in
subsidiaries and joint ventures

The Holding Company's investments in
subsidiaries and joint ventures are carried at
cost less any diminution in value. The
investments are assessed for impairment at
each reporting date. The impairment
assessment involves the use of estimates and
judgements. The identification of impairment
event and the determination of an impairment
charge also require the application of
significant judgement by the Holding
Company. The judgement, in particular, is with
respect to the timing, quantity and estimation
of projected cash flows of the real estate
projects in these underlying entities.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our procedures in assessing the
management's judgement for the impairment
assessment included, inter alia, the following:
- We assessed the Holding Company's
valuation methodology applied in determining
the impairment if any of the investments and
loans;
-Evaluate the design and implementation and
tested the operating effectiveness of controls
over the Holding Company's process of
assessment of impairment and approval of
forecasts.
- We obtained and read the valuations used by
the management (including by external valuer
where available) for determining the fair value
('recoverable amount') of its investments and
loans;
- We tested the fair value of the investment and
loans given as mentioned in the valuation
report to the carrying value in books;
- Made inquiries with management to
understand key drivers of the cash flow
forecasts, discount rates etc
- Involved our valuation specialist to evaluate
the assumptions used by the management
specialists. We read the disclosures made in
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In view of the significance of these investments
and above, we consider valuation / impairment
of investments in subsidiaries and joint
ventures to be a key audit matter.

Recoverability of loans to subsidiaries and
joint ventures

Due to the nature of the business in the real
estate industry, the Holding Company is
exposed to heightened risk in respect of the
recoverability of the loans granted to the
aforementioned parties. In addition to nature of
business, there is also significant judgment
involved as to the recoverability of the working
capital. This depends on property
developments projects being completed over
the time period specified in agreements.

We have identified measurement of loans to
subsidiaries and joint ventures as key audit
matter because recoverability assessment
involves the Holding Company's significant
judgement and estimate.

Other Information

the financial statements regarding such
investments.
- Testing the assumptions and understanding
the forecasted cash flows of subsidiaries and
joint ventures based on our knowledge of the
Holding Company and the markets in which
they operate.
- Assessing the comparability of the forecasts
with historical information.
- Assessing the net worth of subsidiaries and
joint ventures on the basis of latest available
financial statements.
- Assessing the controls for grant of new
loans/financial instruments and sighting the
Board approvals obtained. We have tested the
Holding Company's assessment of the
recoverability of the loanslfinancial
instruments, which includes cash flow
projections over the duration of the loans.
These projections are based on underlying
property development appraisals.
- Analysing the possible indications of
impairment and understanding the Holding
Company's assessment of those indications.
- Tracing loans advanced / repaid during the
year to bank statement.
- Obtaining independent confirmations to
assess completeness and existence of loans
and advances given to subsidiaries and joint
ventures as on 31 March 2022.
- We read the disclosures made in the financial
statements regarding such investments and
loans given.

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company's annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Holding
Company's annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledgeobtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Holding Company's annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those chargedwith governance and take necessary
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actions, applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Management's and Board of Directors' I Designated Partners' Responsibilities for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give
a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group including
its associate and joint ventures in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective
Management and Board of Directors of the companies / Designated Partners of the Limited Liability
Partnerships (LLP) included in the Group and the respective Management and Board of
Directors/Designated Partners of its associate and joint ventures are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of
each company / LLP and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and Board of
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of
the companies / Designated Partners of the LLP included in the Group and the respective Management
and Board of Directors/Designated Partners of its associate and joint ventures are responsible for
assessing the ability of each company / LLP to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective
Board of Directors and Designated Partners either intends to liquidate the Company and LLP or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies / Designated Partners of the LLP included in the
Group and the respective Management and Board of Directors/Designated Partners, of its associate and
joint ventures are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each company / LLP.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
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reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associate and joint ventures to cease to
continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of such entities or
business activities within the Group and its associate and joint ventures to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors
remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further
described in paragraph (a) and (b) of the section titled "other Matters" in this audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

Tata Value Homes Limited

Other Matters

a. We did not audit the financial statements of three subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflects
total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 22,769 lakhs as at 31 March 2022, total
revenues (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs.2,182 lakhs and net cash outflows (before
consolidation adjustments) amounting to Rs.628 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered
in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the
Group's share of net loss after tax of Rs. 462 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2022, in respect of
one associate and two joint ventures, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These
financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us
by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates
to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate,
and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the
aforesaid subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate is based solely on the reports of the other
auditors.

b. The financial information of one subsidiary, whose financial information reflects total assets (before
consolidation adjustments) of Rs. Nil as at 31 March 2022, total revenues (before consolidation
adjustments) of Rs. Nil and net cash inflows (before consolidation adjustments) amounting to Rs.NiI
for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, have not been
audited either by us or by other auditors. This unaudited financial information has been furnished to
us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates
to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub­
section (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely
on such unaudited financial information. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us by the Management, this financial information is not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to the financial information
certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of
the other auditors on separate audited financial statements of such subsidiaries, associate and joint
ventures as were audited by other auditors, as noted in the "Other Matters" paragraph, we report, to
the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditors.

c. The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

Tata Value Homes Limited

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on 31 March 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, associate company and joint venture
companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies, its associate
company and joint venture companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, associate company and joint
venture companies incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in "Annexure B".

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (AUdit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other
auditors on separate audited financial statements of the subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures, as
noted in the "Other Matters" paragraph:

a. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at
31 March 2022 on the consolidated financial position of the Group, its associate and joint
ventures. Refer Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

b. The Group, its associate and joint ventures did not have any material foreseeable losses on long­
term contracts including derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2022.

c. There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies, associate company and
joint venture companies incorporated in India during the year ended 31 March 2022.

d (i) The respective management of the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies, associate
company and joint venture companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary
companies, associate company and joint venture companies respectively that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the Note 41(v) to the consolidated financial
statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such
subsidiary companies, associate company and joint venture companies to or in any other persons
or entities, inclUding foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies,
associate company and joint venture companies ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iQ The respective management of the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies, associate
company and joint venture companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary
companies, associate company and joint venture companies respectively that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the Note 41(vi) to the consolidated financial
statements, no funds have been received by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary
companies, associate company and joint venture companies from any persons or entities,
including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies, associate company
and joint venture companies shall:
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

Tata Value Homes Limited

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) above contain any material misstatement.

e. The Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, associate company and joint venture
companies incorporated in India have neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the reports
of the statutory auditors of such subsidiary companies, associate company and joint venture
companies incorporated in India which were not audited by us, the remuneration paid during the
current year by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, associate company and joint
venture companies to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The
remuneration paid to any director by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, associate
company and joint venture companies is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the
Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the
Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

For B S R & Co. LLP

CharteredAccountants

Firm's Registration No.: 101248W/W-1 00022

Place: Mumbai

Date: 13 June 2022

Farhad Bamji

Partner

Membership No.: 105234

ICAI UDIN:22105234AKUHVC9051

Page 10 of 15



B S R & Co, LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of Tata Value Homes Limited for the year ended
31 March 2022

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' section of our report of even date)

(xxi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, following
companies incorporated in India and included in the consolidated financial statements, have
unfavourable remarks, qualification or adverse remarks given by the respective auditors in their
reports under the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (CARO):

Sr. Name of the entities CIN Holding Clause
No. Company/Su number of the

bsidiaryl CARO report
Joint which is

Venturel unfavourable
Associate or qualified or

adverse

1 Tata Value Homes U45400MH2009PL Holding Clause (Iii) (c),
Limited C195605 Company (d), (e) and (f)

Clause (xvii)

2 HLT Residency Private U45400DL2013PTC Subsidiary Clause (iii) (b)
Limited 254807 and (f)

Clause (ix)(e)
Clause (xvii)

3 Smart Value Homes U45400MH2013PT Subsidiary Clause (xvii)
(Peenya Project) C241108
Private Limited

4 HL Promoters Private U45200DL2013PTC Joint Venture Clause (xvii)
Limited 254832

J
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B S R&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of Tata Value Homes Limited for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

The above does not include comments, if any, in respect of the following entities as the CARO
report relating to them has not been issued by its auditor till the date of principal auditor's report.

Name of the entities CIN Subsidiary! Joint Venture!
Associate

North Bombay Real Estate U45209MH2014PTC253864 SUbsidiary
Private Limited

For B S R &Co. LLP

CharteredAccountants

Firm's Registration No.: 101248WIW-1 00022

Place: Mumbai

Date: 13 June 2022

Farhad Bamji

Partner

Membership No.: 105234

ICAI UDIN:22105234AKUHVC9051
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the consolidated financial
statements of lata Value Homes Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' section of our report of even date)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Tata Value Homes Limited
(hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company") as of and for the year ended 31 March 2022, we have
audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and
such companies incorporated in India under the Act which are its subsidiary companies, its associate
company and joint venture companies, as of that date.

In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of subsidiary companies, associate company and joint venture
companies, as were audited by the other auditors, the Holding Company and such companies
incorporated in India which are its subsidiary companies, its associate company and joint venture
companies, have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by such companies
considering the essential components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the "Guidance Note").

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the respective company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Tata Value Homes Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

of the relevant subsidiary companies, associate company and joint venture companies in terms of their
reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with· reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to two SUbsidiary
companies, one associate comapny and one joint venture company, which are companies incorporated
in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

The internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to one subsidiary
company, which is a company incorporated in India and included in these consolidated financial
statements, have not been audited either by us or by other auditor. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us by the Management, such unaudited SUbsidiary company is not
material to the Holding Company.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Tata Value Homes Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

Our opinion is not modified in respect 01 this matter.

For B S R & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.:101248WIW-100022

Place: Mumbai

Date: 13 June 2022

Farhad Bamji

Partner

Membership No.: 105234

ICAI UDIN:22105234AKUHVC9051
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Tata Value Homes Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet
as a/31 March 2022

(~in Lakhs)

Particulars

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
Property, plantlindequipment
Goodwill on consolidation
Investment ill j ointventures
Financialassets

i. Investments
ii. Loans
ili. Otherfinancial assets

Deferred tax assets (net)
Income tax asset(net)

Total Non-Current Assets

2 Current As.!ets
Inventories
Financial assets

i. Trade receivables
ii. Cash and cash equivalents
iii. Bank balances other than (iii) above
Ill.Loans
iv. Otherfinancial assets

Other current assets
Total Current Assets

TotntAsset!

II EQUITY ANDLIABILITIES

Equity
Equity share capital
Otber equity
Equity aUrlbutable to Owners of the Parent
Non Controlling Interest
Total Equity

LIABlLITJES

Note As at Au'
N, 31 Mnrtll 2022 31 March2021

3 (a) 4J.03 32.45
3 (b) 3,814.21 486.31
4(11) 3,477.94 8,095.20

4(1)) 0.02 0.02
4(c) 19,714.55 4,410.1'1
4(d) 183.73 15Ul

S 522.07 2,015.88
S 1,379.67 1,016.68

29,135.22 16,208.39

6 73,933.48 54,245.55

7(a) 9,179.00 9,035.48
7(h) 2,822.50 2,165.49
7(e) 12.18
7Cd) 20,170.18
1(e) 67.78 15.38
e 1,961.09 1,703.31

87,976.03 87,336.)9

1,17,111.25 1,03,544,78

9(a) 80,000.00 80,000,00
9(h) (95,147.26) (81,549.10)

(15,147.26) (1,549.10)
9(e)

(15,147.26) (1,549.10)

Non-Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities

i. Borrowings
n. Trade pnyables

a. Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
b. TOIllI outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprisesand small enterprises

iii. Other financial liabilities

Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Total Non-ellrrent Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Financialllabllitios

i. Borrowings
n. Trade payables

a. Total outstanding dues of'micro enterpriaes and small enterprises
b. Totaloutstanding dues ofcreditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

iii. Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other current liabilieios
Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

Summaryof significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes 1 to 44 are an integral part ofthc consolidated financial statements

In terms of our report attached

10
11

12(n)
12(b)

S

l3(a)

13(b)

l3(c)

14

IS

66,320.87 46,618.75

240,86 405,80
33,01 36.06
13,80 18.54

1,080.00
67,688.54 47,079.15

33,521.87 36,435.40

11,028,29 4,455.42
14,374.79 14,137.84

588.74 381.73
5,056.28 2,604.34

64,569.97 58.014.73
1,32,258.51 1,05,093.88

1,17,111,25 1,03,544.78

For and on bebalf of the Board of Dil~dOl'~
Tata Value Homes Limited

ClN: U45400MH2009PLCI95605

FOI'DSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: tOt248WIW-I00022

J\l"J'~
Farhatl Damji
Partner
Membership No 105234

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13 JUlie2022

=====;.~
Sanjay DUll

Director
DIN: 0525t670

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13 Jnne 2022

~C"Le~f>t.~'I>t-
Sandeep Chhabrla

Director
DIN: 08331848

~
MrUllll1Shllkla

L'ompanySecretary
Membership No A31734



Tata Value Homes Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
[or theyear ended31 March 2022

('{ in Lakhs)

Pnrtleulara

Revenuefrom Operations
Other Income

-Gainon remeesurementof previouslyheld equity interest(refernote 33 [e]
-Other Income

Total Income

EXPENSES
Cost of MaterialsConsumed
Changesin inventoriesof constructionmaterial,finishedgoodsand projectwork-in­
progress
EmployeeBenefitsExpenses
FinanceCosts
Depreciationand AmortisationExpense
Other Expenses
Total Expenses

Loss before Impairment of Leans given and Investments in joint ventures and
Share of net loss of Joint Ventures and Associate

Impainnent of Loansgiven millinvestmentsinjoint ventures(net)

Loss before 51la.oe of net loss of Joint Ventures and Associate and Tax

Shareof loss of joint venturesand associate

Loss Before Tax

Tax expense c1largcd/(credited)
Current tax
Deferred lax

Loss after tax

Other Comprehensive Incomel(Loss):
Items that willnot be reclassified to profit or luSB:
Remeasurements of defmed benefit liability
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Other Comprehensive (Loss) /Income for tile year, net of tax
Total Comprehensive Loss for the year

Loss for the year nttrlbutnbje to:
Owners of the Parent
Non-controlling interests

Other Comprehensive (Loss) 'Income for the year aurlbuteble to:
Owners of the Parent
Non-controlling interests

Total Comprehensive Loss for the year attrfhuteble to:
Owners of the Parent
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per Ordhmry shaloc:
Basic and dilutedearnings per share (face value of ~ 10/-each) (In~)

Summaryofsignificant accountingpolicies
TIle accompanying notes I to 44 arc an integral part of the consolidatedfinancial statements

111 terms of our report attached

ForBSR&Co.LLI'
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248WIW-100022

Note
N,

16

17

18

19
20
21

22

23

27

For the year ended For the year ended
31 Mllreb 2022 31 March 2021

13,971.35 14,331.22

3,783.32
1,124.18 1,698.63

18,878.85 16,029,85

17,979.17 24,049,93

(4,744.95) (10,407,58)

1,485.19 1,301.61
6,924.40 8,726.59

16.63 17.87
6,017.15 12,876.18

27,677.59 36,564.60

(8,798,74) (20,534.75)

2,485,00 5,820.31

(11,283.74) (26,355.06)

(801,83) (4,519.10)

(12,085,57) (30,874.16)

(7.91) 14.99
1,499,94 217.01
1,492.03 232.00

(13,577.60) (31,106.16)

(26.70) 36,82
6.14 1.75

(20.56) 38,57
03,598.16) (31 067.59)

(13,577.60) (31,106.16)

(13,577.60) (31.106.16)

(20.56) 38.57

(20.56) 38.57

(13,598.16) (31,067.59)

(13,598.16) (31,067.59)

(1.70) (7.63)

For lind on behalf of the Board ormrectcrs

Tara Valuellomes Limited
CIN: U45400MH2009PLCI95605

Farllad Bamjl
Partner
Membership No: 105234

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13 June 2022

Sanjay Dutt
Director
DIN: 05251670

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13 JIUle 2022

Saadeep Chhabda
Dtreaor

DIN: 08331848

~.
Company Secretory

Membership No. A31734



Tata Value Homes Limited

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(~inLakhs)

A) Equity Share Capital

N~
Au' ~"'

31 M>ireh2022 31M=h2021

Op.nwgbal~ 80,000.00 40,000,00
Chong.. III equitvshIII<o""Pital du<: to prior I'<'riod errors

RHtnted OpeniDg Balance 80,000.00 .ro,oOO.OO
Ch:mge:; IIIeqwty .hal'e ""pita! duringthe year 4MOO.00

Go,iltg ba!lulee 9(a) 811,(100.00 80,000.00

B) Other Equity

Total
NOll Contro16ng

Partkulars N.~ Total CompreheDs:ln mC<lme Attributable to
IDlewts

T....
Owners of the Parent

Debenture
R.tdned 0",

redemption re,erve ""mp~,I\-e
earnmg.

in."",.

Balance ... al I April 2020 1.11196 (5).60148) 8,01 (50.481.51) (50.481.51)

Los. for they= (3l,l00.16) (31,106,16) (31,106.16)

Oth~r eompnhtmgi"" ineolnd(lo<!1)!lJrthe year

Rem=enl:! ofp<>st-employmentb.m:fit obligations - 38,57 38.57 38,57
rr"",f... from Retailled <WIIings (UII.%) (1,111.96) (I,ll 1.96)

T=sl'er=l frwI Debenturerc<lowptiOll='" 1,111.96 1,111.96 1,111.96

Balan"" as at 31 Marcl12021 ,., (81,595.68) "'"" (81,549.10) - (81,549.10)

!.I",. f~r the yew- m.577.60} (13,577.60) (13,577.60)

Otha (;(}mpnJU!nsiv~Uu:omH(1css)jor tJz~]'~llr

Rem=enlS ofp<>Sl-employm<:lll b<:n<::lit ohligotiollS (20.56) (20.56) (2056)

Balance all at31 Ma ...h 2022 'OJ - (95,173.28) 26.02 (95,147.26) (95,147.26)

Summary of significant accounting policies 2

For and on behalfof the Board of Directors
Tam Value Homes Limited

eIN: U45400:MH2009PLCI95605

The accompanying notes 1 to 44 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

In tenus of our report attached

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Finn's Registration No: 101248WfW-lOO022

J\j\J..1U----\

Farhad Bamji
Partner
MembershipNo: 105234

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13 June 2022

-------:A~

Sanjay Dutt
Director
DIN: 05251670

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13 June 2022

-SOl'll. CCf C-J...~" !:It---
Sandeep Chhabda

Director
DIN: 08331848

~
Mrunal Shukla

Company Secretary
Membership No. A31734



Tata Value Homes Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for theyear ended31 March 2022

(~in Lakhs)

Particulars

A. Cash flow from Operating Activities
Lossbefore lax
Adjustmentsfbrr-
Depredation and Amortisation Expense
Net (gain) I losson sale ofproperty,plant and equipment
Gain relating to acquisitionof a subsidiary
Finance cost
Interest Incomeon ICDs
Interest Incomeon fixed deposits
Interest Incomeon Income tax refunds
ProvisionforCustomerCompensation
Impairment ofloans given to joint ventures (net)
Impact afNRV on inventory(net)

Operating Loss before Working Capital Changes

Adjustments for changesin working capital>
(Increase) in trade receivables
Decreasein inventories
Decrease in other financialassets, other non-currentassets and other current assets
(Decrease) in trade peyables,other financial liabilities,other liabilities and provisions
Cash generated from Operating Activities
IncomeTaxes (paid)lRefund (net)
Net Cash from Operating Activities

B. Cash flowfrom Investing Activities
Purchase of property,plant and equipment
Proceeds fromsale of property,plant and equipment
Purchase oftnvestments
Loans granted to Joint ventures
Repaymentof Loansgranted
Interest received
Net Cash generatel( used in) Investing Activities

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issue of ShareCapital
Proceeds fromborrowings
Repaymentof borrowings
Repaymentof workingcapitalborrowings (net)
Interest paid
Net Cash generate/( uscd In) Financing Activities

Net increase I (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A) + (8) + (C)

Cash and Cash Equivalentsat the beginning ofthe year

Add: Acquisitionof Subsidiary

Cash and Cash Equivalentsat the end ofthe year

A

n

c

31 March 2022 31 March2021

(11,283.74) (26,355.06)

16.63 17.87
0.86 (0.86)

(3,783.32)
6,924.40 8,726.59
(501.05) (611.38)

(0.08)
(6.15) (17.93)
16.30 10,31

2,485.00 5,820.31
2,700.02 10,671.69

(3,431.05) (1,738.54)

(143.52) (677.00)
9,096.03 11,297.67
1,456.20 3,661.25
(559.45) (8,558.63)

6,418.21 3,984.75
(265.21) (104.27)

6,153.00 3,880.48

(26.06) (10.62)
2.93 2.42

882.38 (27.00)
(21,823.05) (3,362.31)
21,774.00
5,422.62 52.05
6,232.82 (3,345.46)

40,000.00
57,281.76 29,995.00

(42,119.52) (58,301.98)
(23,328.71) (671.22)
(3,731.34) (10,597.53)

(11,897.81) 424.27

488.01 959.29

2,166.49 1,207.20

168.00

2,822.50 2,166.49



Tata Value Homes Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for theyear ended3I March2022

Notes:

(i) The accompanying notes 1 to 44 are an integralpart of the consolidatedfinancialstatements

(ii) The aboveCashFlow Statementhas been preparedunder 'IndirectMethod'as set out in the AccountingStandard(INDAS) 7 ~ "CashFlowStatement".

Debt reconciliation statement in accordancewith lNDAS7

'!if'\!>
TATJ'\.

Opening Balances
Long term borrowings

Short TermBorrowings

Changes as per Statement of Cash Flow

Long leon borrowings
ShortTe1111 Borrowings

Non cash changes
Changesfromloosingcontrol of subsidiary
AccruedInterest

Closing Balances
Long term borrowings
Short TermBorrowings

In termsof 0111'reportattached

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm'sRegistrationNo; 101248WfW~100022

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

46,618.75 73,912,61

36,435.40 39,100.59

15,162.24 (28,306.98)
(23,328,71) (671.22)

21,762.00
3,193,06 (980.85)

66,320.87 46.618.75
33,521.87 36,435.40

For and on behalf of the Bonrd of Directors
Tata Value Homes Limited

CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605

Farlllld Bamjl

Partner
MembershipNo:105234

Place:Mumbai
Date: 13 June 2022

Salljay Dutt
Director
DIN: 05251670

Place:Mumbai
Date: 13 June 2022

Snndecp Chhabda
Director

DIN: 08331848

Mrunal Shulda
Company Secretary

Membership No.A31734



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(~ in lakhs)

Background

Tata Value Homes Limited ("the Parent"), its subsidiaries (collectively called as the "Group") and joint
ventures have main interest in development of real estate. The Group, its joint ventures and associate are
into real estate development and its key activities include project conceptualizing and designing,
development, management and marketing.

1. Basis of Preparation

a. Statement of Compliance with Ind AS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act. The accounting
policies followed in the preparation of these financials statements are the same as those of the previous
year.

These financial statemeuts were authorised for issue by the Board ofDirectors of the Company on 13th

June 2022

b. Going Concern

As at 31 March 2022, Holding Company's, short-term borrowings comprising commercial paper and
non-convertible debentures ('NCD") (including current maturities of long-term borrowings) aggregate
Rs 29,500 Lakhs. In addition, the Holding Company's has working capital loans of Rs 36.32 Lakhs.
Management has forecasted the future cash flows on the basis of significant assumptions as per the
available information. These forecasted future cash flows indicate that the cash flows from its operations
may not be adequate for meeting its funding requirements including repayment of borrowings due in
the next one year from the date ofapproval of the financials statement. Thus, Holding Company's ability
to meet its obligations depends on generation of adequate funds from operations, continued and
additional funding from the lenders/ markets including the possibility of refinancing of borrowing
facilities. The Management is confident, based on discussions with prospective lenders, past history of
the ability to refinance borrowings and strong credit rating enjoyed by Holding Company's existing
facilities, that its plans for generation offnnds (including borrowings) are feasible and will be adequate
for the Holding Company to meet its obligations as and when they fall due. Accordingly, the audited
financial result of Holding Company's included in this consolidated financials statement are prepared
on a going concern basis.



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(~ in lakhs)

c. Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

i. Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Parent and entities
(including structured entities) controlled by the Parent and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when
the Parent:

• has power over the investee;
• is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
• has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Parent reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Parent has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Parent considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether or not the Parent's voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power,
including:

• the size of the Parent's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings
of the other vote holders;

• potential voting rights held by the Parent, other vote holders or other parties;
• rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

• any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Parent has, or does not have, the
current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholders' meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Parent obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Parent loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
from the date the Parent gains control until the date when the Parent ceases to control the subsidiary,

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
Parent and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Parent and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. The Group and its joint ventures present the non-controlling interest
in the Consolidated Balance Sheet within equity, separately from the equity ofthe Group and its joint
ventures as owners. The excess of the Group and its joint venture's share in the net worth of the
subsidiary on the date ofcontrol acquired is treated as goodwill while a deficit is considered as a capital
reserve on the consolidated financial statement.

On disposal of the subsidiary, attributable amount on goodwill is included in the determination of the
profit or loss and recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment loss, if any, to the extent the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is charged
off to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as it arises and is not reversed. For impairment
testing, goodwill is allocated to Cash Generating Unit (CGU).

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their»
accounting policies into line with the Group and its joint venture's accounting policies. ~..



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(~ in lakhs)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated in full on consolidation.

ii. Investments in joint ventures and associate

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties tbat have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to tbe net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decision about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

An associate is an entity in which tbe group has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over the financial and operating policies.

The results and assets and liahilities of joint ventures and associate are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statement using equity method of accounting. Under the equity metbod of
accounting, the investment in a joint venture and associate is initially recognised in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group, its joint venture's and associate
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and other comprehensive income oftbe joint venture and
associate. Dividends received or receivable from a joint venture and associate reduces the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group, its joint venture's and associate share exceed the Group,
its joint venture's and associate interest in tbe joint venture and associate (which includes any long
term interest that, in substance, form part of the Group and its joint venture's and associate net
investment in the joint venture and associate), the Group, its joint ventures and associate discontinue
recognizing its share offurther losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent tbat the Group,
its joint ventures and associate have incurred legal or constructive obligation or made payments on
behalf of tbe joint venture and associate.

The Group, its j oint ventures and associate discontinue tbe use of equity metbod from the date when
the investment ceases to be ajoint venture and associate.

When a Group and its joint ventures entity transact witb a joint venture of the Group and its joint
ventures, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the joint venture are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interest in the joint venture that are not related to
the Group and its joint ventures.

d. Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except
for certain items that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies.

e. Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Group. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless
otherwise indicated.



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(~ in lakhs)

f. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

i. Goodwill impairment
Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis and whenever there is an indication that the
recoverable amount of a cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount based on a number of
factors including operating results, business plans, future cash flows and economic conditions. The
recoverable amount of cash generating units is determined based on higher of value-in-use and fair
value less cost to sell. The goodwill impairment test is performed at the level of the cash-generating
unit or groups of cash-generating units which are benefitting from the synergies of the acquisition and
which represent the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Market related information and estimates are used to determine the recoverable amount. Key
assumptions on which management has based its determination of recoverable amount include
estimated long term.

ii. Impairment for doubtful recoverable, advances and financial assets

The Group and its joint ventures make impairment for doubtful recoverable, advances and financial
assets based on an assessment of the recoverability. The identification ofdoubtful debts requires use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of the other receivables and advances and impairment expenses in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

iii. Valuation of deferred tax assets

The Group and its joint ventures review the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each
reporting period.

iv. Provision for customer compensation

Provision is made for estimated compensation claims to be paid to customers in respect of delay in
handing over possession of flats. These claims are expected to be settled in the next financial year.
Management makes an estimate of the provision based on expected time of delivery and taking into
consideration past experiences.

v. Impairment loss of inventory

Provision is made for estimated Impairment loss of inventory. Management makes an estimate of the
provision based on expected realisation from inventory taking into consideration past el<perience.s"
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Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(~ in lakbs)

2. Significant accounting policies

a. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and are net of
cancellations, value added taxes, service tax, GST, other applicable taxes and amount collected on
behalf of third parties.

1. Revenue from real estate development projects

The Group enters into contracts with customers to sell property that are either completed or under
development.
The sale of completed property constitutes a single performance obligation and the Group
recognizes revenue when the same has been satisfied.

Group recogoise revenue when the below mentioned conditions get satisfied;

occupancy certificate for the project is received by the Group
possession is either taken by the customer or offer letter for possession along with the
invoice for the full amount of consideration is issued to the customer
substantial consideration has been received and the Group is reasonably certain that the
remaining consideration will flow to the entity.
there are no legal claims/ complains been made by the customer

The Group considers whether there are promises in the contract that are separate performance
obligations or are to be delivered even after completing the aforesaid conditions and to which a
portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated and if so the Group allocates the attributable
transaction price and as control is deemed to have passed to the customer recognizes revenue over
time as the related obligations are satisfied.

For contracts relating to the sale of property under development, the Group is responsible for the
overall management of the project and identifies various goods and services to be provided. The
Group accounts for these items as a single performance obligation because it provides a significant
service of integrating the goods and services (the inputs) into the completed property (the
combined output) which the customer has contracted to buy.

ii. Project ManagemcntlMarketing fees

Revenue from project management/marketing services is recognised in the accounting period in
which services are rendered in accordance with the substance of the agreement.

iii. Other Income from Customers

Other income from customers are accounted on accrual basis in accordance with the terms of
agreement/allotment letters.



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(~ in lakhs)

b. Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has
been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

c. Construction Costs

Construction costs comprise project costs incurred to enable the Group to complete its performance
obligations. These include cost of land and cost of development rights, construction and development
costs, borrowings costs incurred and also include cost of development of common facilities and
amenities.

These costs are allocated to each unit of sale (residential or commercial) on a systematic basis as
construction progress and are expensed when the related revenue in respect of the unit is recognised.

Pending recognition of revenue, the costs are accumulated and disclosed as construction work in
progress/Finished goods within inventory.

d. Income tax

Current tax:
Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable profit for the year.

Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the standalone statement of profit and loss
because of items of income or expenses that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax:
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of the assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation oftaxable
profits. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit
may not be available. Therefore, in case ofa history of recent losses, the Group recognises a deferred tax
asset only to the extent that is has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other
evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be
realized.



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(~ in lakhs)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in standalone Statement ofProfit and Loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
current tax and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic
benefits in the form of adjustment to the future current tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is
reasonable certainty of it being set off against regular tax payable within the stipulated statutory period.
MAT credit is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of MAT credit is written
down to the extent there is no longer reasonable certainty to the effect that the Group will pay regular
tax during such specified period.

e. Leases - as a lessee

Policy applicable before I April 2019

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease's
inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or
other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the
Group as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases.

Policy applicable after I April 2019

The Group has adopted Ind AS 116 effective from April I 2019 using modified retrospective approach.
For the purpose of preparation of Financial Information, management has evaluated the impact of
change in accounting policies required due to adoption of lnd AS 116 for year ended M~~l,I.1D3_~~~~.,
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Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(~ in lakhs)

The Group assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use ofan identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified assets, the Group assesses whether: (i) the contact involves the use of an identified asset
(ii) the Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of
the lease and (iii) the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

As a lessee, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate ofcosts to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier ofthe end ofthe useful life of the right-of- use asset or the end ofthe
lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those
of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, ifthat rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group's incremental bon-owing rate. Generally, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the fixed payments,
including in substance fixed payments; The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The Group has used number of practical expedients when applying Ind AS
116: - Short-term leases, leases oflow-value assets and single discount rate.

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term. The
Group applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic
environment with a similar end date

f. Cash and cash eqnivalents

For the pnrpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, Cash comprises cash on hand and
demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of
three months or less from the date ofacquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdraft and cash credit are disclosed under current borrowings in financial liability
in the balance sheet.

g. Inventories

Construction costs comprise project costs incurred to enable the Group to complete its performance
obligations. These include cost ofland and cost of development rights, construction and development
costs, borrowings costs incurred and also include cost of development of conunon f~j;jlilles and
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Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

('I: in lakhs)

Inventories comprises of cost of construction material, finished residential or commercial properties
and costs of projects under construction/development (construction work-in-progress). Inventories are
valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of construction material is determined on
a weighted average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs
of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

h. Financial Assets

Classification
The Group classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of its business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Initial recognition and measurement
The Group recognises financial assets when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measuremeut
For the purpose ofsubsequent measurement, the financial assets are classified in three categories:

• Debt instruments at amortised cost
• Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss
• Equity investments

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b. Contractual terms ofthe asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium and fees or costs that are an integral part ofthe EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
finance income in the Standalone statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the Standalone statement of profit and loss.

Debt iustruments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Debt instruments included in the fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) category are measured at
fair value with all changes recognised in the Standalone statement of profit and loss.

Equity investments
All equity investments other than investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate are measured
at fail' value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL.Hir alk:91her
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Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(ii!' in lakhs)

equity instruments, the Group decides to classify the same either as at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) or FVTPL. The Group makes such election on an instrument-by­
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to the Standalone statement of profit and loss, even on sale of such
investments.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Standalone statement ofprofit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognised when:

a. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
b. the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
c. the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards ofthe asset,

but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group applies 'simplified approach' measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the
following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, and bank balance.

b. Trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather,
it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime expected credit loss at each reporting date,
right from its initial recognition.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification
The Group classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Standalone
statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
transactions costs. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Standalone statement of
profit and loss. _""~"''''''-_
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Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Standalone
statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amonnts and there is an intention to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Equity Instruments
Equity instrwnents are recognised at the value of the proceeds, net of direct costs of the capital issue.

i. Property, plant and equipment

Recognition & Measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises:

its purchase price, includes non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and
rebates.
any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located.

If significant parts ofan item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
acconnted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss
on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Capital work-in-progress in respect of assets which are not ready for their intended use are carried at
costs, comprising of direct costs, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefit associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

Disposals or retirement
Any gains or losses arising on the disposals or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

j. Depreciation methods, estimated usefid lives and residual value
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Assets Useful life
Buildings 60 years
Office Equipment 5 years
Computers 3 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Electrical Fittings 10 years
Motor Vehicles 8 years
Cellular Phones 2.5 years

Leasehold improvements are amortised over lease ofthe estimated useful life ofthe asset or the lease period.
The Lease period where the Group is lessee includes the periods where the Group has the unilateral right
to renew the lease and intends to do.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

k. Capital Work-in Progress

Capital expenditure on assets not owned by the Group is reflected as a distinct item in Capital Work-in
Progress till the period of completion and thereafter in the Property, plant and equipment.

I. Intangible assets

Intangible assets purchased is stated at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Amortisation methods andperiods
The Group amortises cost of software over a period of3 years on a straight-line basis.

m. Impairment of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets

The carrying amounts of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets are reviewed at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indications exist, the recover able amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

An impairment loss is recognised in the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss wherever the carrying
amount ofthe asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of the asset's fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using appropriate discount factor. When there is an indication that an
impairment loss recognised for the asset in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have
decreased such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.
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n. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest, other costs incurred and exchange differences arising from foreign
currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Borrowing costs,
allocated to and utilised for qualifying construction project / assets, pertaining to the period from
commencement of activities relating to construction / development of the qualifying construction project /
assets up to the date of substantial completion of project / capitalisation of such asset are added to the cost
ofconstruction project / assets. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement
ofProfit and Loss during extended periods when active development activity on the qualifying construction
project / assets is interrupted. A qualifying construction project / asset is an asset that necessarily takes
substantial time or more to get ready for its intended use or sale and includes the real estate properties
developed by the Group.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowing pending their expenditure on
qualifying construction project / assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

o. Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all ofthe economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not require an outflow ofresources embodying economic benefits or the amount
of such obligation caunot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
in respect ofwhich likelihood ofoutflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision
or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are not disclosed in the financial statements unless an inflow ofeconomic benefits is
probable.

p. Employee benefits

i. Post-employment obligations

The Group operates the following post-employment schemes:

(a) Defined benefit plan

The Group's obligation towards gratuity to employees, post-retirement medical benefits'ltn ex­;;<:, .:/:~,",C :~<.~,:_',.o\
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(~ in lakhs)

directors pension obligations is determined using tbe Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Re-measurement, comprising actuarial
gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling and the return on plan asset, is
reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other
comprehensive income in tbe period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in the retained earnings and not reclassified to
profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in the standalone Statement of Profit or Loss in the
period of a plan amendment. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to
the net balance of tbe defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is
recognised as employee benefit expense in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

(b) Defined contribution plan

The Group's contributions to Provident fund, Superannuation Fund and employee's state insurance
scheme are considered as defined contribution plans. The Group is liable for contributions and
any deficiency compared to interest computed based on the rate ofinterest declared by the Central
Government under the Employees' Provident Fund Scheme, 1952 and recognises, if any, as an
expense in the year it is determined. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent tbat a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is available.

ii. Other Long-term employee benefit obligations
The Group's obligation towards other long-term employee benefits in the form of compensated
absences and long service awards are based on actuary valuation. The valuation is carried out using the
Project Unit Credit Method as per Ind AS 19 to determine the Present Value of Benefit Obligations and
the related Current Service Cost and, where applicable, Past Service Cost.

iii. Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service
are recognized in respect ofemployees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

q. Dividends to equity shareholders
Dividend to equity shareholders is recognised as a liability and deducted from shareholders' equity, in the
period in which the shareholders have the right to receive the dividend which in the case of interim
dividends are when these are declared by the Board of Directors ofthe Parent of the Group and when these
are approved in the Annnal General Meeting of tbe Parent of the Group in any other case.

r. Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a maimer consistent with the internal reporting provided to tbe Chief
Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") of tbe Parent of tbe Group. The CODM, who is responsible for
allocating resonrces and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the
Managing Director & CEO of the Parent ofthe Group.

s. Foreign Currency Transactions
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlemenyf=.
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in forei~~()Jfi..e\1cl' . <
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit an~'i~SL'".;..,..,,,,,:,;~:,,;;,..• «)
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t. Operating cycle
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current based on operating cycle
determined in accordance with the guidance as set out in the Schedule III ofthe Companies Act, 2013.
The operating cycle of the Group is determined to be 12 months.

u. Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures as at date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts ofthe revenues and expenses for the years presented. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

a) Critical Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

i. Discount rate used to determine the carrying amount of the Group's defined benefit obligation:
In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management
considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of
the post-employment benefit obligation.

ii. Contingences and commitments:
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigations and other
claims against the Group. Where the potential liabilities have a low probability of crystallising
or are very difficult to quantify reliably, the Group treats them as contingent liabilities. Such
liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the financial statements. Although
there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings, the Group does
not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on financial position or profitability.

iii. Classification of entities as joint ventures:

The below entities are limited liability entities whose legal form confers separation between the
parties to the joint arrangement and the Group itself. Furthermore, there is no contractual
arrangement or any other facts and circumstances that indicate that the parties to the joint
arrangement have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities ofthe joint arrangement.
Accordingly, these entities are classified as joint ventures of the Group.
I. Smart Value Homes (Peenya project) Private Limited (upto 21/05/2021) _<,.~_>_.

2. Smart Value Homes (New Project) LLP (upto 15/09/2021) tr'~,'.l'<., l",-",O"., c
3. Arvind and Smart Value Homes LLP 0;(--:;'''', <-0
4. Land Kart Builders Private Limited ( C"~i:":iV;~,;"'
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b) Key sources of estimation uucertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

vi, Impairment for doubtful recoverable, advances and financial assets (Refer note 4(c) and 7(d»:
The Group makes impairment for doubtful recoverable, advances and financial assets based on
an assessment of the recoverability. The identification of doubtful debts requires use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the other receivables and advances and impairment
expenses in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

vii. Valuation of deferred tax assets (refer note 5)
The Group review the carrying amount ofdeferred tax assets at the end ofeach reporting period.

viii. Provision for customer compensation (refer note 14)
Provision is made for estimated compensation claims to be paid to customers in respect ofdelay
in handing over possession offlats. These claims are expected to be settled in the next financial
year. Management makes an estimate of the provision based on expected time of delivery and
taking into consideration past experiences.

ix. Net realisable value of inventory (refer note 6)
Management makes an estimate of the net realisable value of inventory based on expected
realisation from inventory taking into consideration past experiences/valuation reports.

Recent Pronouncement

i) Amendment to Ind AS 116 Leases: COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions.

MCA issued an amendment to Ind AS 116 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021
to update the condition for lessees to apply the relief to a reduction in lease payments originally due on
or before 30 June 2022 from 30 June 2021. The amendment applies to annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2021. The Company has not been affected by these amendments as there
are no rent concessions provided for from the lessor.

ii) The MCA has carried out amendments to certain other accounting standards as well like

a) Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2: Amendments to Ind AS 109, Ind AS 107, Ind AS
104 and Ind AS 116.

b) Ind AS 103: Business combination.
c) Amendment to Ind AS lOS, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28 in relation to amended defmition of

"recoverable amount". The words "the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use" are replaced with "higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and its
value inuse".

~~& (.~~/

r:i
()-,~ <.../
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All these amendments had no Impact on the Consolidated financial statement of the Company. ," :';':r'::~"
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as at 31 March 2022
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3 (a) Property, plant and equipment

v~
~._"'--

Particulars Office Equipments Office Furniture
Information

Electrical Fittings Total
Technology Hardware

Year ended 31 March 2022

Gross carrying amount

Balance as at I Apn12021 56.32 27.56 69.67 0.68 154.23

On Account of Conversionof Joint VenturesTo Subsidiaries 1.89 3.20 11.60 - 16.69

Additions 5.83 - 20.30 - 26.13

Disposals (7.75) (0.18) (20.39) (0.63) (28.95)

Balance as at 31 March 2022 (A] 56.29 30.58 81.18 0.05 168.10

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April 2021 47.05 22.35 51.81 0.58 121.79

On Account of Conversionof Joint VenturesTo Subsidiaries 1.70 2.50 9.30 - 13.50

Depreciation expenses during the year 2.68 0.80 13.14 0.02 16.63

Disposals (6.49) (0.16) (19.63) (0.56) (26.84)

Balance as at 31 March 2022 [B] 44.94 25.49 54.62 0.04 125.09

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2022 [A-B] 11.36 5.09 26.56 0.01 43.03

Year ended 31 March 2021

Gross carrying amount

Balance as at 1 April 2020 69.89 33.10 73.24 0.68 17691

Additions - - 10.63 - 10.63

Disposals (13.57) (5.54) (14.19) - (33.30)

Balance as at 31 March 2021 [C} 56.32 27.56 69.67 0.68 154.23

Accnmulated depreciation and impairment
;''''£0Balance as at 1 April 2020 57.11 25.74 52.48 0.54 t1iDepreciation expenses during the year 2.82 1.79 13.01 0.04 '(;~nl
emFloor, <,
IB",~;iilg ani

Disposals (12.88) (5.18) (13.68) - 1.7~'- j!neWing,

I ~21.79,
co IT Par.:.4.

Balance as at 31 March 2021 [D] 47.05 22.35 51.81 0.58 sco tene.

\\ lfAfio
pres '-Ilgn

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2021 [C-D} 9.27 5.21 1786 0.10 9"0" I:Eesl).
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« in Lakhs)

3 (b) Goodwill on conslidation

Particnlars

Carrying amount as at 1 April
Additions (refer note no 33 (d))
Impairment
Balance as at 31 March

Impairment testing of Goodwill on Consolidation

Year ended 31
March 2022

486.31
3,327.90

3,814.21

Year ended 31
March 2021

486.31

486.31

Smart Value Homes (Peenya Project) Private Limited is a step down Subsidiary of the Company.

For the purposes of impairment testing, carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to the following

Particulars Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2022 March 2021

Smart Value Homes (Peenya Project) Private Limited 3,327.90 -

The recoverable amounts of the above CGU's have been assessed using a value-in-use model. Value in
use is generally calculated as the net present value of the projected post-tax cash flows plus a terminal
value of the cash generating unit to which the goodwill is allocated. Initially a post-tax discount rate is
applied to calculate the net present value of the post-tax cash flows

The Goodwill amount of <3,327.90 lakhs has been created during the year. Hence, the company has not
carried out the impairment testing of the carrying amount of goodwill.
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As at

31 March 2022
Asat

31 March2021

4 Financial assets

4(a) Investments- Non-current

(A) Fully paid-up unquoted equity Instruments

In Joint Ventures measured at cost less Impairment
(carrying amountdeterminedusing theequitymethodof accounting)
{formovement refernote36}

Smart Value Homes (peenya project) Private Limited **
Nil (As at31 March 2021: 1,275,000) equity shares of~ 10 each fully paid-up.

LandkartBuildersPrivate Limited(w.e.f 18July 2019)
10,410 (As at31 March 2021: 10,410) equity shares of~ 10 each fully paid-up

HL PromotersPrivate Limited
4,080,000 (As at31 March 2021: 4,080,000) equity shares of~ 10 each fully paid-up

(B) Investment in partnership firms
(Measured at cost less impairment)

Arvind and SmartValue Homes LLP
Less : Provisionfor Impainnent

5,962.94
(2,485.00)

5,970.44

Smart ValueHomesNew Project LLP **
- Fixed capital
- Current Capital

0.51
2,124.25

3,477.94 8,095.20

4(b) Investments· Non-current

(A) Investment in Unquoted equity Iustrumems at cost (fully paid-up)
In Associate
SynergizersSustainableFoundation
150 (As at 31 March2021: 150) equity sharesoff 10 each

0.02

3,477.96

0.02

8,095.22

Aggregate amountof quoted investments and marketvalue thereof
Aggregateamountof unquoted investments 3,477.96 8,095.22

**During the year the companyhad acquired theadditionalshares of Smart ValueHomes (Peenyaproject)Private Limited& SmartValue HomesNew
Project LLPand had become the whollyownedsubsidiary

4(c) Loam - Non-current
Unsecured,consideredgood

Loans and Inter-CorporateDeposits to relatedparties(refer note 31.1) 19,714.55 4,410.74

Unsecured,credit impaired
Loans and Inter-CorporateDeposits to relatedparties(refer note 31.1)
Less:provisionfor doubtfulloans

5,820.31
(5,820.31)

19,714.55 4,410.74

ddhiRLoans - .enava e on emnn
A,,,, Asat

S,.
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

No.
Particulars Amount of loans % to the total Amount ofloaus % to the total

IAdvances Loans lind IAdvances Loans and
outstandina Advances cutstandine Advances

(0) Promoters -
(h) Directors -
«) KMP, -
(d) Related Parties 19,714.55 100% 4,410.74 100%
«) Others - /~i~~Total 19714.55 100% 4,410.74 h=~ .' "-;:--

-'. '(
fI 'Q/c err-em -0(;~n;ra! E""'~g and

NOfl:l~ ;,1M'".
( New, 'TP~f~1

Nese, ~'~~leJ.
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(~ in Lakhs)

As at
31 March 2022

4 Financial assets (Continued)

4(d) Other financial assets- Non-current
(Unsecured, considered good)

As at
31 March 2021

SecurityDeposits
• relatedparties (refer note 31.2)
• others

Balance with bank in fixed deposits, with maturity beyond 12 months
(refer note 4.1 and 4.2)

116.85

66.88

183.73

0.07
142,53

8.51

151.11
Note

4.1 Fixeddeposits of'\ 63.21 Lakhs(Asat 31March2021 '\ Nil) placedwith IDBI Bankareunderlienin favour of AssistantCommissioner of Commercial
Taxes, Bangalorefor the disputedamount related to assessmentorder for VAT(AY2016-11)on behalfof one of the subsidiarycompany.

4.2 Fixed deposits of'\ 8.51 Lakhs (As at 31 March 2021 \ 8.511akhs) placed with IDBIBank are under lien in favour of Assistant Commissionerof
CommercialTaxes, Bangalore for the disputed amount related to assessment order for VAT (AY 2017-18) on behalf of one of the subsidiarycompany.

5 Income Tax Asset (net)

- Advance Income-Tax (net of provisions) 1,379.67

1,379.67

1,016.68

1,016.68
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5 Income Tax Asset (net) I Deferred Tax Assets (net)

Partlculars As at As a!

31 March 2022 31 March2021

(a) Ineome tax expense

Current tax

Current lax (Income) /Bxpense (7.91) 14,99

Total current tax (Income) !Expense (7,91) 14.99

(b) Deferred Tax

Decrease in deferred tID;,assets 181.68 210.13

MATcredit utilised/reversed 1,318.26 6.83

Total deferred tax expense 1,499.94 217.oJ

Income tax expense 1,492.03 232.00

Particulars

(b) The reconciliation of estimated Income tax expense at Indian statntory income tax rate to income tax expense reported Instatement of profit and loss is as

Loss before Share cruet loss orrolnt Ventures and Associate and Tax

Statutoryincometax rate

Expectedincometax expense

Differencesdue to:

Notional Income from House Properly not provided in books

DTA not created on current year loss carried forward

MAT Credit of earlier year reversed

DTA not created on Gain on conversion of JV 10Subsidiary

Interest cost capitalised to project, included in Cost of sales

Others

Total income tax expense

Particulars Asat As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

(c) Income tux liabilities

Opening balance 18,46 39.30

Add: Current tax payable for-theyear

Less: Taxes paid 20.84

Ctestng balance 18.46 18.46

Particulars

(d) Income tax assets

Opening balance

Add: On accout of conversion of JV to subsidiary

Add: Taxes paid in advance, net of provision during tile year

Less: Adjustments for current lax of prior periods

Less: Refund received

Total

As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

1,016.68 833.D2

236.40

190.77 274.53

7.91

56.27 90.87

1,379.67 1,016.68



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continned)
as at 31 March2022
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5 Income Tax Asset (net) I Deferred Tax Assets (net) (Continned)

Partleulars Au' Asat

31 Marcll2022 31 March 2021

(e) Deferred tax asset I (liabilities) (nct)

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Deterred income tax assets

Other items 8.41 9.38

Defined benefit obligation 3.20 (0.00)

MATcreditentitlement 11.58 1,329.84

Property,plantand equipment 15.27 14.73

Share ofproflt ofjoint ventures 483.62 661.93

Total deferred tax assets 522.07 2,015.88

Deferred Income tax liabilities

Other items 1,080.00

Total deferred tax liabilities 1,080.00

Deferred tax assets I (liabilities) (net) (557.93) 2,015.88

(f) Movements in deferred lox liabilities Other Defined benefit MAT credit Property, plant Tax losses Share of profit of Interest Included Total
items obligation entitlement and equipment joint ventures in Inventories

At I April 2020

Charged/(credited)

-10 profit or loss

-10 other comprehensive income

At31 March 2021

ChlU'ged/(credited)

- to profit or loss

- to other comprehensive income
On accout ofconversion of IV to subsidiary" 1,080.00 1,080.00

At 31 March 2022 1,080.00 - - - 1,080.00

(g) Movemcnts In deferred tax assets Other Defined benefit MAT credit Property, plant Tax losses Share of profit 0 Interest included Total
items obligation entitlement aud equipment joint ventures in Inventorjes

At I April 2020 53.56 2.86 1,336.72 18.85 194.87 63 LtG 2,238.02

(Chnrged)/credited

-to profit or loss (44.i8) (4.61) (4.12) (194.87) 30.77 (217.01)

-10 other comprehensive income 1.75 1.75

- 0 other adjustment - againsl provision for Tax (6.88) (6.88)

At31 MaI"C1i2021 9.38 (0.00) 1,329.84 14.73 661.93 2,015.88

(Charged)/credited

On Acconnt ofAcquisition

• to profit or loss (B.12) 4.21 (1,318.26) 0.54 (178.31) (1,499.94)

- to other comprehensive income 7.15 (1.01) 6.14

At 31 March 2022 8.41 3.20 11.58 15.27 483.62 - 522.07

"I'hc Difference is on account of Fair Value and book Value ofnel assets due to acquistion of additional stake in subsidiary companies.

Note
The Company has nor created Deferred Tax Assets on the carried forward loss. These tax losses are available for set off against future taxable profits over n~xt8 Y::o/:_&•. ~.c.:.;,:..~~'~

(:)J :cl;rfiu:if. (~\
Ccrc,~: a','lIogaIld

1.~.t~'.'Mnu. '.
f.~,_, IT P~rk4.

~
~h(oG'-'~r.

WCSl8fn <,"p.w,,, Hlgllway,
Gorr-g,10il lEasn.
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Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continned)
as at 31 March2022

(~ in Lakhs)

6 Inventories

ConstructionMaterials
Constructionwork-in-progress
FinishedGoods

Asat
31 March 2022

155.90
45,460.02
28,317.56

73.933.48

Asat
31 March 2021

161.86
40,655.27
13,428.42

54.245.55

Notes:

6.1 Disclosure with respect to inventorieswhich are expectedto be recoveredafter more than twelvemonthsarc not provided as it is practically not feasibleto
disclosethe same consideringthe nature of the industryin which the Groupoperates.

6.2 Construction work-in-progress represents materials at site and unbilled costs on the projects. Based on projections and estimates by the management of the
Group of the expectedrevenues and costs to completion, there are no provisionfor lossesto completion and!or write off of costs carriedto inventories, other
than already provided.. In the opinion of the management, the net realisablevalue of the construction work-ill-progress will not be lower than the costs so
includedtherein,

6.3 The cost of inventories recognised as an expenseduring the year in respectof continuingoperationswas ~ 13,234.22 lakhs (for the year ended 31 March
2021" 13,642.351akhs)

6.4 During the periodthe companyhas written down inventories to the extent of ~ 2,700.021akhs(for the year ended 31 March2021 : ~ 10,671.69Iakhs)

6,5 Refer note 32 and 34 in respectof abovementioned inventoryunder lien.

7(a) Trade receivables

(Unsecured, considered good)
- from related parties (refer note 31.1)
- Others

Trade receivables ageing analysis

As at
31 March 2022

9,179.00

As at
31 March2021

8,797.58
237.90

9,035.48

Particulars Outstandingfor following periodsfrom due dateof transcationas on 31-03~2022 Total
Not Due Less than 6 6 mouths- 1 1-2Ycars 2~3Years Morethan 3

months Yea' Yean;
(a) Trade Receivables considered good- - - - - - - -
Secured;
(b) Trade Receivables considered good- 276.13 458.80 1,217.48 4,7n57 2,5n02 9,179.00
Unsecured;
(c) Trade Receivables which have - - - - - - -
significant increasein Credit Risk; and

(d) Trade Receivables - credit impaired. - - - - - - -

(e) Trade Receivables considered - - - - - - -
Doubtful- Usecured;

Total - 276,13 458.80 1,217.48 4,713.57 2,513.02 9,179,00



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

(~ in Lakhs)

Particulars Outstandingfor followingperiodsfrom due date of transcationas on 31-03-2021 Total
Not Due Less than 6 6 months- 1 1-2Years 2-3 Years More than 3

months Years Years
(a) Trade Receivablesconsidered good- - - - - - - -
Secured;
(b) Trade Receivablesconsidered good - 862.80 896.97 37954 4,48559 2,41058 9,035.48
Unsecured;
(c) Trade Receivableswhichhave - - - - - - -
significant increasein CreditRisk; and

(d) Trade Receivables- credit impaired. - - - - - - -

(e) Trade Receivablesconsidered - - - - - - -
Doubtful- Ueecured;

Total - 862.80 896.97 379.54 4.485,59 2410.58 9.035.48

As at Asat

31 March 2022 31 March2021

7(b) Cash and cash equivalents

Balanceswith Banks - in CurrentAccounts #
Chequeson Hand
Deposits with originaJ maturityof less than 3 months

# Includes balanceswith banks- in RERA specified accounts, which shall be used onlyfor specified purposesas
defined under Real Estate (Regulationand Development) Act, 2016.

7(c) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Depositswith original maturitybetween3 to 12 months
EarmarkedDeposit Accounts

1,839.83
86.34

896.33

2,822.50

128.02

8.51
3.67

12.18

2,16649

2,166.49

761.68



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continned)
asat31 March 2022

(~ in Lekhs)

7(d) Loans- cnrrent

(Unsecured, considered good)

Advanceto employees
Loans and Inter-Corporate Deposits to related parties (refer note 31.1)

(Unsecured, considered doubtful)
Loansand Inter-CorporateDeposits to related parties (refer note 31,1)
Less:Provision for doubtful loans

Loans ~ Repayable on demand

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March2021

20,170.18

5,820.31
(5,820.31)

20,170.18

As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Sr. No. Particulars Amount of % to the total Amount of % to the total
loans IAdv Loans and loans IAdv Leans and
outstanding Advances outstanding Advances

(a) Promoters - - - -
(b) Directors - - - -
(c) KMPs - - - -
(d) Related Parties - - 20,170.18 100%
(e) Others - - - -

Total - - 20,170.18 100%

7(e) Other financial assets - current

Advancesrecoverable from others
Deposit with others

Unsecured,Credit impaired
Interest accrued on deposits

8 Other Current Assets

26.82
40.96

67.78

15.38

1,005.27
(1,005.27)

15.38

(Unsecured, considered good)
Prepaid expenses
Balances with governmentauthorities
Deposit with GovernmentAuthorities
Advanceto Vendors
- related parties (refer note 31.1)
- others

595.76 41.59
102.49 406.07
175.89 0.45

8.60 20.60
1,078.35 1,234.61

(Unsecured, considered doubtful)
Advanceto Vendors
~ others
Less: Provision for impairment of advances

2,615.18
(2,615.18)

1,961.09

2,615.18
(2,615.18)

1,703.32



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
as a13/ March 2022

({ ill Lakhs)

9 Equity share capital and other eqnily

9(a) Equity share capital

Particulars

Authorised

1,000,000,000(As Ell 31 March2021 : 1,000,000,(00) OrdinarySharesof,{ 10/· each

hsued, Subscribed nnd fully Paid-1I11

&OO,OOO,aoo (As at 31 March2021: 800,000,000)OrdinarySharesof,{ 10/.each

A3al

31 Mardi 2022

1,00,000.00

80,000.00

80,000,00

Asnt

.J! Marth 2021

1,00,000,00

111),000,00

9.1 Reconciliation of number of Ordinary Shares and amount Outstanding at the beginning and at tbe end of the Year:

Particulars As al 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Number OrSharell 'fin Lnl{hs Number Of SIUlI'e.l fin LnldlS

At the BcgilUling of theYear SO,OD,OO,MO 80,000,00 40,00,01),000 40,01)0.00

Issued during dw Y'iar,In n rights basis 40,00,1)0,000 40,000.00

Outstauding IIIthe End of the Year 80,00,00,000 80,000.00 80,00,00,000 80,1)00,00

9.2 The Ordinary Shares rank pari-passu, having voting rights and are subject to preferences and restrictions as per Companies Act, 2013. The
shareholders of Ordinary shares are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Parent after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to
their shareholdings, at the event ofliquidalion.

9,3 Details of shares issued otherwise than for cash, issues as bonus shares and lor shares bought back during the immediately preceding 5 years- None

9.4 Shares held by Parent and its subsidiary:

800,000,000 (As at 31 March 2021 : 800,000,000) Ordinary shares are held by the Holding Company, Tala Housing Development Company Limited
(Jointly with its nominees)

9,5 Details of Ordinary Shares held by Shareholders holding more than 5% ofOrllinary Shares in the Parent:

Partleulars As III 31 Mm·ch 2021

Tam Housing Development Company Limited (Jointly with its nominees)
(Ordil1lllySh!IIe. of'!' 10 eadt)

9,6 Details of Shares held by promoters at tile end of the year

Number Of Shares

80,00,00,000

% Holding

100.00%

Nnmber Of Share.

80,00,00,000

% Holding

100.00%

Shllres held by promoters at 31.03.2022 Shares beld by promoten at 31.03.2021 % Change dnring the
Promotcr name

No. of Shares % of tetal shares No. of Sharell % oftotal.hares year

Tam Hon.ing Dcvelopment CClnlpany Limited 80,00,00,000 100% 80,00.00.000 tOO%
(Jointly with its nClminecs)

Tolal 80,00,00,000 100% 80,00,00,000 100%

Promoter namo
Shllrcs held by promoters at 31.03.2021 Shares held by prumcters nI31.03.2020 % Change during tho

N<'I. <'If Shares % <'If tatal shnres Nn. afSharcs % oftotal shares year

Tala I'lousing Development Company Limited 80,00,00,000 100% 40,00,00,000 100%
(Joilltlywith its nominees)

Total 80,00,00,000 100% 40,00,00,000 100%

9(b) Other equity

rartitlllarll

Debcntlll"C Redemption Reserve

RctllillOO carnings

Other c<'Imprehc",ire income

As at 31 March 2022

(95,173.28)

26.02

As at 31 Marth 2021

(81,595.68)

46,58

(95,147.26) @.,549,1O}
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
as ai st March2022

(e ln Lakhs)

9 Equity share capital and other equity (Continued)

9(b) Other equity (ColltJuued)
~ in Lakh

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Debenture Redemption Reserve

Opening balan~e 1,111.96

(Less) : Transferred to Retained earniegs (l,111.96)

Closing Balance

Retained earningo

Openingbalance (81,595.68) (51,601.48)

Add:TransferredfromDebentureRedemption Reserve 1,111.96

Less:Luasfur theyear (13,577.60) (31,106.16)

Closing Balance (95,113.2S) (111,595.68)

Other comprehensive income

Openingbalance 46.58 8.01

Remensnrements ofpost-cmpluymentbenefitobligations (2O,S6) 38,57

ClosingDalance 26m 46.58

(95,141.26) (81,S49.1(l)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Retained earnings

Retainedearnings are the profitsthat the Companyhas earnedtilldate, less any transfers to generalreserve,debenture redemption reserve,dividends or
otherdistributions paid to shareholders.

(ii) Debenture redemption reserve (ORR)

The Parent is requiredto createDRRout of the profits which is available for paymentsof dividend for the purposeof redemption of debentures until
such debentures are redeemed.

9(c) Non Controlling Interest

Particulars

Balanceat the beginningof'theyear

Mflvements

Shareofprofit/(Ioss)

Sharcof othercomprehensive illoomC

Balanceat the endof the year

As at 31 March Z022

z in Lakh

As at 31 March 2021



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continned)
as at 31 March 2022

(~ ill Lakhs)

10 Borrowings

Partteulars As at

31 Mm'ch 2022
As at

31 March 2021

Secured - at amortised cost:

(a) Working capital rerm loen

Unsecured - at amortised cost:

(a) Debentures

(c) InterCorporate Deposits
Inter Corporate Deposit from related party
(refernote 31.2)

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Long-term

17,000.00

44,573.10

4,747.77

M,320.8'

Current matmities of
long-term debts

19,500.00

19,500.00

Long-term

496.21

19,500.00

22,858.05

3,764.49

46,618.75

Current maturities of
long-term debts

1,294.60

10,000.00

1l)94.60

10.1 Security and terms of repayment in respect of the above borrowings are detailed in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Particulars

II Trade Payables - Non-current

i) Trade payables due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

ii) Trade payables other than acceptances due to other than Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Retention money payable 240.86 405.80

240.86 405.80

12(a) Other flnancial liabilires - Non-cu rrent

Security and other deposits payable 33.01 36.06

33.01 36.06

12(b) Non-current Provisions

Provision for Employee Benefits (refer note 30)

- Gratuity (net) 13.80 18.54

13.80 18.54



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continned)
as at 31 March2022

(f tnLakhs)

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

13(a) Cnrrent borrnwfngs

Secured - at amortised cost
Loans repayable 011 demand from banks
(includes cash credits, working capital demand loans and short-term loans)

[Note:Securitydiclosure in respectof the securedborrowings are
detailed in note34]

36.31 23,365.02

Unsecnred - at amortised cost
Commercial papers
Currentmaturities of long-term debts(refernotes 10and32)

10,000.00

19,500.00 11,294.60

Interestaccruedon borrowings 3,985.56 1,775.78

33.521.87 36,435.40

13(b) Trade Payables

i) Trade payables due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
ii) Trade payables other than acceptances due to other than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
~ related parties (refer note 31.1)

~ others
Retention monies payable

10,292.93
735.36

107.52

3,725.52
622.38

11,028.29 4,455.42

Trade Payable ageing analysis
31Outstandiuz as on March ,2022

Particulars Outstanding for the following period from the due date of payment Total
Not due Less than 1 l-2Years 2-3 Years More than 3

veal' Years
Undisputed
(i) Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - - - - - -
{ii) Others 2,085.35 3,461.40 969.80 277.01 3,499.37 10,292.93

Disputed
(i) Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - - - - - -
(Ii) albers - - - - - -

Outsmndtna as on Marcll3l, 2021
Particulars Outstanding for tile following period from the due date of payment Total

Not due Less than 1 1-2Years 2-3 Years More than 3
veal' Years

Undisputed
(i) Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - - - - - -
(ii) Others 809.50 2,315.31 20.03 121.56 566.64 3,833.04

Disputed
(i) Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - - - - - -
(ii) Others - - - - - -

-- "/
0 "

...'
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continned)
as at 31 March 2022

(, in Laklts)

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

13(c) Other financial liabilities

Payabletojoint venturecompanies 13,122.98 13,738.79

Employees related payables 23.83 19.24

Earnest money deposits 6.00 6.00

Security and otherdeposits payable 1,221.98 373.81

14,374,79 14,137.84

14 Provisions

Provision for EmployeeBenefits (refer note 30)
- Gratuity 36.55 31.04
- Compensated absences 105.50 104.66

Provision for Customercompensation(refer note 39) 349.12 148.46
Provisionfor GSTliabilities 97.57 97.57

588.74 381.73

15 Other Current Liabilities

Revenue received in advance
Statutory dues payable:

- Providentfund
- Goods and service tax
- Tax deducted at source

4,697.52 2,207.23

5.47 5.63
59.24

353.29 332.24

5,056.28 2,604.34



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continned)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(~in Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March2021

16 Revenue from Operations

Sale of properties 13,548.63 13,327.75

Sale of services
~ Project & societymanagementand marketingcharges 63.38

Other operating revenues
- Sale of materials 10.41 137.74
- Other incomefrom customers 412.31 802.35

13,971.35 14,331.22

17 Other Income

Interest incomeon financial assets at amortised cost 501.05 920.86
Interest on delayedpayment 31.16 63.12
Interest on Income-tax refund 6.15 17.93
Scrap Sales 11.96 25.24
Sundry BalancesWritten-back 562.21 670.62
MiscellaneousIncome 12.51
Net (loss)/Gainon sale of Property, plant and equipment (0.86) 0.86

1,124.18 1,698.63

18 Changes in inventory of fmished l!oods and Work in nroaress

Opening balance
Constructionmaterial 161.86 508.27
Work in progress 40,655.27 58,323.37
Finished Goods 13,428.42 16,493.18

54,245.55 75,324.82

Add/(less): On Accountof Conversionof Joint Venture to subsidiary (refer note 33) 27,132.90

Closing balance
Constructionmaterial 155.90 161.86
Work in progress 45,460.02 40,655.27

Finished Goods 28,317.56 13,428.42
73,933.48 54,245.55

Add/(Iess) : Impact ofNRV on inventory 2,700.02 10,671.69
(4,744,95) (10,407.58)

19 Employee Benefit Expenses

Salaries 1,673.17 1,478.67
Contribution to Providentand Other Funds (refer note 30) 66.06 64.50
Staff WelfareExpenses 18.07 11.36

1,757.30 1,554.53

Less: Apportionment to projects 272.11 252.92
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(~ in Lakhs)

20 Finance Cost

Interest expense on financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss

• Interest on Borrowings

• Interest 011 Others

For the year ended
31 March 2022

5,945.94

1,139.22

7,085.16

For the year ended
31 March2021

8,816.29
800.39

9,616.68

Less: Apportionment to constructionworkin progress 160.76 890.09

~::r:==i!6~,9~24~,~40~. 8.726.59
Note: The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted average interest rate applicable to the

Company's general borrowings which is 6.81 % (for the year ended 31 March 2021: 8.12%)

21 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

22 Otller EXIJenSeS

16.63

16.63

17.87

17,87

Professional Fees

Travelling Expenses

Rent

Repairs and Maintenance

Repairs and Maintenance -Others

Electricity Expenses

Advertisement

Insurance

Rates and Taxes

Directors' Sitting Fees to independent and non-executive Directors

Payable to Statutory Auditors
As Auditor
- Audit Fees

In Other Capacity

- Certification Fees

- In Other Capacity

- Reimbursement of Expenses

Payable 10Auditors of Subsidiaries

Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility

Customer Compensation

Other expenses

SeIling Expenses

- Brokerage

- Advertisement and others

Provision for Customer Compensation

Impact ofNRV on inventory

23 Impairment of loans given and investment in Joint ventures and Assosciates

Impairment of Loans given and investments in joint ventures and essosctates (refer note 24 (c))

281.59 177.20
8.84 2.53

24.00 24.76

1,000.49 885.26

16.35 9,55
0.43 0.26

79.27 58.76
4.39 2.11
5.80 3.20

22.50 16.75

6.27 0.76
0.69 0.56

17.47 3.70
5,65

0.18 0.25

483.16 149.48

390.91 205.05
958,49 648.35

16.30 10.31
2,700.02 10,671.69

6,017.15 12,876.18

2,485.00 5,820.31

2,485.00 5,820.31
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continned)
for theyear ended 3/ March2022

(~ in Lekhs)

24 Financial risk management

The Group's business activitiesexpose it to a varietyof financial risks, namely liquidityrisk, marketrisks and credit risk. The Group'sseniormanagement
has theoverall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of theGroup's riskmanagement framework. TheGroup hasconstituted a RiskManagement
Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group's risk management policies. The Group's risk management policies are
established to identifyand analysethe risks facedby the Group,to set appropriate risk limitsand controlsand to monitorrisksand adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities.

The Risk Management Committee of the Group is supported by the Finance department that provides assurance that the Group's financial risk activities are
governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group's policies and
risk objectives. The Finance department activities are designed to:
~ protect the Group's financial results and position from financial risks
~ maintain market risks within acceptable parameters, while optimising returns; and
~ protect the Group's financial investments, while maximising returns.

A) Management of liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Group's approach to managing
liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this, management
considers both normaland stressed conditions.

Maturities of financial liabilities
The following table shows the maturity analysis of the Group's financial liabilities based on contractually agreed undiscounted cash flows as at the Balance
sheet date:

As at 31 March 2022 Carring AmOllnl Less than 1 year 1·3 Ycars

Borrowings 99,842.74 33,521.88 49,320.86

Trade payables 11,269.15 11,028.29 24o.s6

Other financialliabilities 14,407.80 14,374.79 33,01

As at 31 March 2021 Cnrring Amount Less than 1 year 1.3 veers

Borrowings 83,054.15 36,435,40 46,618.75

Trade payables 4,861.22 4,455,42- 405.80

Other financialliabilities 14,173.90 14,137.84 36.06

3.5 Years

17,OOO~OO

3·5 Years

Total

99,842.74

11,269.15

14,407.80

Total

83,054.15

4,861.22

14,173.90

B) Management of market risk

The Group's size and operations result in it being exposed to the following market risks that arise from its use of financial instruments:
• interest rate risk
• currency risk

The above risks may affect the Group's income and expenses, or the value of its financial instruments. The objective of the Group's management of market
risk is to maintain this risk within acceptable parameters, while optimising returns. The Group's exposure to, and management of, these risks is explained
below:

Particulars

Fixed rille lnstruments

Debentures>Non-Convertible Redeemable

Inter Corporate Deposits

Commercial papers

Working Capital Demand loan from Banks

Total

Vnrinble-rnte instrument.'!

Loans repayable on demand from banks

Total

As lit

31 March IOU

As at

31 Marcil 2021
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24 Financial risk management (Continued)

ll) Management of market risk (Contillued)

POTENTIALIMPAcr OF RISK

(i) Interest rate risll

MANAGEMENTPOLICY SENSITIVITYTO RISK

investments.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
becauseofchanges inmarket interestrates
The Group is mainlyexposed to interest rate risk
due to its variable interest rate borrowings, The
interest rate risk arises due to uncertaintiesabout
the future market interest rate of these

The Group's strategy is to mitigateinterest rate risk by ensuringII As all estimation of the approximate impact of the interest rate
propermixof borrowingsat risk, with respect to financial instruments, the Group has
fixedandvariableinterest rates calculated the impactofa 0.25%changein interestTates.
The Group's interest rate risk is monitoredby the management
and treasury team Oil n monthlybasis. Managementanalyses the 0.25% p.a. decrease in interest on aforesaid loans would reduce
Group's interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Variousinterestexpenseby i{ 0,09 lakhs for financialyear ended31 March
scenarios are simulated, taking into consideration refinancing, 2022.
renewal of existing positions and alternative financing sources
Based on these scenarios, the Group calculates the impact on 0.25% p.a. decrease in interest on aforesaid loans would reduce

The Group's fixed rate borrowings are carried at 'profit and loss of a defined interest rate shift, The scenarios are interest expense by ~ 14.14 Iakhs for financial year ended 31
amortisedcost. They are therefore not subject to run only for liabilities that represent the major interest-beeriog March2021.
interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since positions.The simulationis done on a monthlybasis to verifythat
neither the carrying amount nor the future cash the maximum potential loss is within the limits set by A 0_25% increase in interest rates would have led to an equal bUI
flowswill fluctuatebecauseof a change in market management. oppositeeffect
interestrates.

Allat 31 March 2022, variablerate borrowingsof
e 36,311akhs (31 March 2021: ~ 5,657.99Iakhs)
are exposedto interestrate risk.

C) Management of credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Group's receivables from customers, investments in debt securities, loans given to related parties and project deposits.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by requiring customers to pay advances through progress billings before transfer of ownership, therefore substantially
eliminating the Group's credit risk in this respect.

The Group's credit risk with regard to trade receivable has a high degree of risk diversification, due to the large number of projects of varying sizes and types
with numerous different customer categories in a large number of geographical markets.

The ageing analysis ofthe receivables (gross of provisions):

Period Upto 1 Year More than one Total
year

As at 31st March 2022 734.93 8,444.07 9,179.00

As at 31st March 2021 1,759.76 7,275.72 9,035.48

Investment in Debt Securities. Loans to Related Parties and Project Deposits
The Group has investments in compulsorily convertible debentures I optionally convertible debentures, loans to related parties and project deposits. The
settlement of such instruments is linked to the completion of the respective underlying projects. Such Financial Assets are not impaired as on the reporting
date.

The following table summarizes the changes in the provisions made in Investment & Loans to related Parties:

Particulars As at 31,March As at 31,March
2022 2021

Opening Balance 5,820.31 -
Provided during the year 2,485.00 5,820.31
Closing Balance 8,305.31 5,820.31

Cash and Dank balances
Credit risk from cash and bank balances is managed by the Group's treasury department in accordance with the Group's policy.

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 is the carrying value of each class of fin
notes 4(a) to 4(d) and 7(a) to 7(e).
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25 Capital Management

Risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through
optimisation of debtand equitybalance.

The Group's risk managementcommittee reviews the capital structure of the Group on a semi-annualbasis. As part of this review, the committee considers
thecost of capitalandthe risksassociatedwitheachclass of capital.

The Group monitors capital using Debt-Equity ratio, which is total debt divided by total equity. For the purposes of the Group's capital management, it
considersthe following components of its BalanceSheetto bemanagedcapital:
Total Equity includesDebenture redemption reserve,Retained earnings, Share capital and borrowingsfrom parent.
Total Debt includesLong term Borrowings, Current maturitiesof long-termborrowings,Current borrowings and interest accrued and due on borrowings.

Long-termBorrowings

Currentmaturitiesof long-termdebts

Currentborrowings

InterestAccruedon Borrowings

Totul debt

Totul Equity

Net debt to equity ratio (No. nf times)

31 Murcll20Z2

61,573.10

19,500.00

10,036.31

8,733.33

99,842.74

(15,147.26)

(6.59)

31 Mardi 2021

42,854.26

11,294.60

23,365.02

5,540.27

83,054.15

(1,549,10)

(53.61)

In the long run, the Group's strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio of less than 2.
In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group's capital management,amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financialcovenants attached to
the borrowingsthat define the capital structure requirements.
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26 Fair value measurements

Financial instruments by eategery

CIIIl)'ina amonnt as al31 Mm'Ch 20:U

Amortised CMI Total

FlIlrVlIluc

FVTPL

Current Non- Current
tlllTeU!

NOIl- Currenl
enrrent

Non­
current

Levell Level2 Levell Totnl

FinllllcilllllBseh

Investments

• inLimited Liability Partnership

Tradereceivables

Cashandbankbalances

Dankbelences otherthanabove

Lo~

Otherfinancial assets

Tolnllinllndnl Assets

Finandll1lillbilities

Borrowings

Trade Peyebles

Other fiuancial liebilities

Total linandal liabilities

Financial Instruments by category

3,477.94 3,477.94

9,179.00 9,1'19.00

2,822.50 2,822.50

12,18 11.18

19,714.55 19,714,55

67.78 183,73 67.78 183;73

12,081.46 23,376.21 12,081.46 23,376.22

33,521.87 66,320.117 33,521.87 66,320.87

11,028.29 240.86 11,028.29 240.86

14,374.79 33.01 14,374.79 33.01

58,924.95 66,-"94,74 53,924.95 66,594,74

3,477.94

19,714,55

23,192.49

3,477,94

9,179.00 9,179.00

2,822.50 2,822,50

12.18 12.18

19,714.55

251.51 251.51

12,265.19 35,457.68

99,841.74 99,841.74

11,269.15 11,269.15

14,407.80 14,407.80

1,15,519,69 1,25,519,69

Financial essen

Investments

- in LimitedLiabilityPartnership

Tradereceivables

Cashand bankbalances

Lo~

Other financial assets

Total finnncial assets

Finanrialliabllities

BClnuwings

TradePayebles

Other finaacialliabilities

Total financilllliabilities

FVTPl,

Current

Carrying amount as al31 Mal'(h 2021 FairValuc

Amortised cosl Total Levell Levelz Level 3 Total

Non- Current Nou- Clln'enl N(lD.

cUl-rent eurrent current

8,095.20 8,I)S/S,21) 8,095.20 8,095.20

9.1)35.48 9,035.48 9,035.48 9,035.48

2.166.49 2,166.49 2,166.49 2,166.49

20,170.18 4,410.74 21),170.18 4,410,74 24,580.92 24,580,92

15.38 151.11 15.38 151.11 166.49 166.49

31,387.53 12,657.05 31,387.53 12,657.05 32,676.12 11,368.46 44,044.58

36,435.40 46,618,75 36,435.40 46,6i8.75 83,054.15 83,054.15

4,455.42 405,80 4,455.42 405.80 4,861.22 4.861.22

14,137.84 36,06 14,137.84 36.06 14,173.90 14,173.90

55,028,66 47,1)60,61 55,028.66 47,060.61 1,02,089.27 1,02,089.27

Fair value hiel'lU'cliy

This sectionexplainsthejudgementsand estimates made in determining the fair valuesof the financial instruments that are (a) recognised andmeasured at fair
valueand(b) measured at amortised cost and for whichfair valuesare disclosedin the financial statements. To providean indication about the reliability ofthe
inputs used in determiningfair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard, An
explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in note above have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation
technique. The hierarachy givesthe highestpriorityto quotedpricesin activemarketfor identical assetsor liabilities (level I measurements) and lowestpriority
to unobservable inputs(level3 measurements). Thecategories usedare as follows:

Levell: Level t hierarchyincludesfinancial instruments measuredusing quotedprices.

Level2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined
using valuation techniqueswhich maximise the lise of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. Considering that all
significant inputs requiredto fairvalue such Instruments areobservable, these are includedin level2

Level3: Ifone or moreof thesignificantinputsis not basedon observable marketdata,the instrument is includedin level3.
The carrying amounts of trade receivables, inter corporate deposits, current investments, contractually reimbursable expenses, cash and cash equivalents and
otherbankbalances,currenttradepayables and currentborrowings are consideredto be thesameas their fairvalues,dueto their short-term nature.

Forfinancial assetsand liabilitiesthat are measured at fairvalue,the carryingamountsareequalto the fairvalues.
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27 Earnings Per Share

Pnrtieulnrs

Loss for the year attributable10owners of the Parent - (~in lakhs)

Numberof equityshares

Weightedaveragenumberof equityshares

Weightedaveragenumberof Ordinaryshares fordilutedEPS

Earnings per share attributable to the owners offhe Parent (basic and diluted}« (it')

FaceValuePer Share - (~)

For the year- ended
31 March, 2022

(13,577.60)

80,00,00,000

80,00,00,000

80,00,00,000

(1.70)

10

Forthe yearended
31 March, 2021

(31,106.16)

80,00,00,000

40,76,71,233

40,76,71,233

(7,63)

10

"The entire loss for the year, other comprehensiveincome, total comprehensive income and loss per share is attributable to owners of the parent.

28 Segment information

Presently, the Group is engagedonly in the business of developmentof propertyand related activities in India It has no other reportablesegments in tenus of
Indian Accounting Standard (Iud AS) 108on Segment Reporting specifiedunder Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant provisionsof the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the 2013 Act").

29 Contingent liabilities and commitments

(i) Contingent liabilities

{a) Claims against the Group not acknowledgedas debts in respect of suits filedby owners and customersof certain propertiesconstructed/developed by the
Group amounting to ~ 344.97 lakhs (As at 31 March 2021 ~ 121.371akhs)(inclusive of interest) against which the Group has made counterclaims on Nil
(As at 31 March 2021 '{Nil). The Group, basedon past experience, does not anticipate any materialliabilityto devolve on it as a result thereof.

(b) Bank guarantee has been issued for an amountofRs. 184.74 lakhs in favourof "Chennai MetropolitanDevelopment Authority" , towardsSecurityDeposit
for construction of Building at Kuthambakkam(Santorini), one of the project ofthe holding companyofthe group, in normal course of business.

(e) Bank Guaranteehas been given as Securitydeposits for issuance of Non-convertibledebentures,in favour of"BSE Limited" for an amount of'{ 1.95 Iakhs
(As at 31 March 2021 '{ L95lakhs).

(d) Claims against the Company not acknowledgedas debts in respect of demandraised by Incometax departmentof~ 786.571akhs(As at 31 March 2021 ~

18.57 lakhs)

(e) Claims against the Company not acknowledgedas debts in respect of demand raised by ServiceTax Departmentof ~ 165.60lakhs (As at 31 March2021 '{
Nil)

(f) Claims against the Company not acknowledgedas debts in respect of demand raised by Commercial Tax Departmentof~ 62.00 lakhs (As at 31 March 2021
~Ni1)

{d} Commitments

(a) Estimatedamount of contracts remaining to be executed 011 capital account and not provided for:Tangible assets - ~ Nil (As at 31 March 2021 '{Nil) and for
Intangibleassets - Nil (As at 31 March 2021 ~ Nil)

(b) The Subsidiary Company had entered into agreementwith Apollo Telehealth Services Private Limited("Apollo")on 26 February 2014 for delivery of health
care and related services to residents of "The Senior Living Project" (Riya). In accordance with the agreement the services to be rendered by Apollo to the
Subsidiary Company shall commence from March 2017 with an extention of six months grace period or the actual date of possession as handed over to the
residents for a period of 5 years. As per the agreement the Subsidiary Compay would provide Apollo infrastructure of 500 Square feet covered space,
furniture, electricity, water necessary for them to provide these services. For these health care services the Subsisdiary Company is required to pay Apollo a
total of ~ 638.00 Lakhs which includes ~ 26.2 Lakhs as reimbursement of capital expenses incurred by them six months before the commencementof
services as well as ~ 611.80 Lakhs in equal installemenrs every quarter for 20 quarters starting from 3 months prior to the date of commencementof
services The Subsidiary Company has paid ~ 40 Lakhs as advance against this project This advance IS non-refundable unlesJc:t1r0rek~re ~f contract by
Apollo As on the balancesheet date unadjustedadvance IS ~ 22 00 Lakhs A~~ c~ 0 <.'~

(j
r-.? +"'J~f -u:
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30 Employee benefits

A Defined benefit plans:

i Gratuity (funded)

The ParentCompany of theGroupmakesannualcontributions to the Tata ValueHomesLimitedEmployees Gratuity SchemeofKotak MahindraLife
Insurance Company Limited. The scheme provides for lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on
terminationof employment as per Company's Gratuity Scheme. Vestingoccursoncompletion of fiveyears.

Balance sheet amount
(f in Lnkhs)

PaI'ticulllr8 Gratuity

Present value of Fair value of plan assets Net amount
obligation

1 AllriI 2021 126.08 7/i.51 49.57

Current service COllI 18.84 11.19 7.65

Interest expenseqincome) 8.11 6.00 2.17
Past ServiceCost 7,93 (7.93)

Total amount recognised in profit llnd loss 27,01 25.12 1.89

Remeesurements

Return on plan assets, excludingamount includedin interest - (2.31) 2.31
expenserfjncome)
(Gain) ILoss fromchange indemographic assumptions (6.96) (6.96)

(Gain) I Loss fromchange in financialassumptions 25.45 25.45

Experience(gains)llasses 10.76 10.76

Total amonnt recognbed in other comprehensive income 29.24 (2.31) 31.55

Employercontributions -
Benefit payments (32.65) - (32.65)

31 March 2022 149.68 99,32 50.35

(f in Lllkhs)

Partleulars Gratuity

Present value of Fail' vnlue of piau assets Net amount
obligation

1 April 2020 136.37 75,83 60.54

CUITent service cost 29,64 29.64

Interestexpcnse](income) 7,14 4,21 2,93

Past Service Cost

Total amount recognised inllrofit and loss 36.78 4,21 32.57

Remeasurcmenta

Returnon plan assets, excludingamountincludedin interest (3,S3) 3.53
expenseltincome)
(Gain) I Loss fromchange indomograpbic assumptions 2.26 2.26

(Gain) I Loss fromchange in financialassumptions (6.40) (6.40)

Experience(gainsj/losses (42.93) (42.93)

Total amouut recognised in other comprehensive income (47.07) (3.53) (43.54)

Employercontributions

Benefitpayments

31 March 2021 126.08 76.51 49,57

---,
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30 Employee Benefits (Colltillued)

A Defined benefit plans: (Continued)

The net liability disclosed aboverelates to funded andunfunded plansare as follows:
(t ill Lnkhs)

Particulars

31 Mllrcl1101:2

Present value of fundedobligations

Fair valueof planassets

Deficit

31 March 2021

Present value of fundedobligations

Fair value of planassets

Deficit

Major category or ptan assets for Gratuity fund are as follows:

The company has invested entire amount of plan assets in insurance fund.

Insure.' Mllnaged Fund Detailed Pattcl'" % Invested

Gratuity

149.68

99.32

50.35

126.08

76.51

49.57

Funds managedbyInsurer

.. ,I
31 March 2022

100.00%

100.00%

Asal
31 March 2021

100.00%

100.00"10

Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Asset volatility

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields; if plan assets underperform this yield, this will create a
deficit. Most of the plan asset investments is in fixed income securities with high grades and in govenunent securities. These are subject to interest
rate risk and the fund manages interest tate risk with derivatives to minimise risk to an acceptable level.

Changes in bond yields

A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the plans' bond holdings.

Life expectancy

The pension and medical plan obligations are to provide benefits for the life ofthe member, so increases in life expectancy will result in an increase in
the plans' liabilities. This is particularly significant where inflationary increases result in higher sensitivity to changes in life expectancy.

SalaryRisk
The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in salary of
the plan participants will increase the plan's liability,

The Company ensures that the investment positions are managed within an asset-liability matching (ALM) framework that has been developed to
achieve long-term investments that are in line with the obligations under the employee benefit plans. Within this framework, the Company's ALM
objective is to match assets to the benefit obligations by investing in long-term fixed interest securities with maturities that match the benefit payments
as they fall due and in the appropriate currency.
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30 Employee Benefits (Continued)

A Defined benefit plans: (Continued)

Defined benefit Liability and employer contribution

Expected contributionto post employmentbenefit plans for the year to be ended on31 March 2022 are ~ 53.211akhs

The weightedaveragedurationof the defined benefit obligation is 6 years (2022- 4 years)

Mlltllrily mmlysisof Projected benefit Obligation: from the fund:

1st followingyear

2nd followingyear

3rd following year

4th followingyear

5th followingyear

Sum ofyears 6 to 10

Morethan 10years

n Defined contribution planer

Benefit (Contl'ibution to)

Provident Fund

Superannuation Fund

Totlll

Gratuity

31 March 2022

22.31

19.85

18.39

16.18

14.14

50.24

33.28

For the Year Ended
31 MIlrcll2022

50.39

2.09

52.48

31 March 2021

14,52

14.74

19,13

12.32

Il,I3

44,92

42.75

(f in Lakhs

For the Year Ended
31 March 2021

36.78

1.86

38.64

(i) Superannuation fund

The company has superannuation scheme administrated by LIC, in which the company contributes 15% on basic salary, The payments to defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme for eligible employees in the form of superannuation fund are charged as an expense as they fall due. Such
benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made.

(ii) Provident fund

The Company also has certain defined benefit plans Contributions are made at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The Company is
liable for contributions and any deficiency compared to interest computed based on the rote of interest declared by the Central Government under the
Employees' Provident Fund Scheme, 1952 and recognises, if any, as an expense in the year it is determined.

The Company's contributions paid / payable during the year towards Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund are charged to the Statement of Profit
and Loss or debited to the project costs every year. These funds and the schemes thereunder are recognised by the Income-tax authorities and
administered by trusts.

C Compensated absenees

The leave obligations cover the Company's liability for sick and earned leave The leave obligation is computed by actuary who gives a bifurceuonfor
current and non-current

a) Changes in Present Value ofObligatlou:
(f in Lnkhs)

Pnrticnlars Compensated nbsenees

For the Vea.r Elided For the Year Ended
31 Mnrcll2022 31 March 2021

Present Value of Obligation asat the beginning

Interest Cost

Service Cost

Benefits Paid

Actuarial (Gain) fLoss on obligations

Past Service Cost

On Account of Conversion of N to Subsidiary

Present Value ofObligationllli at the end

104.66

5.30

12.88

(23.85)

(5.43)

1l.94

105.50

103.83

5.76

34.95

(5.31)

(34.57)
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b) Bifurcation ot Present Valueof Obligation as at the end oCtheyear:
(~ in Lllkhs)

Partlenlnrs Compensated absences

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31 Marc!12022 31 Mllrch2021

Current liability

Non-Currentliability

Presese Value of Obligation 8Jl at the end

c) ExpensesRecognised during the year:

105,50

105.50

104.66

104.66

(f ill Laklls)

Pnrticulars

InterestCost

ServiceCost

ActuarialLoss I(Gain)recognised

Past ServiceCos!

El.pcnses Recognised during the year

Compensated absences

FOI'the Yenr Ended For the Year Ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

5.30 5.76

12.88 34.95

(5,43) (34.57)

12.75 6.14

D Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity

The significant actuarial assumptions for were as follows:

Particulars

Gratuity

Asnt
31 Marell 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Discount rate

Rate ofreturn on plan assets

Salary growth rate

Retirementage

Mortality Rate

Withdrowal Rates

Maximum gratuity payable per person

Compensated absences

Discounting Rate

Retirement Age

Future Salary Rise

Mortality Table

Withdrawal Rates

6.10%

9.00%

60yenrs

Indiau Assured Lives Mortality (20120-14)

20.00%

No limit in elise ofEmllloyoosjoined
upto31 March 2019.

Maxinlunl Rs. 20 Lnkb in elise of'Empleyees joillcd
after 31 March 2019.

6.10%

60yeafS

9.00%

Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012·14)

20.00%

5.90%

6.00"10

60 years

Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14)

15.00"/0

No limitin case ofBmployees joined
upto31 March 2019

MaximumRs.20 Lakh in case ofEmployees joined
aftcr 31 March 2019.

5.90%

60ycllrs

6.00%

Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012·14)

15.00%

Significant actuarial assumption for the determination ofdefined benefit obligation are rate of discounting, rate of salary increase and fate ofemployee
turnover. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the
end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

(l in Lllkhs)

Particulars

Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions

Delta effect of+1% change in rate of discounting

Della effect of-1% change in rate of discounting

Delta effect of + 1%change in rate of salary increase

Delta effect of ~I% change in rate of salary increase

Delta effect of +1% change in rate of employee turnover

Delta effect of -1% change in rate of employee turnover

Delta effect of+ 10% change in role ofmolality

Delta effect of -10% change ill rate ofmotality

GratllilY

31 Mllrch2022 31 March 2021

123.57 107.54

(5.84) (5.89)

6.38 6.54

6.14 6.47

(5.75) (5.94)

(0.90) (0.36)

0.95 0.37

(0.03) 0.00

0.01 000

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be represenrauvc of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it Is nnlik ~:6._ t~
change in assumptrons would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. Furthermore, in presenti ~ th~llPYf.li,:'Jj ~~:; ilIld ~'/O~
sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected urut credit method at ~erd of ~,h~,t." Cw.m".
reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the Balance Sheet. ~::;:·,~d1:t·

\'i'~)I~rn '[lfC5S Ijjghway,

\. ~:;~r,-,;, rFaSl),

~':" :IDIl~3
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31 RelatedParty Transactions

As per Indian Accounting Standard on "Related Party Disclosures" (Ind AS-24) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 2013 Act") are as follows:

31.1 List of Related Parties and Relationships

Sr. No. Related Party

Ultimate Huldlng COm!lllny

Tata Sons PrivateLimited

2 Holding CODlIJany

Tata Housing DevelopmentCompanyLimited

Fellow Subsidinry

Tata AIGGeneral Insurance Company Limited

Tata Consultancy ServicesLimited

InflnitiRetailLimited

Ecofirst ServicesLimited

THDCManagementServicesLimited

Tala Communications Limited

Tata Teleservices Limited

Tata Teleservices (Mahareshtra)Limited

Promont Hilltop Private Limited

Tatn AlA Life Insurance CompanyLimited

4 Associates Company

Synergizers SustainableFoundation

Conneqt Business SolutionsLimited (Ceased w.e.f 16.04.2021)

Joiut Venture
Hl, Promoters Private Limited

Smart Value Homes(Peenya Project) Private Limited (Ceasedto be Joint Ventureand becamea subsidiary w.e.f 21.05,2021)

Landkart Builders Private Limited

Arvind and Smart ValueHomes LLP

Smart Values Homes (New Project) LLP (Ceased to be Joint Ventureand became a subsidiaryw.e.f 15.09.2021)

6 l?ellowJoillt Venture

Ardent Properties Private Limited

Fellow Associates - Conlpanies

Titan CompanyLimited

The Indian Hotels CompanyLimited

Trent Limited

Key Management Persennel

Kamlesh MnnsukhlnlParekh, Director -resigned w.eJDecembcr 21, 2021

Nipun Aggarwal(Director) -resigned w.e.f April 18,2022

Renu Bnsu, Director

Sandhya ShajleahKudtarkar,Director -resigned w.eJDecember 21, 2021

Khirodha Jeua (Chief Financial Officer)

Mrunal Shukla (CompanySecretary)
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(( in Lakhs)

31.1 Related Party Transactions

For the year For the year
ended ended

S.'.No. Party Name Nature of TransactioII 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

INR in lakhs INR in Inlills

1 Tata HousingDevelopmentCompany Limited a) Expenses
(HoldingCompany) Interest expenseon ICD 2,300.91 4,175.32

b) Other Transactions
Loan Taken 30,878.00 39,695.34
Loan Repaid 24,033.50 46,105.63
Expenses incurredby Related Party on our behalf 11547 145.31

d) Outstanding Balances Payable
Inter CorporateDeposit -Current - Unsecured 39,618.05 22,803.05
InterestAccrued but not Due 5,835.30 3,787.55
OutstendigPayable 5,366.03 15,619.25

e) Outstanding Balances Receivable

OutstandigReceivable 14.58 14.58

2 Titan CompanyLimited a) Expenses
(FellowAssociate Company) Interest expenseon ICD 74.79 27842

SellingExpenses 27.12 39.45

b) Other Transactions
Loan Taken 5,000.00 5,000.00
Loan Repaid 5,000.00 5,00000

c) Outstanding Balances Receivable
Advances 9.73 2.06

3 Smart ValueHomesNew ProjectLLP a) Other Transactions
(Subsidiarycompany) Capital Contribution 1.00 27.00

Capital withdrawn 2,458.51 -
Expenses incurredon behalf of RelatedParty 0.43 -
b) Outstanding Balances Receivable
Investment 376.42 2,861.94
Advances 3.71 -

4 Tete AIGGeneral InsuranceCompany Limited a) Expenses
(Fellowsubsidiary) Insurance Premium paid 10.69 75.23

b) Other Transactions
Claim Received 20.21 0.78

c) Outstanding Balances Receivable
Advances 0.16 18.54

5 Tata ConsultancyService Limited a) Expenses
(Fellowsubsidiary) Repairsand Maintenance- Others 40.10 78.98

Professional Fees 142.78 -

6 Tata Teleservicc Limited a) Expenses
(Fellowsubsidiary) Administrative and Other Expenses 1.45 9.76

b) Ontstanding Balances Payable
OutstandingPayable 0.18 0.04

7 Tata Teleserviccs Maharashtra Ltd a) Expenses
(Fellowsubsidiary) Administrative and Other Expenses 0.33 -

b) Outstanding Balances Payable ~.:;. ~~:-':"-/~..:::::::::.:~

OutstandingPayable ff. \'-'?--~' ~ :~ 0.72
IX e,.. ','
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Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(?in Lakhs)

31.1 Related Party Transactions

For the year For the year
ended ended

Sr. No. Party Name Nature of Transaction
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

INR in Iakhs INR in lakhs
8 Conneqt Business Solutions Limited a) Expenses

Associate company-Ceasedw.e.f. 16.04.2021 Selling Expenses 25.70 32.93

b) Outstanding Balances Payable
Outstanding Payable 1.l0 -

9 Tata Comunications Limited a) Expenses
(Fellow subsidiary) Receiving of Services 11.87 11.68

b) Outstanding Balances Payable
Outstanding Payable 0.60 -

10 Landkart BuildersPrivate Limited a) Income

(Joint Venture) Interest Income on Loan and InterCorporateDeposits 521.86 608.74

b) Other Transactions
Expenses incurred on behalfof Related Party 875.90 -
Inter Corporate Deposits Given 18,980.03 113.94
Inter Corporate Deposits repaid 21,774.77 -
c) Outstanding Balances Receivables
Interest accrued on loan & other corp. deposit 28.52 -
Inter Corporate loan-Non Current - Unsecured 584.33 4,410.73
Other Receivable 170.96 170.96

11 Inflniti Retail Ltd a) Expense
(Fellow subsidiary) Administrative and Other Expenses 7.65 -

12 The Indian Hotels Company Limited a) Expense
(Fellow Associates) Administrative and Other Expenses 056 -

13 THDC Management Services Ltd a) Income

(Fellow subsidiary) Interest Income on Loan and Inter Corporate Deposits - 2.63

b) Outstanding Balances Receivables

Outstanding receivable - 1.95

c) Outstanding Balances Payable

Outstanding Payable 54.10 -

d) Other Transactions

Rendering of services 75.00 -

14 Arvind and Smart Value Homes LLP a) Outstanding Balances Receivables

(Joint Venture) Outstanding receivable 96.35 -



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for theyear ended 31 March 2022

(f inLakhs)

31.1 Related Party Transactions

For the year For the year

Sr. No. Party Name Nature of Transaction
cnded ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

INRin lakhs INRin lakhs
15 HL PromotersPrivate Limited a) Outstanding Balances Receivables

(Joint Venture) Outstanding receivable 23,981.34 22,078,22

Interest accrued on loan & other oorp. deposit 3,912,27 3,912.27

Trade Receivable 1,026,65 786.43

b) Other Transactions

Inter Corporate Deposits Given 635.00 3,278.36

Inter CorporateDepositsrepaid 1,703.49 -

16 Smart Values Homes (Peenya Project) Private a) Income
Limited Intereston Project ManagementFees - 309.40
(Joint Venture) Sale ofservices - 152.97

(Ceased to be Joint Venture w.e.f 21.05.2021) b) Other Transactions
Expenses incurredby Related Party 011 our behalf 0.06 25,35
Expenses incurred on behalf of Related Party 0.91 -

c) Outstanding Balances Receivables
Outstanding receivable 4,680.42 4,679.56

17 Promont Hilltop Private Limited a) Other Transactions
(Fellow subsidiary) Rendering of services 5.90 -

b) Outstanding Balances Payables
Outstanding Payable - -

18 Tata AlALife Insurance Company Limited a) Other Transactions
(Fellow subsidiary) Rendering of services 4.90

Interest expenses 1.77 -

19 Synergizcr Sunstainable Foundation a) Other Transactions
(Associate company) CSR expenses - 5.65

20 Key Managerial Personnel a) Director sitting fees

Kamlesh Mansukhlal Parekh 1.80 0.80
Nipun Aggarwal 1.00 0.80
RenuBasu 1.20 0.80
Sandhya Shailesh Kudtarkar 1.80 0.80

Note

The sales to and purchases from related parties including property, plant and equipment are made in the normal course of business and on terms equivalent to
those that prevail in ann's length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash.

The Company's rate of interest is at Ann's length for the inter corporate loans given to related patties.
~&OCC-~~
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Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended31 March2022

(e mLakhs)

32 Security and terms of repayment of Borrowings

32 (a) Details of current burrowlngs:

Particulars

Secured:

Leaus repayable on demand from banks

Short Tenu Loan I (refer Note I below)

Shorl TermLoan 2 (refer Note 2 below)

Commercial Paper

Commercial Paper I

Note

Asal

31 March 2022

36,31

10,000.00

10,036.31

Asat

31 March 2021

20,365.02

3,000.00

23,365.02

1 Loansrepayableondemand froma bank availedby a Parent(ShortTerm Loan 1) are securedby Parent'smortgage chargeunder multiplebankingarrangement by way
of hypothecation of entire currentassetsof the company bothpresentand future. The interestrate is rangingfrom6.85%p.a. to 9.00%p.a, (for the yearended31 March
2021:8,08%p.a. to 8.36%p.a.)

2 Loans repayable on demand from a bank of '{ Nil (As at 31 March 2021 '{ 3000 lakhs) availed by a Subsidiary (Sh0l1 Term Loan 2) are secured against equitable
mortgage of Landbearing S. No, 333,334/1,VillagePanchali, Tal & District Palghar,Maharashrrn and hypothecation of Stocksand receivablesof the subsidiary.

3 HoldingCompany(Commercial Paper I) has outstanding Commercial Papers (unsecured) aggregatingfacevalueof ~ 10000lakhs[As at 31 March2021:Nil lakhs)

32 (b) Details of Long-term borrowings:

Secured - at aOlorti~d ecsu

Long-term

Aut

31 Mnnh 2022

Current maturities Loug-fl!11n
oflong·tellll debts

Asat

31 Mareh 2021

Current maturities of
long-term dehts

1700 (Asat H March 2021 : Nil), 7,15% - Debentures on' 1,000,000 each (Refer Note below)

Working capital term loan

Unsecured:

Debentures - Nca-Cenvertlble Redeemable

Nil (As at 31 March2021 : 1,000), 8.40%Debenturesof ~
1,000,000 each
(Oueforredemption all 30 Apri12021)

17,000,OIl

496,21 1,294,60

10,000.00

1,950(As at 31 Murch2021: 1,950), 7.20%Debenturesof
~ 1,000,000 each
(Original Interest rate was 9.35%.It was re-seUed@7.20%
w.ef 26 March 2021.)
(Duefor redemptionall 23 September2022)

Inter corporate deposits- Unsecured

Inter Corporate Deposit from related party (refer note 31.1) 44,573,tO

61,573,10

19,500.00

19,500,00

19,500.00

22,858,05

42,854.25 11,294.60

Note
1 Subsidiary Company's 7.15%- Debenturesof~ 17000Lakhs(M at 31 March 2021 ~ Nil)

situatedat Banshankri, Hoskerehalli village, Bangalore. (ReferNote 34)
are securedbyLand(14.25acres) and Building(bothpresentandfuture)



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continned)
as at 31 March 2022

(t in Lakhs)

33 Acquisition of a subsidiary

1) On 21 May 2021, Parent Company of the Group acquired additional 49% share capital of Smart Value Homes (Peenya Project) Private
Limited. As a result, it has became wholly owned subsidiary company of Parent of the Group.

2) On 15 September 2021, Parent Company ofthe Group acquired entire share capital of Smart Value Homes (New Project) LLP. As a
result, it has became wholly owned subsidiary companyof Parent of the Group.

a) Consideration (~in Lakhs)
Smart Value

Particulars Smart Value Homes (Peenya Homes (New
Project) Private Limited Project) LLP

Consideration paid in cash 3,490,00 19,00

b) Purchase Price Allocation (~in Lakhs
Smart Value

Homes (Peenya Smart Value
Project) Private Homes (New

Particulars Limited Projccl) LLP
Amount Amount

a Value of identified assets acquired
i Property, plant and equipments 3,20 ·

ii Other non-current assets-Income Tax assets 253,30 ·
iii Current Assets

-Cash and cash equivalents 165,10 3,00
-Trade receivables 199,00 ·
-Inventories 31,410,00 -
-Other current assets 1,573,10 27,00
Total Value of identified Assets acquired (a) 33,603,70 30,00

b Value of Liabilities assumed
i Current Liabilities

-Provisions 332,40 -
-Trade payables 6,044,70 11.00
-Othcr current liabilities 2,886,60 -
-Other financial liabilities 791.50 -
-Income Tax liabilities 1,080,00 -
-Deferred Tax 157,00 -

ii Non-Current Liabilities
-Borrowings 21,762,00 -
-Trade payables 333,10 -
-Other financialliabilities 38,10 -
-Provisions 16,20 -
Total value of liabilities assumed (b) 33,441.60 11.00

c Net Assets (a-b) 162,10 19,00



c) Measurement of fair values
The valuation techniques used for measuring the fair values of material assets acquired and liabilities assumed were as follows:

Assets considered I Valuation Method Remarks
Property, Plant and Equipment
("PPE")

Book Value Company does not have any significant material PPE.
Therefore, the net book value of the PPE as on 31st
March, 2021 for Smart Value Homes (Peenya Project)
Private Limited & 15th September, 2021 for SVH New
Project LLP, have been considered to be PPE.

Inventory Income Method
(Under the Income Method, the
valuation is based on expected
cash flow from sale of asset as
reduced by the cost incurred for
bringing such asset into saleable
condition).

Inventory of Company are the key to the business and
significant amount ofbusiness value is attributable to
value of the inventory. Therefore, the same have been
valued by using Income Method.

Net Working Capital other than
Inventory (i.e., Debtors and other
current assets / liabilities)

Book Value As per management, the current market price of the
debtors,creditors & other current assets! liabilities would
approximate the book values. Hence the same has been
considered at book values as at the Valuation Date, i.e.

31 March 2021. & 15 Sep 2021

Project Borrowings Book Value As per management, the fair value of the loan would

approximate the book value as on 31 March 2021 & 15
September 2021

W L kI ). d f Uh hf
Goodwill
G d ·U00 WI ansmg rom the acquisition as een recoenrse as 0 ows In a 18

Smart Value
Smart Value

Particulars Note
Homes [Peenya

Homes (New
Project) Private

Project) LLP
Limited

Consideration A 3,490.00 19.00

Net Assets taken over at fair value on the valuation date C 162.10 19.00

Goodwill (A - C) 3,327.90 -

d)

(e) Gain relating to acquisition or a subsidiary

Smart Value

Particulars
Homes (Pecnya Smart Value

Project) Private Homes (New
Limited Project) LLP

Existing stake before acquisition 51% 49%
Additional Stake acquired 49% 51%
Date ofchange in Control 21-May-21 15-Sep-21
Book value of the net assets (legal entity) (3,039.00) 19.00
Fair value of the net assets (legal cntity)(A) 1,242.00 19.00
Purchase consideration (B) 3,490.00 19.00
Less: Fair value ofnew acquisition / Consideration paid (C) 1,600.00 9.00
Fair Value of Existing share (D) ~ (B)-(C) 1,890.00 10.00
Investment Value ofthe legal entity in Consol (E) (2,069.32) 186.00
Gain / (Loss) (D) - (E) 3,959.32 (176.00)



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continned)

forffleyearm~d31Ma~h2022

(e in Lakhs)

34 Assets pledged as Security

The carrying amounts of financial and non-financial assetspledged as security for non-current andcurrentborrowings are disclosed
below:

Particulars

(A) Current

Refer
Note

ABat
31 Marc112022

A~ atl
31 March2021

FinancillllUsels

Fin! charge

Tradereceivables

Cashand cash equivalents

Other Iinancinl assets

NOll·linnncinlnssets

Fin! charge

Inventories

Total current assets pledged as security

(B) NOll-current

Non financial assets

Properly,plant and equipment

Total non-cnrrents assets pledged as security

9(a) 9,179.00 9,035.48

9(b) 2,694.48 1,404.81

9(d) 67.78 15,38

73,933.48 54,245.55

85,874,74 64,701.22

32.45

32.45

Total assets pledged liSsecurity 85,874,74 64,733.67



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
lor the year ended 31 March 2022

(~in Lakhs)

35 For Disclosures mandated by Schedule [II of Companies Act, 2013, by way of additional information, refer below:

a) As at and for the year ended 31 Mereh 2022

Name ofllLeentity I ... " I For the year ended

I
For the yenr ended I For the year ended

31 March 20n 31 Mardi :ton 31 March 2022- 31 March 2022

Net IIJ.lCls Share in Profit I (11m) Share in Other Share in tolal
Comprehensive income f (lo~s) Comprehensiveincome!(los,s)

As%of Amount As%of Amount Ail % of Other Amount All% oflotnl Amount
consolidated (f in laklu) cODsolidnlcd (~in lakbs) Comprehensive (~inIRldls) comprehcn!<ive (~in lakhs)

net nsects profit or loss income incomel (lOiS)

Parent 304.21 18,599.69 1.60 (84.84) 47.31 (0.20) 1.61 (85.05)

Subsidiaries

Indian

Smertvelue Homes(Boism)PrivateLimited (l25.90) (7,697.76) 66.29 (3,511.O8) (667.99) ,., 66.23 (3,508,21)

HLT Residency PrivateLimited (2.98) (181.95) 0.48 (25.44) 0,48 (25.44)

SmartVulueH<;Imes (PCCUJlll Prcjcct}PrivateLimited (75.33) (4,605.80) 31,63 (1,675.50) 720,68 (UO) 31.69 (J,678.60)

SmllItVolueHomes(New Project)LLP

North BombayRenlEslate PrivnteLimited(Strikeof'w.c.f
25,OS.2021)

TOTAL 100.00 6,lJ4.18 100.00 (5,296.86) 100.00 (0.43) 100.00 (5,297.29)

aJ Adjustments arising ont of consolidation (ll,615.28) (6,644.86) (20.J3) (6,664.99)

b) Joint Ventures [as ner equity method)

Indian

Arvind nndSmllItValueHomesLLP 3,478.44 (7.00) (7.00)

HLPromG!crs PrivateLimited (8,552.00) (455.8S) (455.88)

LnndkartBuildersPrivataLimited (4,572.60) (I,lnOO) (1,173.00)

TOTAL (15,147.26) (13,577.60) (2O.56) (13,598.16)



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for theyear ended31lvlarch2021

(f in Lakhs}

35 For Disclosures mandated by Schedule ]11of Companies Act, 2013, by way of additional information, refer below:

a) As at and for the yenrended 31 Marcil 2021

Nameoflhe entity I As a! I For the yCllI' ended I Fo" the year ended I For the yellrended
31 Mnrcl12021 31 March 2021 31 MllTch lOU 31 Man:h 2021

Net assets Share ill Prolil! (loss) Share in Other Share Intetal
CompreltcDllivc Income{ (lOBS) Coml,rcllcosivc incomel (loss)

A!l%of AmOllllt As%of Amo,mt As % olOther Amollnt As % ortolal Amount
consolidated nel (Il:in tnkhs) consolldllted (~inlnkll!l) Comprellcnliivc (fillialdi!) comprcJlcnsivc (Il:Inlnkhs)

nsscl!! prolilnr lOiS income illcomcl(loss)

Paronl 373.13 27,104.32 43.65 (14,20.;.71) 112.39 43.53 43.57 (14,162.18)

Snbsldhuies

Indian

Smart vejuc HClnCi (BolslIT) PrivtlteLimited (57.67) (4,189.55) 6.11 (1,988.63) (11.89) (4.97) 6.13 (1,993.60)

HLT ResidencyPrivaleLimilell (215045) (15,650.69) 50.24 (16,349.37) 50.30 (16,349.37)

N<lIth BombayRoalEstale PrivaloLimited -
TOTAL 100.00 7,264.08 100.00 (32,543.71) 100.00 38.56 (32,505,15)

0) Adju~lmoot.l m'isiog0111 or coniolidlltlon (3,169,59) 4,033.00 '.M 4,039.64

bl Joint Ventures (a- "er MU;h'method)

Indinn

Amnd and BmartValueHomesLLP 5,970.44 (68.50) (68.50)

HL Promoteri PrivateLimited (8,249.41) 320.28 7.14 327.42

Smart Value Homes(NewProjoct)LLP 2,1U.76 (699.72) (699.72)

Smart Value Homos(Poenyo Projoot)PrivateLimited (2,115.40) (755.72) (155.72)

LlIlldkort BuildersPrivateLimited (3,373.98) (1,39!.79) (13.71) (1,4M.56)

TOTAL (1,549.10) (31,106.16) 33.51 (31,061.59)



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 3 I March 2022

(e in Lakhs)

36 Interests in other entities

(a) Subsidiaries

The group's subsidiaries at 31 March 2022 are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consistingsolely of equity shares that are held directly by the group.
The countryof'incorporadonor registration is also theirprincipalplace of business.

During the year, the parent companyhad acquired additionalstake Smart Value Homes(Peenyaproject) Private Limited Ou21 May 2021, and SmartValue Homes (New Project)
all 15September 2021. For details disclosure refer note 33

Name of entity Place of bu,ine,sl Owncl"sbip interest held by the group
Country of

incorporation

Ownership interest held by the nOI1­

conh'oUing interest
Principal
aClivitie5

Smart velue Homes(BoislU") PrivateLimited

HLT Residency PrivateLimiled

Smartvetue Homes(pecuyfl project)Private
Limited(w.e.fZI May2021)
SmartValueHomes(NewProject) LLP(w,e.f 15
September 2021)
North BombayRealEslatePriveteLimited

31 March 31 March 31 Ma,'ch 2022 31 March 2021
2022 2021
% % % %

India 100 100 Realestate& alliedactivities

hldia 100 100 Realestak:& alliedactivities

India 100 0 Reelestate& alliedactivities

India 100 Realestate& aUied activities

lndin 100 100 RealClltnte & alliedactivities

(b) Interests in Joint Ventures aod associates

Set out below are the joint venture of the Group as at 31 March, 2022 which, in the opinionof the management are material to the Group.The entities listed below have share
capital consisting solely of equity shares which are held directly by the Group.The country of incorporationis also their principle place of business and proportion of ownership
interest is the same astheproportion of voting rights held.

Name of entity

Smartvalue HOllies (Peenyaproject)PrivateLimited(upta 21 May21)

HLPromotersPrivateLimited

ArvindandSmarlVallieHomesLLP

SmartValueHomes(NewProject) LLP(upto 15 September21)

Lcndkart BuildersPvt.Ltd

SyllergiU:r8 Sustainable FQundation

(i) Commitments and contingent Uabilities in respect of joiltt ventures

Placeof business! % of ownership Rcllliiousllip AccOlmtillg Carrying amount (il: in lakhs)
country of Interest method 31 March 31 March

incorporation 31 March 2022 2022 2021

India 51.00% JointVenture Equity (2)1.5.40)

India 51.00% JointVenture Eqnity (8,552.00) (8,249.41)

India 50,00% Jointveoune Equity 3,478.44 5,970.44

India 51.00% Jointventure Equity 2,124.76

IOOia 51.00% JointVenture Equity (4,572.60) (3,313.92)

India 50,00% Associate HlJnity 0.02 0.02

Commnments

Commitments (shareof tileGroup)

Contingent liabilities

Coutiugcntliabilities (shareof tileGroup)

Totnl commitment5and contingent liabilities

31 Mnrch 2022 31 March
2021

33.92

33.92



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
jor the year ended 31 March 2022

(~ ill Lnkhs)

36 Interests in other entities (Continued)

(b) Interests in Joint Ventures (ContilllleJ)

(ii) Summarised fmalleial information for joint ventures

TIle tables below provide summarisedfinancial informationfor those joint ventures that are material to the Group. TIle informationdisclosedreflects the amountspresented in the
financial statements of the relevant joint ventures and 110t the Parent's share of those amounts. TIleyhave been amended to reflect adjustments made by the entity when \Isingthe
equity method, includingfair value adjustmentsmade at the lime of acquisitionand modifications for differencesin accounting policies.

Summarised balance sheet Arvind and Smart Value HOUle~ LLP Smalt Value Homes (New Project) flL Promoters Private Limited Smart Value Homes (Peenya Project)
LLP Private Limited

31 Match
31 Mamh2021 31 Manh2022 31 Mareh2021 31 Mal'eh 2022 31 MaTch2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

"'22
Current assets

CRsh& cash equivalents 12.37 15.00 1.00 443.82 514.00 16S.10

Oiherassets 12,765.96 12,800.01) 2,597.00 17,292.90 19,294.00 28,900.70

Totd ~urr~nt IlUcl$ 12,778.33 12,815,0(1 2,598.00 17,736,72 19,8011.00 29,065.80

Total non-current assets 90.28 80,00 67.08 39.00 256.40

Current liabilities

Fimmeiulliubilities (eX(lludingtrade peyeblcs) 263.33 39.00 1,034.74 6,834.36 65.00 - 22,514.30

Other Linbilines 42.11 279,00 26.84 659.16 7,433.01 9,420.70

Tatal ~urrent linbilities 305.44 31g.00 1,061.58 7,493,52 7,498,01 31,935.<]0

Nen-earrent liabilities

Financinljiebillties (e1lCludiug trade JllIYflbles) - 2S,On.89 26,248.00 38,00

Other Liabilities 1.07 46.15 38,00 349,30

Total non-enrrent liabilities 1.07 25,144.04 26,286.00 387,30

Net assets 12,562.10 12,577.00 1,536.42 (14,83J.76) (13,937.01) (3,000.10)

Reconciliotion to carrying amouuts Arvind and Smart Value Homes LLP Smart Value Homes (New Projed) HL Promoters Private Limited Smart Value Home~ (Peeuya Project)
LLP Private Limited

31 March 2022 31 Mareh2021 31 March 2022 31 Mnrch 2021 31 MarclI2022 31 Mareh 2021 31 Manil2022 31 Mareh202l

Opening net assets 12,571.00 12,725.30 2,832.36 (13,937.01) (14,718.21) (1,805.20)

Profit/(LollS)for the year (12.29) (137.30) (1,372.94) (889.51) 767,63 (1,194.90)

IndAS 115 impact (net ofta,,) (11.00)

Capital infus~d I (whhdrewn) during lite yenr 27.00

Other ccmprehcnslve income (7.26) 13,57

Oosing Det assets 12,564.71 12,577,00 1,536.42 (14,333,78) (13,937.01) (3,0{}[l.10)

Group's share in % 50% 50% 0% H% 51% 51% 0% 51%

Group's share 6,282.35 6,294,00 183.51 (7,565.23) (7.107.88) (l,S30.05)

Addilionlll j,\yesbnent by the Group 1,341.00

Consolidation Eliminations (2,804.00) (323.56) (987.00) (1,141.S3) - (511S.35)

Carrying amonnt 3,418.35 5,970.44 2,124.57 (8,552.23) (8,249.41) (2,115.40)

Sammarlsed statement or profit /\lId loss Arvind nnd Smart Value Homes LLP Smm't Valne Homes (New Project) HL PromoteTli Private Limited Smnrt Value Homes (Pecoya Prujeet}
LLP Private Llmited

31 MOI'ch2022 31 March 2021 31 Moreh 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March :W21 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Total Income 43.00 75.110 2,894.4J 12,177.00 3.104,1111

loterel;tincomc 147.73 3.00 48.00

Depreciation and emonlsmion 0.33 I,(IlI 1.91 4.00 3,0{)

Interest expense 1.26 5,00 1,135,00

Income tax expca:re/(crodit) 115.00 5.11 2.00

Profit/(L.oss} rOT the year (11.29) (137.30) (1,372.94) (889.51) 767.63 (1,194.90)

Odler comprehensive incomc/(L.Jss) (2.S4) (7.26) 13.57

Total comprehensive income/{Loss) (13.83) (137.30) (1,372.94) (896.77) 781.20 (1,194.90)

Di,idends received
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for Ih~ year elided 31March 2022

(~ inLakhs)

36 Interests in other entities (Continued)

(b) Interests ill Joint Ventures (COlltillllell)

(ii) Summarfsed finnncini information for joint ventures

The tables below provide summarised financial information for those joint ventures that ere material to the Group
The information disclosed reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of the relevnntjoint ventures and
not the Parent's share of those amounts. They have been amended 10 reflect adjustments made by the entity when
using the equity method, including faiT value adjustments made at the lime of acquisition and modifications for
differencesin accountingpolicies,

Smnmarhe,! balauC<l,heet ullIoIk.rlllulld... Pvt. Ltd

JI Marth 31 Marth

"" 2021

Curre.,t , •• 01,

C~.b &.""sh <XJuivolen{. 2,385.~ 1.529.00

Othcr""&ets 74,232.40 53,866.0(1

Tot"l.ur",.. t a..e" 76,617.93 55,395.0(1

Toml non-cur...nt a...ts 319.27 185.0(1

Curront lJabllltlo.

Finnm.~.llial>iliti.. (eKcluding trM!<> payahl") 10,205.52 3.863.00

Other Linbilities 481.83 7,793.00

Toml ourrent linbtHtl•• 10,687.35 11.6$6,01}

Non-ourreullLlbllltlu

Fin,"ciallinbililioo (lllIcluding Irllde payohles) 38,404.53 26.708.00

Other Linh,li"e, 35,8112.62 22.874.00

Totol no""",,urront IbbWU". 74,207.15 49,582.00

Not ,,,et. (7,957.30) (5,658,00)

ReeoneUiatlon ro earrylng "mounl. Lamlkal't DaUders Pvl. Ltd

31 MlI",1I2022 31 MOl'ch2021

Opeuingnet ..'els (5,1:i58.00) (2.902.()()

Profl{/(L""-'J for (he year (J,l:i50.60) (2,729.00)

Cnpit.1 jnfused I (withdrauu) during lh" ye.t

OU,ere<llnprehens,ve income (10.17) (2700)

Closlngn.t ....t. (9,318.77) (5.6580(1)

Oroup's ,hare hI % ,,% ,,%
Gnoup'.ohn", (4,754.97) (2,887.98)

Additionol inve,tment by the Gronp

Goodwill (833.00) (48Ii.00)

Carr,'ln~ amoullt (5,587.97) (3,373.98)

Summar],ed oIatement of profil ond 10.. Lnndkarl Bullde •• Plot. Ltd

31 Mareh 2022 31 Morcll2021

T01.111noomo 14S.48 23.00

lut",e,t in""me 5.79 1.00

Ileprecitllil1l\at,d8lllorlisation 12.S2 15.00

lnlorc'le:<pense 152,% 94.00

lnoomo liL~ oxpomseJ(<:t'O<liI) 651.66

Prolit/(Loos) for lhe year (3,650.60) (2.729,00)

Oll,eroompl\.'he,,,ive inoomel(Loos) (10.17) (27.00)

Tolol (olnl'tebonoh·.llloomoJ(Lo..j (3,1:i60.77) (2,75600)

Dividend. rettLV<:<l -I



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for Iheyear ended 31 March 2022

('{in Lakhs)

37 Loans and Investments under Section 186 of the Act

The details of [onus,guarantees and investmentsunder Section 186 of the Act read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014
life as follows:

A. Details ofinveslmenls made by tile GrOlII)as on 31 March 2022 (Incilldin~ investments mnde in the previens yenl')

Investment in equity shares

Name of the entity

(I) In joint ..enturell

SmartValueHomo,(Fecuya project) PrivateLimilcd (referNote2)

HL PromotersPrivateLimited

LllndkartBllildt>rs PrivateLimited

(ll)In Assoclale

SyllerglzersSIJSIOill;)bl~ Foundallcn

Investment in Other Non-current investments

Aut
31 March 2012

4O~.OO

1.0~

0.0!

409.06

nodog the yenr A..,
31 Mnrch2flU

1,8QD.U8

408.00

LOt

0,02

2.209.14

Nume IIfthc cnUly

IIIjllinl veDtm'cs

Arvindand SmartVlilueHome. LLP

SmllrtValueHomesNewProje<:l LLP

D, Deilliis ofloans given by Gronp are as follows:

ASlIl During tbe ~"r A. at
31 Mnreb2022 Jl Mllrell 2021

5,%2,').1- (1.50) 5,970.44

(2,124.76) 2,124.76

5,962.94 (2,132.26) 8,095.20

Name of Ibc elltlly (rerer Note) Rate uf inlereit (p.n.) As ul LOlln given during tILe LOllnrefundell dming
31 Mareh 2022 year lbe yeKr

Ani
J1 Murch 2021

584.3J 18.919.26 21.714,00Lnrulkllrt BuildersPrivale LinrilCd 15.00%

584.3J 18,')19.26 21,114.00

3,319.01

3.319.01

Note:

Purpose of utilizationof loan given 10the cntitica- Generalpurpose loan

2 During the Year companyhad acquired the additionalshares of the company and these company had became the wholly owned eubsidairy



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for theyear ended 31 March2022

(~ in Lakhs}

38 Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises
Based on the information available with the Group, the balance due to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 is { Nil (31 March 2021 : ~ Nil) and no interest has been paid or is payable during the year nuder the terms of the MSMED
Act, 2006. The informationprovided by the Group has been relied upon by the auditors,

Pllrticulnrs

a, Amountspayableto suppliersunder MSMED (suppliers)as on 31 March 2022

Principal

Interestduethereon

b. Payments madeto suppliers beyondtileappointed dayduringtheyear

Principal

Interest due thereon

c. Amountof interestdueand payablefor delay in payment(which have been paid but beyondthe appointeddayduringthe year)
but without adding the interestunderMSMED

d. Amountof interest accruedand remaining unpaidas on 31 March2022

e. Amountof interestremainingdue and payable10 suppliersdlsallowebleas deductibleexpenditureunder IncomeTax Act, 1961

39 Provision for customer compensation

... "
31 March 2022

ASllt

31 March2021

Particulars Provisilm for customer compensation

Asal As at
31 Morch 2022 31 March2021

Provi~ioll O\1tSlllnding as at the beginning of the year 148.46 136.50

Add: on Accountof Conversionof IV to SUbsidiary 184.36

Add: Additions10 provisions 16.30 11.96

Less: Utilisation -
Reversal (withdrawnasno longer required)

Provislou olltstludlng as at Ihe end of the year (expected to be Incurred wltbin a year) 349.12 148.46

40 IND AS 115 N Revenue from Contracts with Customers

a) Significant changes in contract liabilities balances are as follows



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for (he year elided 31 March 2022

Pllrtielllal's

Confract liability

At lite beginningof the reportingperiod

Cumulative catch-upadjustments affectingcontractliability

At the end ef' the reporting period

b) Reconciliation of revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Asal Asat

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

2,207.23 8,648.08

2,490.2lJ (6,440.85)

4,697.52 2,207.23

Particulars

Contractprice of the revenuerecognised

Customerincentivejbenetitsrdiscounts

Revenue Irom Sale of RelllEstate DevelopmenlslLllnd recognisedin the ConsolidatedStatement of

41 Other Statuterv Information

As at

31 March 2022

13,554.74

(6.11)

13,548.63

As at

31 March2021

13,380,53

(S2.78)

13,327.75

The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property.

ii The Group does not have any transactions with companies struck off.
iii The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period
iv The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
v The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding

that the Intermediary shall

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

vi TIle Group has not received any fund from any pcrsoms)or entity(ics), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Group shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
vii TIle Group and its Joint Ventures has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific puropose for which it was taken.

viii The Group docs not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or surveyor any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

42 The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the company towards Provident Fund and
Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment had released draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13,2020, and invited suggestions
from stakeholders which are under consideration by the Ministry. The Company and its Indian subsidiaries will assess the impact and its evaluation once the
subject rules are notified. The Company and its Indian subsidiaries will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the Code
becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended31 March 2022

43 No material events nave occurred after the balance sheet date and uptc the approval of the financial statements.

44 Previous period figures have been re-grouped / re-classified wherever necessary, to conform to current period's classification in order to comply with the
requirements of tile amended Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013
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Statement pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 of the COmpanies Act.2013, read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in the prescrIbed Fonn AOC-l

Statement containing salient features of the finandal statement of Subsidiaries I Assodate companies I Joint Ventures

PartA: Subsidiaries

(,{lakhs)\ '~~"'''!

Reporting period for

the subsidiary Exchange rate as en the
Profit

Sr. - The date since when concerned, if Reporting last date of the relevant
Share Capital

Reserves & Total Total
Investments

Total
before

Provision Profit after Netcash %01
Name of the subsidiary Turnover

No. subsidiary was acquired different from the currency financial year in case of Surplus Assets Liabilities Revenue for taxation taxation Flow shareholding •

holding company's foreign SUbsidiaries
taxation

reporting period

1 Tata Value Homes Limited 08 Soli tember2009 N.A IN' IN' 80,000.00 -61400.00 73,235.00 54635.00 7,303.00 7219.00 8,784.00 -7,156.00 1,328.00 -8,484.00 -511.00 100.00%

2 Smart Value Homes (B"isar Private Limited 24 August 2012 N.A IN' IN' 1.00 -7,699.00 2,975.00 10,673.00 1,835.00 1,936.00 -3,518.00 -7.00 ·3511.00 -925.00 100.00%

3 HlTResidency Private Limited 03 Jul 2013 N.A IN' IN' 1.00 -18,196.00 19,431.00 37,626.00 408.00 240.00 246.00 -2,552.00 -8.00 -2,544.00 294.00 100.00%

4 North Bombav Real Estate Private limited 05 March 2014 NA IN' IN' - - - 100.00%

5 Smart Value Homes (Peenya Pro'ect) Private Umited 21 May2021 NA IN' IN' 250.00 -4,856.00 27.,222.00 31,828.00 4,688.00 5,180.00 -1,676.00 -1676.00 1,624.00 100.00%

6 Smart Value Homes (New Project) lLP 15 September 2021 N.A IN' IN' 19.00 30.00 11.00 - - 100.00%

*% of share holding of the Company and its subsidiaries

Note 1

1 Share Capital Issued - No. of shares: 800,000,000. Tata Housing Development Company Limited. (100%)

2 Names of subsidiaries which areyet to commence oparatcre: None

3 Allthe subsidiaries have financial year ended - 31st March, 2022

4 Figures below Rs. 50,000 are denoted by!"

Note 2
North Sombay Real Estate Private Limited has been filed for removal of companiy with M.C.Aon 17.07.2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

'reeaValue Homes Limited

CIN: U454QOMH2Q09PLC19560S

-==:::::s.'[> I l::t

Sanjay Dutt
Director
Drn:0~-z51670

..Jc:,,~-e.<:r 1.l..1. "-~l--

Sandeep Chhabda
Director

DIN: 08331848

~
Mntnal Shukla

CompanySecretary
Membership No. A31734
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Part B: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Shares of the Associate I Joint Ventures held by the Profit I Lossfor the year

Date onwhich the Company as on March 31, 202~ Networth

Associate or Joint No of shares held Amount of Extent of Description of Reason why the
attributable to

Name of the entity
Latest audited balance by the company in investment in holding how there is Associate I Joint

shareholding as perVenture was Reporting currency
sheet date associate I joint associate I joint (in significant Venture is not

latest balanceassociated or
venture '" venture" ('il: crores) percentage]" influence consolidated Considered in Not Considered

acquired sheet (~crores)
Consolidation (~ in Consolidation

Lakhs) (il: Lakhs)

B. Joint Ventures

1 Arvind and Smart Value Homes LLP 31st March 2022 25 April 2011 INR NA 50% 6,281.05 (6.00) (6.00)

2 HLPromoters Private Limited 31st March 2022 03 July 2013 INR 40,80,000 4.08 51% Joint ventura- By (7,971.25) (453.00) (435.00)

51%
virtue of

3 5martValue Homes (New Project) LLP (refer note 3)
22 March 2015 NA

shareholding31st March 2022 INR - - -
Smart Value Homes (Peenya Project) Private Limited (refer

51%
interest and

19 March 2013 12,75,000 18.00
4 note 2) 31st March 2022 INR legal agreement - - -
5 Landkart Builder Pvt ltd 31st March 2022 18 JUly2019 INR 10,410 0.01 51% (4,058.22) {1,173.00 (1,127.DO)

6 Svnergfzers Sulstalnable Foundation 31st March 2022 15 May 2012 INR NA 50% - - -

.. Number of shares, amount of investmentand extent of holding by the Company and its subsidiaries

Note:
1 Rgures below Rs. 50,000 are denoted by'*'

2 Smart Value Homes (Peenya Project) Private Limited ceased to be Joint venture w.eJ 21 May 2021

4 Smart Value Homes (New Project) lLP ceased to be Joint venture w.eJ 15 September 2021

All the subsidiaries have financial year ended - 31st March, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
'rata Value Homes Limited

ClN: U45400MH2009PLC195605

rJ'

Sandeep Chhabda
Director

DIN: 08331848

~.. ..l-r:: e 7 e: L.'- .. ; L.--

Mrunal Shukla
Company Secretary

Membership No. A31734

-
SanjayDutt
Dtreaar
DIN: 05251670

-~,tr:
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13 June 2022
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